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Auditors’ Report

To the Share Owners of
ATCO Ltd.

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of ATCO Litd. as at December 31, 2003 and 2002
and the consolidated statements of earnings and retained earnings and cash flows for the years then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Corporation’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Corporation as at December 31, 2003 and 2002 and the results of its operations

and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles.

Dusesumthowsforpors LLF

Chartered Accountants

Calgary, Alberta

PricewaterhouseCoopers refers to the Canadian firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and the other member firms of PricewaterhouseCoopers
International Limited, each of which is a separate and independent legal entity.



ATCO LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS AND RETAINED EARNINGS
(Millions of Canadian Dollars except per share data)

Three Months Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31
Note 2003 2002 2003 2002
(Unaudited)
Revenues $1,008.9 $983.5 $3,929.7  $3,196.3
Costs and expenses
Natural gas supply 368.0 358.0 1,516.9 988.5
Purchased power 46.8 59.6 209.8 184 .4
Operation and maintenance 261.6 263.8 994.2 926.9
Selling and administrative 60.7 38.5 181.1 155.1
Depreciation and amortization 76.8 71.2 284.7 257.1
Interest 11 49.6 46.8 198.9 189.2
Franchise fees ) 30.5 28.9 122.6 98.5
894.0 866.8 3,508.2 2,799.7
114.9 116.7 421.5 396.6
Gain on sale of Viking-Kinsella property 2 - 1.6 - 110.1
Interest and other income 3 10.5 7.3 36.1 26.6
Earnings before income taxes and
non-controlling interests 1254 125.6 457.6 533.3
Income taxes 4 29.7 45.6 159.8 196.7
95.7 80.0 297.8 336.6
Dividends on equity preferred shares 2.1 2.1 8.6 8.6
Non-controlling interests 5 50.8 40.7 158.0 165.0
Earnings attributable to Class I and
Class II shares 2 42.8 37.2 131.2 163.0
Retained earnings at beginning of period 960.3 877.6 904.7 777.7
1,003.1 914.8 1,035.9 940.7
Dividends on Class I and Class 1I shares 9.5 8.7 38.1 34.6
Direct charges 6 0.7 1.4 4.9 1.4
Retained earnings at end of period $ 9929 $904.7 $ 9929 § 9047
Earnings per Class I and Class II share 14 $ 143 $ 124 $ 440 § 547
Diluted earnings per Class I and Class 1I share 14 $ 142 $1.23 $ 435 $ 539
Dividends paid per Class I and Class II share $ 032 $ 0.29 $ 128 $ Ll1s6
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ATCOLTD.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(Millions of Canadian Dollars)

December 31

Note 2003 2002
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and short term investments 17 $ 3919 3§ 4888
Accounts receivable 583.0 497.7
Inventories 184.2 129.3
Income taxes recoverable 13.6 21.7
Deferred natural gas costs 27.2 31.2
Deferred electricity costs - 20.7
Prepaid expenses 277 27.3
1,227.6 1,216.7
Property, plant and equipment 7 5,128.4 4,9492
Goodwill 71.2 71.2
Security deposits for debt 23.1 26.1
Other assets 8 140.9 140.1
$6,591.2  $6,403.3
LIABILITIES AND SHARE OWNERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Bank indebtedness 9 $ 56 § 122
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 528.4 4973
Future income taxes 4 11.5 16.6
Deferred electricity cost recoveries 1.0 -
Deferred electricity cost obligation 10 - 51.0
Long term debt due within one year 11 2.3 38
Non-recourse long term debt due within one year 11 51.0 50.7
599.8 631.6
Future income taxes 4 233.2 235.2
Deferred credits 12 104.3 71.5
Long term debt 11 1,841.6 1,936.0
Non-recourse long term debt 11 948.2 956.4
Non-controlling interests 5 1,580.5 1,371.8
Equity preferred shares 13 150.0 150.0
Class I and Class II share owners' equity
Class I and Class II shares 14 138.9 1377
Retained earnings 992.9 904.7
Foreign currency translation adjustment 1.8 24
1,133.6 1,044.8
$6,591.2  $6,403.3
A SeeA A/ fomurann, |
N.C. SOUTHERN B.P. DRUMMOND
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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ATCO LTD.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Millions of Canadian Dollars)

Three Months Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31
Note 2003 2002 2003 2002
(Unaudited)
Operating activities
Earnings attributable to Class I and Class II shares $ 428 $ 372 $ 131.2 $163.0
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 76.8 71.2 284.7 257.1
Future income taxes 4.1) 22.5 14 23.6
Non-controlling interests 50.8 40.4 158.0 1326
Gain on sale of Viking-Kinsella property - net of
current income taxes and non-controlling interests 2 - 0.3) - (34.9)
Other - net - 9.4 (1.7) 2.7
Cash flow from operations 166.3 180.4 573.6 544.1
Changes in non-cash working capital 16 (88.0) (64.6) (58.2) (170.0)
78.3 115.8 515.4 374.1
Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (188.7) (171.6) (539.6) (649.2)
Sale of Viking-Kinsella property - net of current income taxes 2 - 0.8 - 107.7
Proceeds on disposal of other property, plant and equipment 13.0 2.8 304 6.8
Contributions by utility customers for extensions to plant 13.8 21.2 48.1 41.1
Non-current deferred electricity costs 10.3 (10.4) 19.1 18.7
Changes in non-cash working capital 16 17.3 08 (33.1) an
Other 0.5 1.7 - (10.0)
(133.8) (154.7) @751  (492.0)
Financing activities
Change in notes payable 42.0) (1.2) - (4.6)
Deferred electricity cost obligation 10 - (14.9) (51.0) 51.0
Issue of long term debt 21.7 300.6 45.8 305.8
Issue of non-recourse long term debt - 6.3 50.9 2162
Repayment of long term debt (68.2) (201.8) (144.6) (255.6)
Repayment of non-recourse long term debt (7.1) (5.8) (41.2) (46.2)
Issue of equity preferred shares by subsidiary - 150.0 150.0 150.0
Issue (purchase) of Class A shares by subsidiary 0.1 0.1 2.4) 2.9
Issue (purchase) of Class I shares 0.3 0.3 24 2.0
Dividends paid to Class I and Class II share owners 9.5) 8.7 (38.1) (34.6)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (24.5) (20.1) 95.7) a1.n
Changes in non-cash working capital 16 1.5 0.4) 7.1 8.2
Other (0.4) (11.5) (3.9) (11.9)
(128.1) 186.9 (125.5) 305.5
Foreign currency translation 0.6 1.4 (5.1) 5.6
Cash position o
Increase (decrease) (183.0) 149.4 (90.3) 193.2
Beginning of period 569.3 327.2 476.6 283.4
End of period $ 386.3 $476.6 $ 386.3 $476.6

@ Cash position includes cash and short term investments less current bank indebtedness.
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ATCOLTD.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2003

(tabular amounts in millions of Canadian dollars)
1. Summary of significant accounting policies
Financial Statement Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) and include the accounts of ATCO Ltd. and its subsidiaries, including a
proportionate share of joint venture investments (“ATCQ”). Principal subsidiaries are ATCO Structures (100%
owned) and its subsidiaries, ATCO Noise Management (100% owned), ATCO Resources (100% owned) and
Canadian Utilities Limited (51.847% owned) and its subsidiaries (“Canadian Utilities”). Principal operations are
Industrials (ATCO Structures, ATCO Noise Management), Utilities (ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas), Power
Generation (ATCO Power, Alberta Power (2000), ATCO Resources), Logistics and Energy Services (ATCO
Pipelines, ATCO Midstream, ATCO Frontec) and Technologies (ATCO I-Tek Business Services, ATCO I-Tek).
Significant joint venture investments consist principally of power generation plants.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current presentation.
Regulation

ATCO Electric, the ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines divisions of ATCO Gas and Pipelines Ltd. and the generating
plants of Alberta Power (2000), all of which are wholly owned subsidiaries of Canadian Utilities Limited’s wholly
owned subsidiary, CU Inc., are collectively referred to in these consolidated financial statements as the “regulated
operations”.

ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines are regulated primarily by the Alberta Energy and Utilities Board
(“AEUB”), which administers acts and regulations covering such matters as rates, financing, accounting,
construction, operation and service area. The AEUB may approve interim rates, subject to final determination.

The generating plants of Alberta Power (2000) were regulated by the AEUB until December 31, 2000 but are now
governed by legislatively mandated Power Purchase Arrangements (“PPA™) that were approved by the AEUB.
These plants are included in regulated operations primarily because the PPA’s are designed to allow the owners of
generating plants constructed before January 1, 1996 to recover their forecast fixed and variable costs and to earn a
return at the rate specified in the PPA’s. The plants will become deregulated upon the expiry of the PPA’s. Each
PPA is to remain in effect until the earlier of the last day of the life of the related generating plant and
December 31, 2020.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of ATCO’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the year. On an on-going basis, management reviews its estimates, particularly those related to
depreciation and amortization methods, useful lives and impairment of long-lived assets, amortization of deferred
availability incentives and employee future benefits, using currently available information. Changes in facts and
circumstances may result in revised estimates, and actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues from sales of natural gas and electricity by the regulated operations, excluding Alberta Power (2000), are
recognized upon delivery, primarily on the basis of meter readings, and include an estimate of services provided but
not yet billed. Revenues from generating plants are recognized upon delivery of output or upon availability of
delivery as prescribed by contractual arrangements. PPA incentives and penalties are recognized as described under
the accounting policy for deferred availability incentives.
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenues from the transportation and storage of natural gas are recognized on the basis of contractual arrangements
for access. Revenues from sales of marketed natural gas and other energy products are recognized upon delivery.
Revenues from the supply of contracted services are recorded by the percentage of completion method. Full
provision is made for any anticipated loss. Other revenues are recognized when products are delivered or services
are provided.

Natural Gas Supply

Natural gas supply expense is based on the forecast cost of natural gas included in customer rates. Variances from
forecast costs are deferred until such time as approval from the AEUB is obtained for refund to or collection from
customers and revenues and natural gas supply expense are adjusted accordingly.

Purchased Power

Purchased power expense is based on the actual cost of electricity purchased, whereas the amount included in
customer rates is based on forecast cost. Revenues are adjusted for variances from forecast cost, and the variances
are deferred until such time as approval from the AEUB is obtained for refund to or collection from customers.

Income Taxes

The regulated operations follow the method of accounting for income taxes that is consistent with the method of
determining the income tax component of their rates. When future income taxes are not provided in the income tax
component of current rates, such future income taxes are not recognized to the extent that it is expected that they
will be recovered from customers through inclusion in future rates.

Other subsidiaries follow the liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, future tax
liabilities and assets are recognized for the estimated tax consequences attributable to differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Future tax liabilities and
assets are measured using enacted and substantively enacted tax rates. The effect on future tax liabilities and assets
of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that the change occurs.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of average cost or net realizable value.
Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and unamortized contributions by
utility customers for extensions to plant.

Certain regulated operations include in property, plant and equipment an allowance for funds used during
construction at rates approved by the AEUB for debt and equity capital. Property, plant and equipment in the other
subsidiaries include capitalized interest incurred during construction.

Certain regulated additions are made with the assistance of non-refundable cash contributions from customers when
the estimated revenue is less than the cost of providing service or where special equipment is needed to supply the
customers’ specific requirements. These contributions are amortized on the same basis as, and offset the
depreciation charge of, the assets to which they relate.

Depreciation is provided on assets on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Depreciation rates for
regulated assets are approved by the AEUB or, in the case of Alberta Power (2000)’s generating plants, are
determined by the PPA’s. These depreciation rates include a provision for future removal costs and site restoration
costs. On retirement of depreciable regulated assets, the accumulated depreciation is charged with the cost of the
retired unit, net disposal costs and site restoration costs.
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

When events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable, the
carrying value is compared to the estimated future net cash flows from its use together with its residual value. Any
excess of the carrying value over the net recoverable amount is expensed.

Goodwill

Goodwill is not amortized. The carrying value of goodwill is subject to an impairment test annually, or more
frequently if events or circumstances indicate impairment. If the carrying value of the reporting unit to which
goodwill has been assigned exceeds its fair value, then, with respect to the reporting unit’s goodwill, any excess of
its carrying value over its fair value is expensed.

Deferred Financing Charges

Issue costs of long term debt are amortized over the weighted average life of the debt and issue costs of preferred
shares relating to regulated operations are amortized over the expected life of the issue. Unamortized premiums and
1ssue costs of redeemed long term debt and preferred shares relating to regulated operations are amortized over the
life of the issue funding the redemption.

Deferred Availability Incentives

Under the terms of the PPA’s, ATCO is subject to an incentive/penalty regime related to generating unit availability.
Incentives are paid to ATCO by the PPA counterparties for availability in excess of predetermined targets, whereas
penalties are paid by ATCO to the PPA counterparties when the availability targets are not achieved.

Accumulated incentives in excess of accumulated penalties are deferred. For any of the individual PPA’s, should
accumulated incentives plus estimated future incentives exceed accumulated penalties plus estimated future
penalties, the excess will be amortized to revenues on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the PPA’s.
Should accumulated penalties plus estimated future penalties exceed accumulated incentives plus estimated future
incentives, the shortfall will be expensed in the year the shortfall occurs.

Long Term Debt Due Within One Year

When ATCO intends to refinance long term debt due within one year on a long term basis and there is a written
undertaking from an underwriter to act on ATCO’s behalf with respect thereto, or sufficient capacity under long
term bank loan agreements to issue commercial paper or assume bank loans, then long term debt due within one
year is classified as long term.

Hedging

During 2003, ATCO adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (“CICA”) Accounting Guideline
pertaining to the identification, designation, documentation and effectiveness of hedging relationships for the
purpose of applying hedge accounting.

In conducting its business, ATCO uses various instruments, including forward contracts, swaps and options, to
manage the risks arising from fluctuations in exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices. All such
instruments are used only to manage risk and not for trading purposes.

ATCO designates each derivative instrument as a hedge of specific assets or liabilities on the balance sheet or
specific firm commitments or anticipated transactions. ATCO also assesses, both at the hedge’s inception and on an
ongoing basis, whether the derivative instruments that are used in hedging transactions are effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged items.

Payments or receipts on derivative instruments that are designated and effective as hedges are recognized
concurrently with, and in the same financial category as, the hedged item.
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

If a derivative instrument is terminated or ceases to be effective as a hedge prior to maturity, the gain or loss at that
date is deferred and recognized in income concurrently with the hedged item. Subsequent changes in the value of the
derivative instrument are reflected in income. If the designated hedged item is sold, extinguished or matures prior to
the termination of the related derivative instrument, the gain or loss at that date on such derivative instrument is
recognized in income.

Employee Future Benefits

ATCO accrues for its obligations under defined benefit pension and other post employment benefit plans. Costs of
these benefits are determined using the projected benefits method prorated on service and reflects management’s
best estimates of investment returns, wage and salary increases, age at retirement and expected health care costs.

Pension plan assets at the end of the year are reported at market value. The expected long term rate of return on plan
assets is determined at the beginning of the year on the basis of the long bond yield rate at the beginning of the year
plus an equity and management premium that reflects the plan asset mix. Expected return on plan assets for the year
is calculated by applying the expected long term rate of return to the market related value of plan assets, which is the
average of the market value of plan assets at the end of the preceding three years.

Accrued benefit obligations at the end of the year are determined using a discount rate that reflects market interest
rates on high quality corporate bonds that match the timing and amount of expected benefit payments.

Experience gains and losses and the effect of changes in assumptions in excess of 10% of the greater of the accrued
benefit obligations or the market value of plan assets, adjustments resulting from plan amendments and the net
transitional liability or asset, which arose upon the adoption in 2000 of the current accounting standard, are
amortized over the estimated average remaining service life of employees.

Employer contributions to the defined contribution pension plans are expensed as paid.
Stock Based Compensation Plans
The ATCO Litd. stock option plan and share appreciation rights are described in Note 15.

While the recommendations of the CICA on accounting for stock based compensation and other stock based
payments require the adoption on or before January 1, 2004 of the fair value based method of accounting for stock
options, other methods of accounting are permitted until that date. ATCO has chosen to retain its existing
accounting policy, which is permitted by the recommendations, whereby no compensation expense is recognized
upon the granting or exercise of stock options. Any consideration paid by the holder of stock options upon exercise
is credited to share capital. While the recommendations require expense recognition for options that may be settled
in cash or other assets, ATCO amended its stock option policy in June 2002 so that stock options will no longer be
repurchased. Prior to that date, if stock options were repurchased, the consideration paid to the holders of the
options was charged to retained earnings.

No compensation expense is recognized when share appreciation rights are granted. Prior to vesting, compensation
expense arising from an increase or decrease in the market price of the shares over the base value of the rights is
accrued equally over the remaining months to the date of vesting. After that date, any change in compensation
expense is recognized monthly in earnings.

Foreign Currency Translation
Assets and liabilities of self-sustaining foreign operations are translated into Canadian dollars at the rate of exchange
in effect at the balance sheet date and revenues and expenses are translated at the average monthly rates of exchange

during the year. Gains or losses on translation of self-sustaining foreign operations are included in the foreign
currency translation adjustment in share owners’ equity.
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Canadian dollars at the rate of exchange in effect
at the transaction date. Monetary assets and liabilities of integrated foreign operations are translated into Canadian
dollars at the rate of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date, non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at
rates of exchange in effect when the assets were acquired or liabilities incurred, and revenues and expenses are
translated at the average monthly rates of exchange for the year. Gains or losses on translation of integrated foreign
operations are recognized in earnings.

2. Gain on sale of Viking-Kinsella property

In 2002, ATCO sold its Viking-Kinsella natural gas producing property, which had a net book value of
approximately $40 million, for $550 million. In accordance with an AEUB decision, $385.0 million plus related
adjustments for future abandonment and future income taxes of $20.6 million, for a total of $405.6 million, was
distributed to customers by way of lump sum payments.

ATCOQ’s share of the net proceeds was $150.5 million, after adjustments, resulting in a gain of $110.1 million before
income taxes of $42.8 million and non-controlling interests of $32.4 million. This sale increased earnings by
$34.9 million.

3. Interest and other income

2003 2002
Interest $25.9 $18.1
Allowance for funds used by regulated operations 4.4 3.6
Other 5.8 49
$36.1 $26.6

4. Income taxes

The income tax provision differs from that computed using the statutory tax rates for the following reasons:

2003 2002

Earnings before income taxes and non-controlling interests $457.6 % $533.3 %
Income taxes, at statutory rates $191.1 41.7 $2253 422
Federal general tax reduction ‘" 10.9) 2.4 .1 a7
Manufacturing and processing tax credit 3.1 (1.8) 7.3) 1.4)
Resource allowance 3.5) 0.8) 3.3) (0.6)
Crown royalties and other non-deductible Crown payments 11 0.3 1.8 03
Large Corporations Tax 9.0 2.0 7.8 1.5
Foreign tax rate variance 3.1 0.7) (6.9) (1.3)
Non-deductible interest on foreign financing 1.5 0.3 14 03
Change in future income taxes resulting from reduction in

tax rates 2.4 0.5) 3.2) (0.6)
Unrecorded future income taxes relating to regulated operations 7.1 1.6 49 0.9
Natural gas and other property disposals 0.6) 0.1 (10.8) 2.0)
Reduction in future income taxes resulting from a change in

tax legislation in Australia 8.9) 2.0) - -
Change in method of accounting for future income taxes in

certain regulated operations 6.8) (1.5) - -
Other (5.7) 1.2 (3.9) (0.7)

A 159.8 34.9 196.7 36.9

Current income taxes 160.9 155.5
Future income taxes (recoveries) $ (1.1) $ 41.2
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4. Income taxes (continued)

The future income tax liabilities (assets) comprise the following:

2003 2002
Property, plant and equipment $233.7 $256.1
Deferred assets and liabilities 322 19.1
Tax loss carryforwards 2.7 2.2)
Income tax reassessments (21.3) (21.3)
Other 2.8 0.1

244.7 251.8

Less: Amounts included in current future income taxes 11.5 16.6

$233.2 $235.2

)" The federal general tax reduction of 5% (2002 — 3%) is applicable to earnings that have not otherwise benefited

from the manufacturing and processing tax credit and/or the resource allowance. Effective January 1, 2003, an
additional federal tax reduction of 1% is applicable to earnings that have benefited from the resource allowance.

Unrecorded future income tax liabilities of the regulated operations amounted to $167.5 million at December 31,
2003. This balance includes $46.3 million in respect of Alberta Power (2000)’s generating plants, which will be
recovered through future payments received in respect of the PPA’s.

Expected future recoveries relating to tax loss carryforwards have been recorded in the amount of $2.7 million, of
which $1.5 million begins to expire in 2009 and $1.2 million does not expire. In addition, there are tax loss
carryforwards of $0.7 million for Canadian subsidiary corporations and tax loss carryforwards of $8.8 million for a
foreign subsidiary for which no tax benefit has been recorded. These losses begin to expire in 2007 and 2005,
respectively.

Income taxes paid amounted to $151.0 million (2002 — $281.1 million).

In 2001, ATCO received and paid income tax reassessments of $21.3 million, of which $12.9 million was assessed
to Canadian Utilities Limited, relating to the 1996 disposal of ATCOR Resources Ltd. Management did not agree
with this reassessment and contested the matter with tax authorities. Accordingly, the payment was recorded as a
reduction of future income tax liabilities. During 2003, ATCO was successful in appealing the reassessments to the
Tax Court of Canada. However, the Federal Government has commenced an appeal of the Tax Court’s decision
with the Federal Court of Appeal. Consequently, the future income tax reduction of $21.3 million has not been
adjusted.

5. Non-controlling interests

2003 2002
Non-controlling interests in Canadian Utilities:
Equity preferred shares
Cumulative Redeemable Second Preferred Shares, at 5.3% to 6.6% $ 426.5 $ 2765
Perpetual Cumulative Second Preferred Shares, at 5.05% to 5.25% 210.0 210.0
Class A non-voting and Class B common shares 944.0 885.3
$1,580.5 $1,371.8
Non-controlling interests in the earnings of Canadian Utilities:
Equity preferred share dividends $ 331 $ 182
Earnings attributable to Class A non-voting and Class B common shares 124.9 146.8
$ 158.0 $ 165.0
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6. Direct charges to retained earnings

Three Months Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31
2003 2002 2003 2002
(Unaudited)
Issue costs of equity preferred shares by a subsidiary
(after income taxes and non-controlling interests) $ - $1.4 $1.3 $1.4
Purchase of Class I shares 0.7 - 3.6 -
$0.7 $1.4 $4.9 $1.4
7. Property, plant and equipment
2003 2002
Composite
Depreciation Accumulated Accumulated
Rates Cost Depreciation Cost Depreciation
Utilities 3.6% $4,313.5 $1,618.2 $4,098.3 $1,546.4
Power generation 3.4% 2,910.0 793.2 2,783.4 720.5
Logistics and energy services 3.8% 1,073.7 384.1 1,046.2 355.1
Industrials 8.2% 142.5 48.3 1271 41.6
Other 13.2% 90.6 43.5 86.1 39.3
$8,530.3 2,887.3 $8,141.1 2,702.9
Property, plant and equipment,
less accumulated depreciation 5,643.0 5,438.2
Unamortized contributions
by utility customers for
extensions to plant 514.6 489.0
$5,128.4 $4,949.2

Accumulated depreciation includes amounts provided for future removal and site restoration costs, net of salvage

value, of $277.6 million (2002 — $259.4 million).

Composite depreciation rates reflect total depreciation in the year as a percentage of mid-year cost, excluding
construction work-in-progress of $313.3 million (2002 — $681.1 million) and non-depreciable assets of

$49.5 million (2002 — $42.8 million).

8. Other assets

Net accrued pension asset (Note 19)

Costs deferred for recovery through future regulated rates

Deferred costs related to disposition of retail energy businesses
Deferred financing charges
Deferred electricity costs

Other

2003 2002
$ 53.9 $ 50.2
257 27.6
10.8 8.5
30.9 329
- 3.0
19.6 17.9
$140.9 $140.1

9, Bank indebtedness and credit lines

At December 31, 2003, bank indebtedness consists of $5.6 million (2002 ~ $12.2 million), at interest rates from
2.4% to 4.5%, secured by a general assignment of accounts receivable, inventories and property, plant and

equipment of subsidiary corporations.
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9. Bank indebtedness and credit lines (continued)

At December 31, 2003, ATCO has the following credit lines that enable it to obtain financing for general business
purposes:

2003 2002
Total Used Available Total Used Available
Long term committed $ 584.6 $ 458 $ 538.8 $ 5850 $752 % 509.8
Short term committed 624.3 49.8 574.5 627.7 52.9 574.8
Uncommitted 243.4 36.6 206.8 273.3 22.5 250.8
$1,452.3 $132.2 $1,320.1 $1,486.0 $150.6 $1,335.4

10. Deferred electricity cost obligation

In December 2000, the Province of Alberta issued regulations providing for the deferral of price and volume
variance in excess of forecast amounts in respect of the supply of electricity by distributors to their customers for the
year ended December 31, 2000. In 2002, the AEUB issued decisions approving the collection by ATCO Electric of
its deferred costs from customers, and permitting ATCO Electric to sell these deferred costs and related rights.

In 2002, ATCO Electric sold deferred costs of $81 million to an unrelated purchaser for equivalent cash
consideration. GAAP required that this transaction be accounted for as a financing arrangement rather than a sale.
Accordingly, the cash received resulted in the recording of a deferred electricity cost obligation rather than a
reduction of deferred electricity costs. The obligation bore interest at 3.3975%, which approximated the interest
earned on the deferred costs. The obligation principal and interest incurred were paid to the purchaser as the
deferred costs and interest earned were collected from customers. At December 31, 2003, the outstanding obligation
was nil (2002 — $51.0 million).

11. Long term debt and non-recourse long term debt

Long term debt
2003 2002
Canadian Utilities
CU Inc. debentures — unsecured
1993 Series 7.25% due September 2003 $ - $ 600
1994 Series 8.73% due June 2004 100.0 100.0
1995 Series 8.43% due June 2005 125.0 125.0
2001 4.84% due November 2006 175.0 175.0
2002 4.801% due November 2007 50.0 50.0
2000 6.97% due June 2008 100.0 100.0
1989 Series 10.20% due November 2009 125.0 125.0
1990 Series 11.40% due August 2010 125.0 125.0
2000 7.05% due June 2011 100.0 100.0
2002 6.145% due November 2017 150.0 150.0
1999 Series 6.8% due August 2019 300.0 300.0
1990 Second Series 11.77% due November 2020 100.0 100.0
1991 Series 9.92% due April 2022 125.0 125.0
1992 Series 9.40% due May 2023 100.0 100.0
Canadian Utilities Limited debentures — unsecured
2002 6.14% due November 2012 100.0 100.0
1,775.0 1,835.0
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11. Long term debt and non-recourse long term debt (continued)

Long term debt (continued)

2003 2002
ATCO Power Australia Pty Ltd. credit facility, at Bank Bill rates,
due July 2004, payable in Australian dollars, unsecured ¥ 13.8 214
ATCO Midstream Ltd. credit facility, at BA rates - 8.0
ATCO Power Canada Ltd. credit facility, at BA rates, due March 2007,
secured by a pledge of cash ¥ 12.0 48.0
Other long term obligation, at 5.0%, due June 2005, unsecured 4.5 4.5
ATCO Investments Lid.
Term loan on ATCO Centre II, at BA rates, due March 2005, secured by
the building 6.9 7.4
ATCO Structures Inc.
Revolving loan, at BA rates, due May 2007, secured by property, plant
and equipment ¥ 17.0 11.0
Other long term obligations, at rates of 4.07% to 7.00% 1.4 0.7
ATCO Structures Pty Lid.
Term loan, at fixed rate of 5.8% - 2.2
Term loan, at fixed rate of 6.95%, due September 2004, payable in
Australian dollars, secured by property, plant and equipment 0.7 1.6
Revolving loan, at Bank Bill rates, due August 2006, payable in Australian
dollars, secured by property, plant and equipment 12.6 -
1,843.9 1,939.8
Less: Amounts due within one year 2.3 3.8
$1,841.6 $1,936.0
On January 20, 2004, CU Inc. issued $180.0 million of 5.432% Debentures for cash.
Non-recourse long term debt
2003 2002
Canadian Utilities
Barking Power Limited project financing, payable in British pounds:
At fixed rates averaging 7.95%, due to 2010 $ 80.8 $ 971
At LIBOR, due to 2010 ¢V 132.5 159.2
Osbome Cogeneration Pty Ltd. project financing, payable in Australian dollars:
At Bank Bill rates, due to 2013 ¥ 0.1 2.6
At 6.825%, due to 2013 ¢V 51.6 48.9
ATCO Resources (20%) and Canadian Utilities (80%)
ATCO Power Alberta Limited Partnership (“APALP”) project financing:
At 7.29% to 2008, at LIBOR thereafter, due to 2016 " 8.0 9.6
At 7.067% to 2008, at LIBOR thereafter, due to 2016 ¥ 11.2 134
At 7.25% t0 2011, at LIBOR thereafter, due to 2016 116.4 119.6
Joffre project financing:
At 6.435% to 2004, at BA rates thereafter, due to 2012 3.0 45
At7.161%, due to 2012 417 44.5
At 8.59%, due to 2020 40.0 40.0
12 ATCO



11. Long term debt and non-recourse long term debt (continued)

Non-recourse long term debt (continued)

2003 2002
Scotford project financing:
At 5.102%, due to 2008, at BA rates thereafter, due to 2014 ¥ 67.2 -
At 5.102%, due to 2008, at LIBOR thereafter, due to 2014 ¥ 17.2 -
At BA rates, due to 2014 ¥ . 68.4
AtLIBOR, due to 2014 (¥ - 174
At 7.93%, due to 2022 353 355
Muskeg River project financing:
At 5.147%, due 2007, at BA rates thereafter, due to 2014 63.7 66.4
At BA rates, due to 2014 ¥ 0.8 -
At 7.56%, due to 2022 43.6 44.8
Brighton Beach project financing:
At 5.325%, due to 2019 50.9 -
At 6.924%, due to 2024 138.2 138.2
Cory project financing:
At BA rates, due to 2011 ¥ 0.1 -
At 6.461%, due to 2011 ¥ 5.9 6.0
At 7.586%, due to 2024 48.5 48.5
At 7.601%, due to 2026 42.5 42.5
999.2 1,007.1
Less: Amounts due within one year 51.0 50.7
$948.2 $ 9564

BA - Bankers’ Acceptance
LIBOR - London Interbank Offered Rate

) The above interest rates have additional margin fees at a weighted average rate of 0.9% (2002 — 1.0%).

ATCO has fixed interest rates, either directly or through interest rate swap agreements, on 92% (2002 — 88%) of
total long term debt and non-recourse long term debt.

The non-recourse long term debt is secured by charges on the projects’ assets and by an assignment of the projects’
bank accounts, outstanding contracts and agreements. The book value of the pledged assets and bank accounts at
December 31, 2003 was $1,462.8 million (2002 — $1,393.2 million).

Guarantees

Canadian Utilities Limited has provided a number of guarantees related to ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’
obligations under their respective non-recourse loans associated with certain of their projects. ATCO Power (80%)
and ATCO Resources (20%) have a joint venture in these projects. ATCO Ltd. has indemnified and agreed to
reimburse Canadian Utilities Limited for any amounts it may be required to pay under these guarantees in respect of
ATCO Resources’ 20% interest. These guarantees cover the following items:

a) Equity contributions — Represents equity funding requirements needed to complete construction of the project
being built. At December 31, 2003, the maximum value of the obligation under this guarantee for the Brighton
Beach project financing is anticipated to be $44.2 million.

b) Completion of construction — Represents completion guarantees associated with project financing whereby
non-completion of a project by a certain date will require the repurchase of all or a portion of the project debt.
At December 31, 2003, the maximum value of the obligation under this guarantee for the Brighton Beach
project financing is $201.5 million, with an expiry date of September 30, 2006.
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11.

c)

d)

€)

Long term debt and non-recourse long term debt (continued)

Project cash flows — Represents annual payments related to maintaining base case margins for electricity
prices on the merchant power component of the project, being 30 megawatts (“MW”) for the Scotford project
and 60 MW for the Muskeg River project. These guarantees became effective upon the commercial operation
of the plants and exist until 2022, when the project debt is to be fully repaid. The amounts payable under these
guarantees will vary each year depending on the pool price received for the merchant power generated. Any
payments made to maintain the project base case margins will either be available for distribution to the owners
or be applied to mandatory prepayment of the project debt in accordance with the terms of the project financing
agreement depending upon the specific operating results of the plant. At December 31, 2003, $0.5 million was
payable for the Muskeg River and Scotford projects.

Reserve amounts — Represents amounts to be set aside for major maintenance and debt service reserves as
stipulated in the project’s financing agreement. These reserves are intended to be funded with project cash
flows. To the extent that project cash flows are insufficient to meet reserve requirements, Canadian Utilities
Limited may choose to provide guarantees in lieu of ATCO Power providing security. At December 31, 2003,
the amount of the obligations under these guarantees is:

Project Major Maintenance Debt Service
APALP project financing Nil $8.4
Joffre project financing Nil @ $6.0
Muskeg River project financing Nil ¥ $6.6
Scotford project financing Nil ¥ $6.6

" No major maintenance reserve required for this financing.
@ Reserve requirements of $1.8 million met with project cash flows.

Prepaid operating and maintenance fee — Should ATCO Power cease to be operator of the APALP
generating plants as a result of a termination of the operating agreement, Canadian Utilities Limited has
guaranteed the payment of the unamortized portion of the prepaid operating and maintenance fee to APALP, the
proceeds of which are to be used to repay project debt in accordance with the project financing agreements.
This guarantee, which declines by $1.5 million per year, remains in effect until 2016, when the project debt is to
be fully repaid. At December 31, 2003, the maximum value of the guarantee is $42.0 million.

Purchase project assets — Represents an obligation to purchase the Scotford and Muskeg River projects at a
price sufficient to repay any outstanding project debt upon the occurrence of any one of the following very
limited events:

(i) where all of the following events have occurred:
¢ the insolvency of ATCO Power;
¢ the failure of the project debt lenders to complete a sale of the project pursuant to their security
within a fixed period of time; and
e the project purchaser of electricity and steam elects to terminate its purchase contracts due to the
insolvency of ATCO Power;

(ii) where the project purchaser of electricity and steam does not remove ATCO Power as operator of the
project after an event of default under the project financing agreements in circumstances where such
default is either:

¢ adeliberate or willful breach of a project financing agreement; or
e  where ATCO Power has failed to co-operate with the lenders in a sale of the projects; and

(iti) where the project purchaser of electricity and steam terminates its purchase contracts for the project as
a result of a default by ATCO Power’s project minority joint venturers. ATCO Power has the right to
cure any such default by acquiring the minority interest which is in default.

These guarantees remain in effect until the project debt is fully repaid. At December 31, 2003, no such events
have occurred.
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11. Long term debt and non-recourse long term debt (continued)

Canadian Utilities Limited has also guaranteed ATCO Power’s duties to operate the Barking Power, Scotford and
Muskeg River generating plants in accordance with acceptable industry operating standards under the relevant
project contracts. Canadian Utilities Limited has guaranteed ATCO Power’s obligation to remediate certain
deficiencies at the Oldman River project in the amount of $3.0 million. In addition, Canadian Utilities Limited has
posted acceptable credit support in the amount of $2.7 million with respect to builders’ liens filed against the Cory
project.

To date, Canadian Utilities Limited has not been required to pay any of its guaranteed obligations.

Minimum debt repayments

The minimum annual debt repayments for each of the next five years are as follows:

Non-Recourse

Long Term Debt Long Term Debt Total

2004 $116.1 $ 510 $167.1
2005 136.1 557 191.8
2006 187.7 76.8 264.5
2007 79.0 61.3 140.3
2008 100.0 91.6 191.6
$618.9 $336.4 $955.3

Of the $167.1 miilion due in 2004, $113.8 million is to be refinanced and is, therefore, excluded from long term debt
due within one year in the balance sheet.

Interest expense

Interest on debt is as follows:

2003 2002
Long term debt $145.9 $147.0
Non-recourse long term debt 65.3 57.8
Notes payable : 0.6 0.6
Current bank indebtedness 6.0 8.8
Amortization of financing charges 2.9 ‘ 2.6
Less: Capitalized on non-regulated projects (21.8) (27.6)

$198.9 $189.2

Interest paid amounted to $219.3 million (2002 — $217.2 million).
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11. Long term debt and non-recourse long term debt (continued)

Fair values

Fair values for the above debt, determined using quoted market prices for the same or similar issues, are shown
below. Where market prices are not available, fair values are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis based on

ATCO’s current borrowing rate for similar borrowing arrangements.

2003 2002
Long term debt
Fixed rate $2,094.1 $2,158.9
Floating rate 64.0 96.4

$2,158.1 $2,255.3
Non-recourse long term debt
Fixed rate $ 9126 $ 7101
Floating rate 133.7 314.0

$1,046.3 $1,024.1
12. Deferred credits

2003 2002
Deferred availability incentives $ 43.3 $45.0
Deferred electricity cost recoveries 16.2 -
Accrued equipment repairs and maintenance 13.3 13.7
Net accrued post employment benefits (Note 19) 9.4 6.4
Other 22.1 12.4

$104.3 $77.5

Deferred availability incentives

Amortization of deferred availability incentives, which was recorded in revenues, amounted to $7.5 million in 2003

(2002 ~ nil).

The amount to be amortized is dependent upon estimates of future generating unit availability and future electricity
prices over the term of the PPA’s. Each quarter, ATCO uses these estimates to forecast best case, worst case and
most likely scenarios for the incentives to be received from, less penalties to be paid to, the PPA counterparties.
These forecasts are added to the accumulated unamortized deferred availability incentives outstanding at the end of
the quarter; the resulting total is divided by the remaining term of the PPA to arrive at the amortization for the

quarter.

Compared to the most likely scenario recorded in revenues, the best case scenario would have resulted in higher
revenues of approximately $4.0 million, whereas the worst case scenario would have resulted in lower revenues of

approximately $3.5 million.
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13. Equity preferred shares

Authorized and issued
Stated Redemption 2003 2002
Value Dates Shares Amount Shares Amount
(dollars)

ATCO Lid.

Cumulative Redeemable Second Preferred Shares

5.75% Series 3 $25.00 See below 6,000,000 $150.0 6,000,000 $150.0
Conversion by ATCO

On and after December 1, 2008, ATCO Ltd. may convert all or any of the Series 3 preferred shares into Class I Non-
Voting shares. The number of Class I Non-Voting shares into which each Series 3 preferred share may be converted
will be determined by dividing the applicable redemption price together with all accrued and unpaid dividends by
the greater of $2.00 and 95% of the weighted average trading price of Class I Non-Voting shares on The Toronto
Stock Exchange for a period of 20 consecutive trading days ending on the fourth day prior to the date specified for
conversion.

Conversion by the owner

On and after December 1, 2011, each Series 3 preferred share will be convertible at the option of the owner, on the
first day of March, June, September and December of each year, into that number of Class I Non-Voting shares
determined by dividing $25.00 together with all accrued and unpaid dividends by the greater'of $2.00 and 95% of
the then current market price of the Class I Non-Voting shares. If an owner of Series 3 preferred shares elects to
convert any of the shares into Class I Non-Voting shares, ATCO Ltd. may elect to redeem the Series 3 preferred
shares for cash or arrange for the sale of such shares to substitute purchasers. At any time, ATCO Ltd. may offer the
owners of the Series 3 preferred shares the right to convert into a further series of preferred shares.

Fair values

Fair values for preferred shares, determined using quoted market prices for the same or similar issues, are
$169.4 million (2002 — $163.5 million).

Redemption privileges
The Series 3 preferred shares are redeemable at the option of ATCO Ltd. commencing on December 1, 2008 at the

stated value plus a 4% premium for the next 12 months plus accrued and unpaid dividends. The redemption
premium declines by 2% in each succeeding 12 month period until December 1, 2010.
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14. Class I and Class II shares

Authorized and issued
Class I Non-Voting Class II Voting Total
Shares Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount
Authorized: 100,000,000 50,000,000 150,000,000
Issued and outstanding:
December 31, 2001 26,157,077 $133.9 3,576,255 $1.8 29,733,332 $135.7
Stock options exercised 83,400 2.0 - - 83,400 2.0
Converted: Class II to Class I 64,654 - (64,654) - - -
December 31, 2002 26,305,131 1359 3,511,601 1.8 29,816,732 137.7
Purchased (86,000) 0.4) - - (86,000) 0.4)
Stock options exercised 65,350 1.6 - - 65,350 1.6
Converted: Class II to Class I 2,800 - (2,800) - - -
December 31, 2003 26,287,281 $137.1 3,508,801 $1.8 29,796,082 $138.9

From January 1, 2004 to February 6, 2004, 9,150 Class I Non-Voting shares were issued with respect to the
exercises of stock options.

Earnings per share

Earnings per Class I Non-Voting and Class II Voting share is calculated by dividing the earnings attributable to
Class I and Class II shares by the weighted average shares outstanding. Diluted earnings per share is calculated
using the treasury stock method, which reflects the potential exercise of stock options on the weighted average
Class I Non-Voting and Class II Voting shares outstanding. The average number of shares used to calculate
earnings per share are as follows:

Three Months Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31
2003 2002 2003 2002
(Unaudited)
Weighted average shares outstanding 29,777,169 29,809,651 29,790,760 29,790,426
Effect of dilutive stock options 400,694 408,300 381,635 466,845
Weighted average diluted shares outstanding 30,177,863 30,217,951 30,172,395 30,257,271

Share owner rights

Each Class II Voting share may be converted to one Class I Non-Voting share at the share owner’s option. In the
event an offer to purchase Class II Voting shares is made to all owners of Class II Voting shares, and is accepted and
taken up by the owners of a majority of such shares pursuant to such offer, then provided an offer is not made to the
owners of Class I Non-Voting shares on the same terms and conditions, the Class I Non-Voting shares shall be
entitled to the same voting rights as the Class IT Voting shares. The two classes of shares rank equally in all other
respects.
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14. Class I and Class II shares (continued)
Normal course issuer bid

On May 27, 2002, ATCO Ltd. commenced a normal course issuer bid for the purchase of up to 3% of the
outstanding Class I Non-Voting shares. The offer expired on May 26, 2003. Over the life of the offer, 20,700
shares were purchased, all of which were purchased in 2003. On May 27, 2003, ATCO Ltd. commenced a normal
course issuer bid for the purchase of up to 3% of the outstanding Class I Non-Voting shares. The ofter will expire
on May 26, 2004, From May 27, 2003, to February 6, 2004, 65,300 shares have been purchased, all of which were
purchased in 2003.

15. Stock based compensation plans

Stock option plan

ATCO Ltd. has a stock option plan under which 2,550,000 Class I Non-Voting shares are reserved for issuance in
respect of options. Options may be granted to directors, officers and key employees of ATCO Ltd. and its
subsidiaries at an exercise price equal to the weighted average of the trading price of the shares on The Toronto
Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant. The vesting provisions and

exercise period (which cannot exceed 10 years) are determined at the time of grant.

Changes in shares under option are summarized below:

2003 2002

Class I Weighted Average Class I Weighted Average

Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price
Options at beginning of year 1,227,550 $30.58 1,251,550 $29.28
Granted 40,000 43.30 60,500 48.08
Exercised (65,350) 24.31 {83,400) 23.71
Settled - - (1,100) 37.92
Options at end of year 1,202,200 $31.34 1,227,550 $30.58

Information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2003 is summarized below:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Average
Range of Class I Remaining Weighted Average Class I Weighted Average
Exercise Prices Shares Contractual Life Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price

$14.03 - $23.70 457,750 2.1 $19.10 457,750 $19.10
$34.53 - $37.99 223,800 5.0 36.44 194,600 36.52
$38.18 - $53.46 520,650 6.5 39.91 341,350 38.72
$14.03 - $53.46 1,202,200 4.6 $31.34 993,700 $29.25

In 2003, ATCO Ltd. granted 40,000 options to purchase Class I Non-Voting shares to officers and certain key

employees at a weighted average exercise price of $43.30 per share. The options have a term of ten years and vest
over the first five years.
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15. Stock based compensation plans (continued)

Had ATCO adopted the fair value based method of accounting for stock options granted on and after
January 1, 2002, earnings would have been reduced by $0.4 million (2002 — $0.1 million) and earnings per share
and diluted earnings per share would have been reduced by $0.01 per share (2002 - nil). The reduction in earnings
was determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, which estimated the weighted average value of the
options granted during 2003 at $7.93 per option (2002 — $11.00 per option) using the following assumptions:

2003 2002
Risk free interest rate 43 % 49 %
Expected holding period prior to exercise 6.3 years 6.5 years
Share price volatility 19.4 % 19.7 %
Estimated annual Class I share dividend 30 % 24 %

Share appreciation rights

Directors, officers and key employees of ATCO may be granted share appreciation rights that are based on Class I
Non-Voting shares of ATCO Ltd. or Class A non-voting shares of Canadian Utilities Limited. The vesting
provisions and exercise period (which cannot exceed 10 years) are determined at the time of grant. The base value
of the share appreciation rights is equal to the weighted average of the trading price of the Class I Non-Voting shares
and the Class A non-voting shares, respectively, on The Toronto Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant. The holder is entitled on exercise to receive a cash payment equal to any
increase in the market price of the Class I Non-Voting shares and the Class A non-voting shares, respectively, over
the base value of the share appreciation rights exercised.

Share appreciation rights expense amounted to $4.9 million (2002 — $0.4 million income).

16. Changes in non-cash working capital

2003 2002
Operating activities, changes related to:
Accounts receivable $(96.3) $ (11.8)
Inventories (56.4) 11.8
Deferred natural gas costs 4.0 (27.3)
Deferred electricity costs 21.7 6.7
Prepaid expenses 0.9) 10.7)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 67.0 (31.0)
Income taxes 7.7 (126.2)
Future income taxes (5.0) 18.5

$(58.2) $(170.0)
Investing activities, changes related to:
Inventories $ 05 $ 20
Prepaid expenses 0.3 2.0
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (33.9) (7.1)

$(33.1) $ (7.1

Financing activities, changes related to.
Accounts receivable $ 71 $ 72
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities - 1.0
$ 7.1 $ 82
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17. Joint ventures

ATCO’s interest in joint ventures is summarized below:

2003 2002

Statement of earnings
Revenues $ 4611 $ 398.6
Operating expenses 317.0 284.6
Depreciation and amortization 39.0 275
Interest ‘ 39.0 27.3

66.1 59.2
Interest and other income 5.5 4.8
Earnings from joint ventures before income taxes $ 716 $§ 64.0
Balance sheet
Current assets $ 158.0 $ 1716
Current liabilities (129.3) (122.8)
Property, plant and equipment 1,151.1 1,083.1
Deferred items — net (58.0) (82.1)
Long term debt (0.1) 0.4)
Non-recourse long term debt (706.3) (712.0)
Investment in joint ventures $ 4154 $ 3374
Statement of cash flows
Operating activities $ 899 $ 510
Investing activities (130.7) (176.7)
Financing activities 19.9 1044
Foreign currency translation 4.7) 4.5
Decrease in cash position $ (25.6) $ (16.8)

Current assets include cash of $58.7 million (2002 — $81.5 million) which is only available for use within the joint
ventures.

18. Related party transactions

In transactions with entities related through common control, ATCO sold and rented manufactured product and
recovered administrative expenses totaling $1.0 million (2002 — $0.2 million) and incurred advertising and
promotion expenses and administrative expenses totaling $1.5 million (2002 — $1.6 million). These transactions are
in the normal course of business and under normal commercial terms.

19. Employee future benefits

ATCO maintains defined benefit and defined contribution pension plans for most of its employees and provides
other post employment benefits, principally health, dental and life insurance, for retirees and their dependants. The
defined benefit pension plans provide for pensions based on employees’ length of service and final average earnings.
As of 1997, new employees of Canadian Utilities automatically participate in the defined contribution pension plans
and employees participating in the Canadian Utilities defined benefit pension plans may transfer to the defined
contribution pension plans at any time. Upon transfer, further accumulation of benefits under the defined benefit
pension plans ceases.
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19. Employee future benefits (continued)

Information about ATCOQ’s benefit plans, in aggregate, is as follows:

2003 2002
Other Post Other Post
Pension Employment Pension  Employment
Benefit Benefit Benefit Benefit
Plans Plans Plans Plans

Benefit plan assets, obligations and funded status
Market value of plan assets:
Beginning of year $1,238.4 $ - $1,370.2 $ -
Actual return (loss) on plan assets 165.4 - 97.6) -
Employee contributions 5.5 - 5.7 -
Benefit payments (35.6) - (36.2) -
Payments to defined contribution plans 3.3) - 3.7 -
End of year $1,370.4 $ - $1,238.4 $ -
Accrued benefit obligations:
Beginning of year $ 998.4 $ 49.0 $ 9284 $ 455
Current service cost 223 2.0 19.3 1.4
Interest cost 68.3 3.9 62.0 3.1
Employee contributions 5.5 - 5.7 -
Benefit payments from plan assets (35.6) - (36.2) -
Benefit payments by employer 4.2) a7 (2.0) (1.8
Experience losses 89.7 10.6 212 0.8
End of year $1,144.4 $ 63.8 $ 9984 $ 49.0
Funded status:
Excess (deficiency) of assets over obligations $ 226.0 $(63.8) $ 2400 $(49.0)
Amounts not yet recognized in financial statements:
Unrecognized net experience losses 281.9 13.9 277.6 3.7
Unrecognized net transitional liability (asset) (325.5) 28.0 (358.8) 30.3
Accrued asset (liability) 182.4 (21.9) 158.8 (15.0)
Regulatory asset (liability) ¥’ (128.5) 12.5 (108.6) 8.6
Net accrued asset (liability) recognized (Notes 8, 12) $ 539 $ (94) $ 502 $ (6.4)

@ Pension plan benefit payments are indexed to increases in the Canadian Consumer Price Index to a maximum

increase of 3% per annum.

@ Changes in liability discount rate and long term inflation rate assumptions resulted in experience losses in 2003

of approximately $72.0 million for the pension benefit plans and $2.0 million for the other post employment

benefit plans.
©®  The regulatory asset (liability) reflects an AEUB decision to record costs of employee future benefits in the
regulated operations, excluding Alberta Power (2000), when paid rather than accrued.
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19. Employee future benefits (continued)

2003 2002
Other Post Other Post
Pension Employment  Pension Employment
Benefit Benefit Benefit Benefit
Plans Plans Plans Plans
Benefit plan expense (income)
Components of benefit plan expense (income):
Current service cost $ 223 $2.0 $ 193 $1.4
Interest cost 68.3 39 62.0 3.1
Expected return on plan assets 94.1) - (102.8) -
Amortization of net experience losses 14.1 04 0.1 -
Amortization of net transitional liability (asset) (33.3) 2.3 (3L.5) 2.3
Defined benefit plans expense (income) 22.7) 8.6 (52.9) 6.8
Defined contribution plans expense 4.5 - 5.5 -
Total expense (income) (18.2) 8.6 47.4) 6.8
Less: Capitalized 1.0 2.0 0.6 L5
Less: Unrecognized defined benefit plans expense
(income) ¥ (19.5) 2.5 (41.3) L5
Net expense (income) recognized $ 0.3 $4.1 $ (6.7 $3.8

' The unrecognized defined benefit plans expense (income) reflects an AEUB decision to record costs of

employee future benefits in the regulated operations, excluding Alberta Power (2000), when paid rather than
accrued.

Weighted average assumptions

2003 2002
Other Post Other Post
Pension Employment Pension  Employment
Benefit Benefit Benefit Benefit
Plans Plans Plans Plans
Assumptions regarding benefit plan expense (income):
Expected long term rate of return on plan assets
for the year 7.5% - 8.0% -
Interest rate for the year 6.5% 6.5% 6.9% 6.9%
Average compensation increase for the year 2.75% - 3.0% -
Assumptions regarding accrued benefit obligations:
Liability discount rate at December 31 6.25% 6.25% 6.5% 6.5%
Long term inflation rate 2.5% 1) 2.25% ()

) The assumed annual health care cost trend rate increases used in measuring the accumulated post employment

benefit obligation are as follows: for drug costs, 10.5% for 2003 grading down over 10 years to 4.5%
(2002 - 8.85% for 2002 grading down over 5 years to 4.0%), and, for other medical and dental costs, 4.0% for
2003 and thereafter (2002 — 3.5% for 2002 and thereafter).
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19. Employee future benefits (continued)

The sensitivities of key assumptions used in measuring accrued benefit obligations and benefit plan expense
(income) for 2003 are outlined in the following table. The sensitivities of each key assumption have been calculated
independently of changes in other key assumptions. Actual experience may result in changes in a number of
assumptions simultaneously.

2003 Pension 2003 Other Post
Benefit Plans Employment Benefit Plans
Accrued Benefit Accrued Benefit

Benefit Plan Expense Benefit Plan Expense
Obligation (Income) Obligation (Income)

Expected long term rate of return on plan assets

1% increase ‘¥ $(3.9)
1% decrease $3.9
Liability discount rate
1% increase : $(57.4) $(0.9) $(3.0) $(0.3)
1% decrease $574 $0.9 $3.0 $0.3
Long term inflation rate ®
1% increase $38.0 $0.6 $26 $0.5
1% decrease ‘" $(38.0) $(0.6) $(2.2) $(0.4)

(" Sensitivities are net of the associated regulatory asset (liability) and unrecognized defined benefit plans expense

(income), which reflect an AEUB decision to record costs of employee future benefits in the regulated
operations, excluding Alberta Power (2000), when paid rather than accrued.

@ The long term inflation rate for other post employment benefit plans is the assumed annual health care cost trend
rate described in the weighted average assumptions.

Pension benefit plan assets

2003 2002
Amount % Amount %

Plan asset mix:
Equity securities V $ 8452 617 $ 7473 603
Fixed incorg? securities 460.3  33.6 4205 340
Real estate 33.0 24 38.0 3.1
Cash and other assets ¥ 31.9 2.3 32.6 2.6

$1,370.4 100.0 $1,238.4 100.0

M Equity securities consist of investments in domestic and foreign preferred and common shares. At

December 31, 2003, the market values of investments in United States’ securities and international equities,
denominated in a number of different currencies, are $137.3 million and $151.6 million, respectively
(2002 - $140.0 million and $136.2 million, respectively).

Fixed income securities consist of investments in federal and provincial government and corporate bonds and
debentures.

Real estate consists of investments in closed-end real estate funds.

Cash and other assets consist of cash, short term notes and money market funds.

@

3)
(C]
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19. Employee future benefits (continued)

At December 31, 2003, plan assets include Class I Non-Voting shares of ATCO Ltd. having a market value of
$9.7 million (2002 ~ $8.7 million), Class A non-voting and Class B common shares of Canadian Utilities Limited
having a market value of $12.4 million (2002 - $11.0 million) and long term debt of CU Inc. having a market value
of $1.8 million (2002 — $1.7 million).

Funding

Employees are required to contribute a percentage of their salary to the defined benefit pension plans. ATCO is
required to provide the balance of the funding, based on triennial actuarial valuations, necessary to ensure that
benefits will be fully provided for at retirement. Based on the most recent actuarial valuation for funding purposes
as of December 31, 2002, ATCO is continuing a contribution holiday that began on April 1, 1996. The next
actuarial valuation for funding purposes is required as of December 31, 2005.

Included in the accrued benefit obligations are certain supplementary defined benefit pension plans that are paid by
ATCO out of general revenues. These supplementary plans had accrued benefit obligations of $79.9 million at
December 31, 2003 (2002 - $67.0 million).

20. Risk management and financial instruments

ATCO is exposed to changes in interest rates, commodity prices and foreign currency exchange rates. The Power
Generation segment is affected by the cost of natural gas and the price of electricity in the Province of Alberta and
the Logistics and Energy Services segment is affected by the cost of natural gas and the price of natural gas liquids.
In conducting its business, ATCO uses various instruments, including forward contracts, swaps and options, to
manage the risks arising from fluctuations in exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices. All such
instruments are used only to manage risk and not for trading purposes.

Interest rate risk

Long term debt and non-recourse long term debt have variable interest rates that have been hedged through the
following interest rate swap agreements:

Swap Fixed Variable Debt Completion Principal/Face Value

Interest Rate " Interest Rate Date 2003 2002
6.435% 90 day BA December 2004 $ 3.0 $ 45
5.147% 90 day BA December 2007 63.7 66.4
5.102% 90 day BA September 2008 84.4 -
7.290% 90 day BA November 2008 8.0 9.6
7.067% 90 day BA December 2008 11.2 134
6.461% 90 day BA June 2011 5.9 6.0
7.250% 6 month LIBOR December 2011 116.4 119.6
7.161% 90 day BA September 2012 42.8 44.5
6.825% Bank Bill Rate in Australia June 2013 51.6 489
6.575% 90 day BA March 2019 50.9 11.4
$437.9 $324.3

BA - Bankers’ Acceplance
LIBOR - London Interbank Offered Rate

" The above swap fixed interest rates include any long term debt margin fees (Note 11).
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20. Risk management and financial instruments (continued)
Foreign exchange rate risk

ATCO has exposure to changes in the carrying values of its foreign operations, including assets and liabilities, as a
result of changes in exchange rates.

ATCO has entered into foreign exchange forward contracts in order to fix the exchange rate on certain planned
equipment expenditures denominated in U.S. dollars and operational cash flows denominated in EUROs. At
December 31, 2003, the contracts consist of purchases of $0.5 million U.S. (2002 — $3.3 million U.S.), and there
were no contracts outstanding to sell U.S. dollars (2002 — $1.9 million U.S.) or to purchase EUROs
(2002 - 4.1 million EUROs).

Energy commodity price risk

As a result of an AEUB approved storage plan related to the Carbon storage facility, ATCO has entered into certain
energy contracts to fix the price of natural gas for the customers of the Utilities segment. All associated costs and
benefits of these contracts are passed to customers through regulated rates and, accordingly, ATCO does not bear
any risk for price fluctuations provided that the contracts are in accordance with the storage plan. At December 31,
2003, the contracts consist of natural gas sales of 151 terajoules (“TJ”) for $1.0 million (2002 — 3,774.4 TJ for
$22.4 million) and natural gas purchases of 151 TJ for $1.0 million (2002 — nil).

Fair values

The fair values of derivatives have been estimated using year-end market rates. These fair values approximate the
amount that ATCO would either pay or receive to settle the contract at December 31.

2003 2002
Fair Value Fair Value

Notional (Payable) Notional (Payable)

Principal _ Receivable Maturity Principal  Receivable Maturity
Interest rate swaps $437.7 $(17.4)  2004-2019 $324.9 $(16.9) 2004-2019
Foreign exchange

forward contracts $ 07 Nil 2004 $ 139 $ 1.0 2003

Credit risk

Derivative credit risk arises from the possibility that a counterparty to a contract fails to perform according to the
terms and conditions of that contract. Derivative credit risk is minimized by dealing with large, credit-worthy
counterparties in accordance with established credit approval policies. Accounts receivable credit risk is reduced by
a large and diversified customer base, requirement of letters of credit and, for regulated operations other than
Alberta Power (2000), the ability to recover an estimate for doubtful accounts through approved customer rates.
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21. Commitments and contingencies
Commitments

ATCO has contractual obligations in the normal course of business, including long term operating leases for
manufacturing facilities, office premises and equipment. Future minimum lease payments are as follows:

Total of All
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Subsequent Years
$13.6 $12.0 111 $10.2 $9.8 $15.2

Contingencies

ATCO is party to a number of disputes and lawsuits in the normal course of business. Management is confident that
the ultimate liability arising from these matters will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

22. Regulatory matters

The AEUB issued decisions regarding ATCO Gas’, ATCO Electric’s and ATCO Pipelines’ general rate applications
on October 1, 2003, October 2, 2003, and December 2, 2003, respectively. These decisions approved, among other
things, for ATCO Electric, a rate of return on common equity of 9.4% and a common equity ratio of 32% for
transmission operations and 35% for distribution operations for 2003, for ATCO Gas, a rate of return on common
equity of 9.5% and a common equity ratio of 37% for 2003 and 2004, and, for ATCO Pipelines, a rate of return on
common equity of 9.5% and a common equity ratio of 43.5% for 2003.

ATCO Electric’s and ATCO Pipelines’ 2004 rate of return on common equity and the common equity ratios for the
transmission and distribution operations will be determined as part of a generic cost of capital hearing which
commenced in November 2003.

The companies, as directed by the AEUB, have refiled the 2003 and 2004 general rate applications incorporating the
findings in the decisions. In a decision dated February 17, 2004, the AEUB issued its final determination of the
revenue requirements for ATCO Electric for the 2003 and 2004 test years, accepting the refiling with no material
changes. The AEUB has not yet issued its determination of the revenue requirements for ATCO Gas and ATCO
Pipelines for the 2003 and 2004 test years following the refilings. It is expected that such determination will not
have a material effect on the accounts of ATCO.

ATCO has a number of other regulatory filings and regulatory hearing submissions before the AEUB for which
decisions have not been received. The outcome of these matters cannot be determined.
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23. Segmented information
Description of segments
ATCO operates in the following business segments:

The Utilities Business Group includes the regulated distribution of natural gas by ATCO Gas, the regulated
distribution and transmission of electric energy by ATCO Electric and its subsidiaries, Northland Utilities (NWT),
Northland Utilities (Yellowknife) and Yukon Electrical, the regulated transmission and distribution of water by
CU Water, and the provision of non-regulated engineering, procurement and construction services for customers in
the utility, energy and telecommunications sectors by ATCO Utility Services.

The Power Generation Business Group includes the non-regulated supply of electricity and cogeneration steam by
ATCO Power and ATCO Resources and the regulated supply of electricity by Alberta Power (2000).

The Logistics and Energy Services Business Group includes the regulated transportation of natural gas by ATCO
Pipelines, the non-regulated gathering, processing, storage, purchase and sale of natural gas by ATCO Midstream
and the provision of project management and technical services for customers in the industrial, defence and
transportation sectors by ATCO Frontec.

The Industrials Business Group includes the manufacture, sale and lease of transportable workforce shelter and
space rentals products by ATCO Structures and the design and construction of buildings to reduce noise emissions
from industrial facilities by ATCO Noise Management.

The Technologies Business Group and Other Businesses includes the development, operation and support of
information systems and technologies by ATCO I-Tek, the provision of billing services, payment processing, credit,
collection and call centre services by ATCO I-Tek Business Services, the sale of fly ash and other combustion
byproducts produced in coal fired electrical generating plants by ASHCOR Technologies, the manufacture of wood
preservation products by Genics and the sale of travel services to both business and consumer sectors by ATCO
Travel. In addition, ATCO Investments owns commercial real estate in Calgary, Alberta, and Canadian Utilities
Limited owns commercial real estate in Fort McMurray, Alberta.

Segmented results — Three months ended December 31

Logistics Technologies
2003 Power & Energy & Other Intersegment
2002 Utilities Generation Services  Industrials _ Businesses Corporate  Eliminations _ Consolidated
(Unaudited)
Revenues — $632.5 $1796 $1426 $51.0 $ 32 $ - $ - $1,008.9
external $603.3 $1732 $156.8 $45.7 $ 45 $ - $ - $ 9835
Revenues - 153 - 172.9 0.1 31.8 2.8 (222.9) -
intersegment 23.8 - 107.5 0.2 234 2.8 (157.7) -
Revenues $647.8 $179.6 $315.5 $51.1 $35.0 $28 $(222.9) $1,008.9
$627.1 $173.2 $264.3 $45.9 $27.9 328 $(157.7) 3 983.5
Eamings attributable
to Class L and $ 18.8 $184 § 74 $ - $ 27 $(4.6) $ 01 $ 42.8
Class I shares $ 13.8 $121  $100  $(03) $1.6  $08 $ 08 $ 372

™" Intersegment revenues are recognized on the basis of prevailing market or regulated prices.
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23. Segmented information (continued)

Segmented results — Year ended December 31

Logistics Technologies
2003 Power & Energy & Other Intersegment
2002 Utilities Generation Services  Industrials  Businesses Corporate  Eliminations  Consolidated
Revenues ~ $2,409.8 $ 6774 $ 665.6 $154.2 $ 227 $ - $ - $3,929.7
external $1,781.1 $ 6049 $ 594.6 $201.7 $ 140 $ - $ - $3,196.3
Revenues - 68.4 - 597.8 0.2 107.5 114 (785.3) -
intersegment 86.1 - 339.1 0.5 92.2 11.1 (529.0) -
Revenues 2,478.2 677.4 1,263.4 154.4 130.2 114 (785.3) 3,929.7
1,867.2 604.9 933.7 202.2 106.2 11.1 (529.0) 3,196.3
Operating expenses 2,084.4 373.8 1,119.0 139.6 87.9 114 (791.5) 3,024.6
1,516.7 351.6 765.7 176.4 77.7 6.1 (540.8) 2,3534
Depreciation and 138.6 82.3 41.6 114 10.3 0.5 - 284.7
amortization 126.8 704 42.1 10.1 7.7 0.5 (0.5) 2571
Interest expense 93.6 81.3 223 1.5 1.1 146.3 147.2) 198.9
96.3 71.7 24.6 12 1.1 1445 (150.2) 189.2
Gain on sale of
Viking-Kinsella - - - - - - - -
property (110.1) - - - - - - (110.1)
Interest and other 7.4) 7.5 6.9 1.5) 0.5) (159.5) 147.2 (36.1)
income (11.0) (7.2 (5.1 1.0 (0.2) (152.3) 150.2 (26.6)
Earnings before
income taxes and
non-controlling 169.0 147.5 874 34 314 12.7 6.2 457.6
interests 248.5 118.4 106.4 15.5 19.9 12.3 123 5333
Income taxes 62.6 50.3 24.8 0.8 11.8 7.4 21 159.8
92.4 41.3 40.3 4.5 83 5.7 4.2 196.7
106.4 97.2 62.6 2.6 19.6 53 4.1 297.8
156.1 77.1 66.1 11.0 116 6.6 8.1 336.6
Dividends on equity - - - - - 8.6 - 8.6
preferred shares . . - - - 8.6 - 8.6
Non-controlling 55.7 48.3 31.1 - 9.2 11.7 2.0 158.0
Interests 79.5 39.5 32.7 - 5.3 4.0 4.0 165.0
Eamings attributable
to Ciass [ and $ 507 $ 489 § 315 $ 2.6 $ 104 $ (15.0) $ 21 $ 131.2
Class II shares $ 766 $ 376 $ 334 $ 110 $ 63 $ (60) $ 4l $ 163.0
Total assets $2,850.0 $2,412.2 $ 8379 $159.5 $ 714 $236.6 $ 236 $6,591.2
$2,630.9 $2,381.2 $ 806.1 $136.5 $ 64.6 $340.4 $ 436 $6,403.3
Allocation of $ 357 $ 231 §$ 124 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 712
goodwill $ 357 $ 231 $ 124 3 - $ - 3 - 3 - $ 71.2
Purchase of property $ 3143 $ 1527 $ 375 $ 227 $ 116 $ 038 $ - $ 5396
plant and equipment ¢ 2745 $ 2890 $ 489 $ 264 $ 10.0 $ 04 3$ - $ 649.2
" Intersegment revenues are recognized on the basis of prevailing market or regulated prices.
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23. Segmented information (continued)

Geographic segments

Domestic Foreign Consolidated
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Revenues $3,578.9 $2,784.3 $350.8 $412.0 $3,929.7  $3,196.3
Property, plant and equipment
and goodwill $4,779.8  $4,576.0 $419.8  $444.4 $5,199.6  $5,020.4

24. Sale of Retail operations

In December 2002, Direct Energy Marketing Limited (“Direct Energy”) agreed to purchase the retail energy
businesses of ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric, subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions, including the receipt
of required regulatory approvals and the government of Alberta amending certain natural gas and electricity
legislation.

In December 2003, the AEUB issued decisions approving the transfer of the retail operations of ATCO Gas and
ATCO Electric to Direct Energy, appointing Direct Energy provider of the natural gas Default Rate Tariff and
electricity Regulated Rate Tariff in the ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric service territories and approving the tariff
rate structure of Direct Energy Regulated Services, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric. The City of Calgary has filed
leave to appeal the AEUB decision approving the transfer of the retail operations. ATCO is reviewing the AEUB
decisions and certain other conditions which must be satisfied in order to close the sale of its retail business to Direct
Energy.

If the sale does close on the anticipated terms, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric will no longer be involved in
arranging for the supply and sale of natural gas and electricity to customers, but will continue to provide
transportation and distribution services under AEUB approved rates that provide for a recovery of costs of service
and fair return. The sale does not include any of the distribution and transmission facilities used to deliver natural
gas and electricity to customers.
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ATCO LTD. & CANADIAN UTILITIES LIMITED
Corporate Head Office: 1500, 909 -11 Avenue S.W. Calgary, Alberta T2R 1N6 Telephone: (403) 292-7500 Fax: (403) 292-7532

For Immediate Release
)
March 10, 2004 f:
n
ATCO LTD. .,
December 2003 Financial Statements and MD&A Available :

™3

CALGARY, Alberta ~ ATCO Ltd. today announced that its consolidated financial statements and
management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations for the three
months and year ended December 31, 2003 and its 2003 annual information form can be accessed on
ATCO Ltd.’s website (www.atco.com) or via SEDAR (www.sedar.com) or can be requested from the
company.

The consolidated financial statements and management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition
and results of operations will be included in ATCO’s 2003 Annual Report, which will be mailed to share
owners on or about April 16, 2004, together with the notice of meeting and management proxy circular
relating to ATCO’s annual meeting of share owners, which will be held on May 19, 2004.

ATCO Group is an Alberta based corporation with a worldwide organization of companies engaged in
Power Generation, Utilities, Logistics and Energy Services, Technologies and Industrials. More

information about ATCO can be found on its website, www.atco.com.

For further information contact:

J.A. (Jim) Campbell K.M. (Karen) Watson
Senior Vice President, Finance Vice President, Finance & Controller
& Chief Financial Officer (403) 292-7528

(403) 292-7502
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ATCOLTD.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations of ATCO Ltd. (the
“Corporation”) should be read in conjunction with the Corporation’s unaudited comparative interim financial
statements for the three months ended December 31, 2003, and the audited comparative financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2003. Additional information relating to the Corporation, including the Corporation’s
Annual Information Form, is available on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

All quarterly information in this document is shaded to differentiate it from the annual information.

The common share capital of the Corporation consists of Class I Non-Voting Shares (“Class I shares”) and Class II
Voting Shares (“Class II shares”).

The consolidated financial staternents include the accounts of ATCO Ltd. and all of its subsidiaries. The principal
subsidiaries are Canadian Utilities Limited (“Canadian Utilities™), of which ATCO Ltd. owns 40.2% of the Class A
non-voting shares and 73.4% of the Class B common shares, for an aggregate ownership of 51.8%, and ATCO
Structures Inc. (“ATCO Structures”), ATCO Noise Management Ltd. (‘ATCO Noise Management”) and ATCO
Resources Ltd. (“ATCO Resources”), of which ATCO Ltd. owns 100% of the Class A non-voting and Class B
common shares. Canadian Utilities has published its comparative financial statements and its management’s
discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2003.
Copies of these documents may be obtained upon request from the Vice President, Human Resources and Corporate
Secretary of Canadian Utilities at 1400 ATCO Centre, 909-1 1" Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta T2R 1NG6 (telephone
(403) 292-7500 or fax (403) 292-7623).

FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Certain statements contained in this discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations
constitute forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are often, but not always, identified by the use
of words such as "anticipate”, "plan”, "estimate", "expect”, "may", "will", "intend", “"should”, and similar
expressions. These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause
actual results or events to differ materially from those anticipated in such forward-looking statements. The
Corporation believes that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, but no
assurance can be given that these expectations will prove to be correct and such forward-looking statements should
not be unduly relied upon.

In particular, this discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations contains forward-looking
statements pertaining to purchase obligations, planned capital expenditures, anticipated completion dates and
construction costs of major projects, the impact of changes in government regulation, non-regulated generating
capacity subject to long term contracts and Industrials Business Group market developments. The Corporation's
actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of
regulatory decisions, competitive factors in the industries in which the Corporation operates, and prevailing
economic conditions, as well as other factors, many of which are beyond the control of the Corporation.

BUSINESS OF THE CORPORATION

The Corporation’s financial statements are consolidated from five Business Groups: Utilities, Power Generation,
Logistics and Energy Services, Industrials, and Technologies. For the purposes of financial disclosure, the
Technologies Business Group is included in Technologies and Other Businesses and corporate transactions are
accounted for as Corporate (see Note 23 to the comparative financial statements). Transactions between Business
Groups are eliminated in all reporting of the Corporation’s consolidated financial information.
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The Utilities Business Group includes the regulated distribution of natural gas by ATCO Gas, the regulated
distribution and transmission of electric energy by ATCO Electric and its subsidiaries, Northland Utilities (NWT),
Northland Utilities (Yellowknife) and Yukon Electrical, the regulated transmission and distribution of water by CU
Water, and the provision of non-regulated engineering, procurement and construction services for customers in the
utility, energy and telecommunications sectors by ATCO Utility Services.

The Power Generation Business Group includes the non-regulated supply of electricity and cogeneration steam by
ATCO Power and ATCO Resources and the regulated supply of electricity by Alberta Power (2000).

The Logistics and Energy Services Business Group includes the regulated transportation of natural gas by ATCO
Pipelines, the non-regulated gathering, processing, storage, purchase and sale of natural gas by ATCO Midstream,
and the provision of project management and technical services for customers in the industrial, defence and
transportation sectors by ATCO Frontec.

The Industrials Business Group includes the manufacture, sale and lease of transportable workforce shelter and
space rentals products by ATCO Structures and the design and construction of buildings to reduce noise emissions
from industrial facilities by ATCO Noise Management.

The Technologies Business Group and Other Businesses includes the development, operation and support of
information systems and technologies by ATCO I-Tek, the provision of billing services, payment processing, credit,
collection and call centre services by ATCO I-Tek Business Services, the sale of fly ash and other combustion
byproducts produced in coal-fired electrical generating plants by ASHCOR Technologies, the manufacture of wood
preservation products by Genics, and the sale of travel services to both business and consumer sectors by ATCO
Travel. In addition, ATCO Investments owns commercial real estate in Calgary, Alberta, and Canadian Utilities
owns commercial real estate in Fort McMurray, Alberta.
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SELECTED ANNUAL AND QUARTERLY INFORMATION
($ Millions except per share data)

Year
For the Three Months Ended Ended
Mar Jun Sep Dec Dec 31
(unaudited)
Revenues: .
2003 .o v ©1,4152 839.9 665.7 1,008.9 3,929.7
2002 .. e ¢ 9171 697.2 598.5 983.5 3,196.3
2001 oot e e et s ettt er s e e e ke st bt Rt p s e s et en e neebesnae s 3,767.8
Earnings attributable to Class I and
Class II shares (1):
2003 e et 45.6 20.1 22.7 42.8 131.2
2002 (2) e cevuieeecimrririeeeennieseerareseenarens e rrene s aranaerane 71.7 21.8 26.3 37.2 163.0
2001 <.ttt ettt et e ee ekt b et SRk erea ke atae b et 1R R s eeese s A ek e b e s bk eh s ra et et basa b e e Rt aeaenee 124.4
Earnings per Class I and Class II share (1): §
2003 oo 1.53 0.68 0.76 143 4.40
2002 ..ot s 2,61 0.73 0.89 124 547
2001 ettt ettt et e etk st b ek e Shekeaberabestat et e R Sasesehe b ebesea s esbeh et e b Eare R aesbesenbasensatens 4.18
Diluted earnings per Class I and
Class II share (1): ;
2003 L s e b srene e ‘ 1.51 0.67 0.75 1.42 4.35
2002 ..ooiiiiinern et 2,57 0.72 0.87 1.23 5.39
2001 1eooeevcreaeeeareasesese st ssss s s sss s SO UTOTSOTROIORTNY 4.12
Notes:

(1) There were no discontinued operations or extraordinary items during these periods.

(2) The earnings for the three months ended March 31 and December 31 include earnings of $34.6 million and
80.3 million, respectively, on the sale of the Viking-Kinsella natural gas producing property.

(3) Due to the seasonal nature of the Corporation’s operations, changes in electricity prices in Alberta and the
timing of rate decisions, earnings for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of operations on an annual
basis.

(4) The above data has been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and
the reporting currency is the Canadian dollar.
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Year Ended December 31

2003 2002 2001
($ Millions except
per share data)

Cash dividends declared per share:

5.75% Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares, Series 3 (1).....veeee... 1.44 1.44 0.57

Class T and IT Shares........cccveeriereevonniviinniiinneeonninsesnsesesiestesesseassescarses 1.28 1.16 1.04
TOLRE ASSELS ....ovveenccieneeriee ettt ettt sran b neaes s st sresr st s s aaseseeranraneesasees 6,591.2 6,403.3 5,845.4
Long termdebt...........c.oovniiiiiinenie e e 1,841.6 1,936.0 1,883.0
Non-recourse long termdebt ............coccoci et 948.2 956.4 770.4
Equity preferred Shares............cccoooveiiiiinnci e e 150.0 150.0 150.0
Class I and Class II share owners’ equity...........cccoooevcernnncnnecnieninnieiennnne 1,133.6 1,044.8 911.6
Notes:

(1) Issued July 10, 2001.
(2) The above data has been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and
the reporting currency is the Canadian dollar.

The principal factors that have caused variations in quarterly revenues have been fluctuations in temperatures,
changes in natural gas and electricity prices, the timing of rate decisions and market developments in ATCO
Structures. In the case of earnings, the principal factors have been the sale of the Viking-Kinsella natural gas
producing property (the “Viking property”) in the first quarter of 2002, changes in electricity prices in Alberta,
fluctuations in temperatures, the timing of rate decisions and market developments in ATCO Structures.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Consolidated Operations

Revenues for the three months ended December 31, 2003, increased by $25.4 million to $1,008.9 million, primarily
due to the higher price of natural gas purchased for customers on a “no-margin” basis, colder temperatures, the
impact of the Alberta Energy and Utilities Board (“AEUB”) decision respecting the 2003/2004 general rate
application of ATCO Gas (the “2003/2004 rate decision for ATCO Gas™), and increased business activity in the
Power Generation Business Group and ATCO Midstream and ATCO Structures, partially offset by the impact of the
AEUB decision respecting the 2003/2004 general tariff application of ATCO Electric (the “2003/2004 rate decision
for ATCO Electric™), the impact of the AEUB decision respecting the 2003/2004 general rate application of ATCO
Pipelines (the “2003/2004 tate decision for ATCO Pipelines”) and lower revenues from ATCO Frontec projects.
Temperatures for the three months endéd December 31, 2003, were 3.2% warmer than normal, compared to 11.4%
warmer than normal for the corresponding period in 2002.

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2003, increased by $733.4 million to $3,929.7 million, primarily due to
the higher price of natural gas and electricity purchased for customers on a “no-margin” basis by ATCO Gas and
ATCO Electric, higher natural gas prices on gas sales by ATCO Midstream, and increased business activity in all
subsidiaries except ATCO Pipelines, ATCO Frontec, ATCO Structures and ATCO Noise Management. The impact
of warmer temperatures in ATCO Gas, reduced earnings from the Barking generating plant in the United Kingdom,
and the impact of the 2003/2004 rate decision for ATCO Pipelines partially offset the increased revenues.
Temperatures in 2003 were 3.4% colder than normal, whereas temperatures in 2002 were 6.3% colder than normal.

Eamings attributable to Class I shares and Class II shares for the three months ended December 31, 2003, increased
by $5.6 million ($0.19 per share) to $42.8 million ($1.43 per share), primarily due to the impact of the 2003/2004
rate decision for ATCO Gas, stronger operational results in Alberta Power (2000) and the Technologies and
Industrials Business Groups, colder temperatures in ATCO Gas and a favourable tax adjustment in Australia for
ATCO Power ($4.6 million), partially offset by the impact of the 2003/2004 rate decisions for ATCOQ Pipelines and
ATCO Electric, and the carrying costs, net of investment income, in respect of the $400.0 million of preferred shares
and debentures issued between November 2002 and April 2003 that reduced earnings by $1.8 million.
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Earnings attributable to Class I and Class I shares for the year ended December 31, 2003, increased by $3.1 million
($0.10 per share) to $131.2 million ($4.40 per share), excluding the impact of the sale of the Viking property.
Earnings for 2002 were $128.1 million, excluding the after-tax gain of $34.9 million on the sale of the Viking
property. 2002 earnings in total were $163.0 million.

This increase was primarily due to stronger operational results in all subsidiaries except ATCO Pipelines, ATCO
Frontec, ATCO Structures and ATCO Noise Management, and a favourable tax adjustment in Australia for ATCO
Power ($4.6 million). These increases more than offset the weakest year of manufacturing activity for the Canadian
operations in ATCO Structures since 1984, as well as the carrying costs, net of investment income, in respect of the
$400.0 million of preferred shares and debentures issued by Canadian Utilities between November 2002 and April
2003 that reduced earnings by $6.7 million in 2003. These preferred shares and debentures were issued during a low
interest rate environment to strengthen the Corporation’s balance sheet and allow for future growth.

Return on common equity was 12.0% in 2003.

Operating expenses (consisting of natural gas Usupply, purchased power, operation and maintenance, selling and
administrative and franchise fee costs) for the three months ended December 31, 2003, increased by $18.8 million to
$767.6 million, largely due to higher natural gas supply costs and higher selling and administrative expenses
associated with the impact of the 2003/2004 rate decision for ATCO Gas, increased bad debts expense in ATCO Gas
and higher share appreciation rights expense, partially offset by lower purchased power costs.

Operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2003, increased by $671.2 million to $3,024.6 million,
primarily due to higher natural gas and purchased power costs and higher operation and maintenance expenses
associated with increased business activity in all subsidiaries except ATCO Pipelines, ATCO Frontec, ATCO
Structures and ATCO Noise Management.

Depreciation and amortization expenses for the three months ended December 31, 2003, increased by $5.6 million to
$76.8 million, primarily due to capital additions in 2003 and 2002.

Depreciation and amortization expenses for the year ended December 31, 2003, increased by $27.6 million to
$284.7 million, primarily due to capital additions in 2003 and 2002, partially offset by depreciation adjustments
associated with the sale of the Viking property in 2002.

Interest expense for the three months ended December 31, 2003, increased by $2.8 million to $49.6 million,
primarily due to interest on non-recourse financings for the new Cory, Muskeg River, Oldman River and Scotford
generating plants commissioned by ATCO Power in 2003 (the “New ATCO Power Generating Plants™).

Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2003, increased by $9.7 million to $198.9 million, primarily due
to interest on non-recourse financing for the New ATCO Power Generating Plants, partially offset by lower interest
rates asscciated with higher cost long term debt refinanced in 2002 and 2003. Interest capitalized on non-regulated
projects for the year ended December 31, 2003, decreased by $5.8 million to $21.8 million.

In 2002, the Corporation sold its Viking property, which had a net book value of approximately $40 million, for
$550 million. In accordance with an AEUB decision, $385.0 million plus related adjustments for future
abandonment and future income taxes of $20.6 million, for a total of $405.6 million, was distributed to customers by
way of lump sum payments. The Corporation’s share of the net proceeds was $150.5 million, after adjustments,
resulting in a gain of $110.1 million, before income taxes of $42.8 million and non-controlling interests of $32.4
million. This sale increased earnings by $34.9 million.

Interest and other income for the three months ended December 31, 2003, increased by $3.2 million to $10.5
million, primarily due to interest income on higher cash balances.

Interest and other income for the year ended December 31, 2003, increased by $9.5 million to $36.1 miilion,
primarily due to interest income on higher cash balances.

Income taxes for the three months ended December 31, 2003, decreased by $15.9 million to $29.7 million, largely
due to lower income tax rates, ATCO Power’s favourable tax adjustment in Australia and a change in income tax
methodology arising from the 2003/2004 rate decision for ATCO Pipelines, partially offset by higher earnings.
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Income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2003, excluding the $42.8 million of income taxes on the sale of the
Viking property in 2002, increased by $5.9 million to $159.8 million. This increase was primarily due to higher
earnings and the impact of a 2002 refund to customers of amounts previously recovered from customers for future
income taxes related to the Viking property. This increase was partially offset by lower income tax rates, ATCO
Power’s favourable tax adjustment in Australia, and a change in income tax methodology arising from the
2003/2004 rate decision for ATCO Pipelines. Income taxes for 2002, including the impact of the sale of the Viking
property, were $196.7 million.

The interests of non-controlling share owners for the three months ended December 31, 2003 increased by $10.1
million to $50.8 million, largely due to higher earnings in Canadian Utilities and dividends on the 5.80%
Cumulative Redeemable Second Preferred Shares Series W (“Series W Preferred Shares”) and 6.00% Cumulative
Redeemable Second Preferred Shares Series X (“Series X Preferred Shares™).

The interests of non-controlling share owners for the year ended December 31, 2003, increased by $25.4 million to
$158.0 million, excluding the $32.4 million of interests of non-controlling share owners on the sale of the Viking
property in 2002, largely due to higher earnings in Canadian Utilities and dividends on the Series W and Series X
Preferred Shares. The interests of non-controlling share owners for 2002, including the impact of the sale of the
Viking property, were $165.0 million.

Segmented revenues for the three months and for the year ended December 31, 2003, were as follows:

 Three Months Year
Ended Ended
Business Groups i December 31 December 31
($ Millions) 12003 2002 2003 2002
(unaudited)
UHIEIES coveveeiiereeeererret et e enstetessaseassss s b ra s ena s s eesasssessrenen 1 6478 627.1 2,478.2 1,867.2
POWEr GENEration ...ccooreeierereniereieinnreerereciesnsteseeasnesvestenee e sveses ©179.6 173.2 677.4 604.9
Logistics and ENergy SErviCes .......ccovirviemiieniiienieieniearenienneesensenee . 31585 2643 ° 1,263.4 933.7
INAUSITIALS -1vevecirieecrercer e e nn e I | 45.9 154.4 202.2
Technologies and Other Businesses.........ccocovevevvniiinniccniieie f 350 279 130.2 106.2
COTPOTALE «..vcvovraeersrrereineesesisessee s seseressssesssesesesssassrsesesensessssansrsasesann ! 2.8 2.8 114 11.1
Intersegment eHMINAIONS .. ....covieveeveiiiesreeririereereeessverinraereeeeaeneens L (222.9) (157.7) (785.3) (529.0)
TOUAL ettt ettt r et s . 1,008.9 983.5 . 3,929.7 3,196.3
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Segmented earnings attributable to Class I and Class I shares for the three months and for the year ended December
31, 2003, were as follows:

Three Months Year
Ended Ended
Business Groups : December 31 . December 31
($ Millions) . 2003 2002 2003 2002
(unaudited)

UHHLES (1) 1eerveriiieriierireiiinerne ettt bere s b an it 18.8 13.8 50.7 76.6
POWET GENEration ...vecvivieveeiireesireriirtressersessessesnessessessessessessensessoses 18.4 12.1 48.9 37.6
Logistics and ENErgy SETVICES ....ccvvcvevreevireriieninerscrenneercantsseoneoes : 7.4 10.0 31.5 334
INAUSEIIALS .ovveevecrrcecriie et s e reeretennes - (0.3) 2.6 110
Technologies and Other Businesses........occcvvviveneniecriciiniencnnincas ‘ 2.7 1.6 104 6.3
COTPOTALE «.c.vovveerrirreei e ettt e tete e st ase et sasss et seanesrennasosanean P (4.6) (0.8) (15.0) 6.0)
Intersegment elimMinations .......ccoviiiiiee i ceeeiteresisens 0.1 0.8 2.1 4.1
TOMAL ..ottt se v s rev st et s et reeere e saenes - 42.8 37.2 131.2 163.0
Note:

{1) The earnings for the three months ended December 31, 2002, and for the year ended December 31, 2002,
include earnings of $0.3 million and $34.9 million, respectively, on the sale of the Viking property.

Utilities

Revenues from the Utilities Business Group for the three months ended December 31, 2003, increased by $20.7
million to $647.8 million, primarily due to higher revenues in ATCO Gas, resulting from higher prices of natural gas
purchased for customers on a “no-margin” basis, colder temperatures, the impact of the 2003/2004 rate decision for
ATCO Gas and customer additions. This increase was partially offset by the impact of the 2003/2004 rate decision
for ATCO Electric. Temperatures for the three months ended December 31, 2003, were 3.2% warmer than normal,
compared to 11.4% warmer than normal for the corresponding period in 2002

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2003, increased by $611.0 million te $2,478.2 million, primarily due to
higher revenues in ATCO Gas, resulting from higher prices for natural gas purchased for customers on a “no-
margin” basis, higher sales and the impact of the 2003/2004 rate decision for ATCO Gas, and higher prices for
electricity purchased for customers on a “no-margin” basis in ATCO Electric. This increase was partially offset by
the impact of the 2003/2004 rate decision for ATCO Electric and the impact of warmer temperatures in ATCO Gas.
Temperatures in 2003 were 3.4% colder than normal, whereas temperatures in 2002 were 6.3% colder than normal.

Earnings for the three months ended December 31, 2003, increased by $5.0 million to $18.8 million, primarily the
result of improved operating results in ATCO Electric, stronger performance in ATCO Gas as a result of the impact
of the 2003/2004 rate decision for ATCO Gas, colder temperatures and customer additions, and the impact in 2002
of the AEUB decisions regarding affiliated party transactions and the Carbon natural gas storage facility. This
increase was partially offset by higher operation and maintenance costs, and the impact of the 2003/2004 rate
decision for ATCO Electric,

Eamings for the year ended December 31, 2003, increased by $9.0 million to $50.7 million, excluding the $34.9
million in eamnings on the sale of the Viking property in 2002. This increase was primarily the result of improved
operating results and growth in ATCO Electric, stronger performance in ATCO Gas as a result of the impact of the
2003/2004 rate decision for ATCO Gas and customer additions, and the impact in 2002 of the AEUB decisions
regarding affiliated party transactions and the Carbon natural gas storage facility. This increase was partially offset
by the impact of the 2003/2004 rate decision for ATCO Electric, higher operating costs, and the impact of warmer
temperatures in ATCO Gas. Earnings for 2002, including the impact of the sale of the Viking property, were $76.6
million. The $50.7 million of earnings amounted to 38.6% of consolidated earnings of the Corporation.

Operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2003, increased by $567.7 million to $2,084.4 million,
primarily due to higher natural gas supply and purchased power costs. Natural gas supply and purchased power
costs are recovered in customer rates. Natural gas supply costs are based on the forecast cost of natural gas included
in customer rates. Variances from forecast costs are deferred until such time as approval from the AEUB is obtained
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for refund to or collection from customers and revenues and natural gas supply costs are adjusted accordingly.
Purchased power costs are based on the actual cost of electricity purchased, whereas the amount included in
customer rates is based on forecast cost. Revenues are adjusted for variances from forecast cost, and the variances
are deferred until such time as approval from the AEUB is obtained for refund to or collection from customers. As a
consequence, changes in natural gas supply and purchased power costs have no effect on the Corporation’s earnings.
ATCO Gas’ customers have been billed on a monthly flow-through basis since April 1, 2002. ATCO Electric’s
customers have been billed on a monthly flow-through of market prices for electric energy since April 1, 2003. The
“flow-through” rate is based on the actual spot market price for the energy that customers use during each billing
period.

In the first quarter of 2003, ATCO Gas commenced the first phase of a $278 million project to relocate natural gas
meters currently inside homes to the outside. The project will make the distribution system safer by relocating and
replacing aging infrastructure, improve metering accuracy and accessibility, and facilitate more efficient meter
reading. The 2003/2004 rate decision for ATCO Gas approved a program which will result in meters with
underground entries being relocated over 10 years and all other inside meters moved as part of the existing meter
recall program. The decision also allows ATCO Gas to move meters at any time if they are deemed unsafe.

Included in ATCO Gas’ deferred gas account balance is an amount representing the difference between the amount
of natural gas “transportation” customers put onto ATCO Gas’ and ATCO Pipelines’ pipeline systems and the
amount of natural gas these same customers remove from the system. This amount is referred to as a “transportation
imbalance”. In addition, the deferred gas cost account includes an amount representing the difference between all
purchases of natural gas and sales of natural gas to ATCO Gas customers.

The AEUB has approved the inclusion of the transportation imbalances in the deferred gas account. Adjustments
arising out of a monthly reconciliation of this account are collected from or reimbursed to customers.

ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines have been working together to confirm the accuracy of the historical transportation
imbalances. It is anticipated that this process will be completed during the first quarter of 2004, at which time an
application may be made to the AEUB to address any required adjustments to the deferred gas cost account.

Power Generation

Revenues from the Power Generation Business Group for the three months ended December 31, 2003, increased by
$6.4 million to $179.6 million, primarily due to the commissioning of the New ATCO Power Generating Plants and
higher capacity and energy charges and improved operating results in Alberta Power (2000). Prices for electricity
sold to the Alberta Electric System Operator (“AESO”), formerly the Alberta Power Pool, for the three months
ended December 31, 2003, averaged $54.71, compared to average prices of $61.58 for the corresponding period in
2002. Natural gas prices for the three months ended December 31, 2003, averaged $5.50 per gigajoule, compared to
average prices of $5.37 for the corresponding period in 2002.

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2003, increased by $72.5 million to $677.4 million, primarily due to
higher prices received for electricity sold to the AESO, the commissioning of the New ATCO Power Generating
Plants, and higher capacity and energy charges and improved operating results in Alberta Power (2000). These
increases were partially offset by reduced revenues from the Barking generating plant in the United Kingdom, due to
the loss in late 2002 of the long term offtake agreement with TXU Europe (described below), resulting in 275
megawatts of power previously supplied to TXU Europe now being sold under short term bilateral agreements.
AESO prices averaged $62.99 per megawatt hour in 2003, compared to average prices of $43.94 in 2002. Natural
gas prices averaged $6.31 per gigajoule in 2003, compared to average prices of $3.84 in 2002.

Earnings for the three months ended December 31, 2003, increased by $6.3 million to $18.4 million, primarily due
to a favourable tax adjustment in Australia, and the commencement in 2003 of the amortization of deferred
availability incentives.

Earnings for the year ended December 31, 2003, increased by $11.3 million to $48.9 million, primarily due to higher
prices received for electricity sold to the AESO, a favourable tax adjustment in Australia, improved operating results
in ATCO Power’s Australian generating plants, the commencement in 2003 of the amortization of deferred
availability incentives and improved operating results in Alberta Power (2000). This increase was partially offset by
higher fuel costs arising from higher natural gas prices and reduced earnings from the Barking generating plant in
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the United Kingdom, due to the loss in late 2002 of the long term offtake agreement with TXU Europe (described
below), resulting in 275 megawatts of power previously supplied to TXU Europe now being sold under short term
bilateral agreements. The $48.9 million of earnings amounted to 37.3% of consolidated earnings of the Corporation.

Operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2003, increased by $22.2 million to $373.8 million, primarily
the result of the commissioning of the New ATCO Power Generating Plants and higher natural gas fuel costs in
Alberta.

ATCO Power completed construction of the New ATCO Power Generating Plants in 2003 for a total cost of
approximately $745 million, of which ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ share was approximately $537
million. These costs were approximately 13% above original cost estimates, primarily due to labour and
engineering markets in Alberta, which tightened during construction, and increased equipment, financing and
foreign exchange costs. A portion of the additional costs will be recoverable over the term of the commercial
contracts.

On November 19, 2002, an administration order was issued by a United Kingdom court for TXU Europe, which had
a long term offtake agreement for 27.5% of the power produced by the Barking power plant, a 1,000 megawatt plant
in London, England, in which the Corporation, through Barking Power Limited, has a 25.5% equity interest. An
administration order is similar to a Chapter 11 bankruptcy filing in the United States. Barking Power Limited has
filed a claim with the Administrator and is working with the Administrator and Creditors’ Committees on
liquidation of TXU Europe and settlement of claims. The Barking power plant will continue to supply 725
megawatts of power under long term contracts. The 275 megawatts of power previously supplied to TXU Europe is
being sold under short term bilateral agreements.

At December 31, 2003, all of ATCO Power’s non-regulated independent cogeneration and generating plants were in
service, with the exception of the Brighton Beach project which is under construction.

A partnership formed by ATCO Power and Ontario Power Generation (“OPG”) is constructing and will operate the
Brighton Beach power plant, a 580 megawatt natural gas-fired combined cycle generating plant at the site of the
former J.C. Keith Generating Station, near Windsor, Ontario. Coral Energy Canada Inc. has agreed to supply and
pay for the natural gas to be used at the plant and will own, market and trade all the electricity produced.
Construction is progressing with commercial operation scheduled for the summer of 2004. ATCO Power owns a
40% interest in the project, ATCO Resources owns 10% and OPG owns 50%. The estimated costs to complete the
generating plant have increased from original estimates by approximately 19% to $562 million due to higher supply
and assembly costs for the heat recovery steam generator, higher costs for civil works and changes in engineering
scope. In addition, ATCO Power has provided a contingency of $10 million for unforeseen commissioning costs.
ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ share of the total estimated cost is $286 million.

On September 8, 2003, SaskPower International Inc. announced that it had selected ATCO Power as its joint venture
partner to potentially develop up to 150 megawatts of wind generation power in Saskatchewan.

In 2001, Alberta Power (2000) and the Alberta Balancing Pool entered into an agreement which gave the Alberta
Balancing Pool control of the 150 megawatt, coal-fired H.R. Milner generating plant effective January 1, 2001 and
the right to sell it until September 30, 2003, failing which the rights to control the generating plant would revert to
Alberta Power (2000). In return, Alberta Power (2000) was paid $63.5 million, the net book value of the generating
plant and coal inventory. Alberta Power (2000) operated the generating plant under a cost of service contract with
the Alberta Balancing Pool. On August 6, 2003, the Alberta Balancing Pool announced that it had entered into an
agreement for the sale of plant. Alberta Power (2000) extended its cost of service contract until January 29, 2004,
when the plant was sold by the Alberta Balancing Pool to a third party. As part of the sale, Alberta Power (2000)
was relieved of all decommissioning risk, including any environmental liabilities incurred while Alberta Power
(2000) was operating the generating plant.

Logistics and Energy Services

Revenues from the I:ogistfé‘s“éﬁa Eﬁéfguyméué;\;fcéé"ﬁnu%shi—ﬁ*éss Group for the three months ended December 31, 2003,
increased by $51.2 million to $315.5 million, primarily due to higher prices for natural gas purchased for ATCO
Midstream’s customers and higher natural gas liquids prices, partially offset by the impact of the 2003/2004 rate
decision for ATCO Pipelines, and reduced business activity in ATCO Frontec, primarily resulting from the expiry of
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;i’ contract in September 2003 with the Department of National Defence to provide support services for six peace-
keeping installations in Bosnia-Herzegovina (the “Balkans contract”).

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2003, increased by $329.7 million to $1,263.4 million, largely due to
higher natural gas liquids prices and higher prices for natural gas purchased for ATCO Midstream’s customers,
partially offset by the impact of the 2003/2004 rate decision for ATCO Pipelines and lower revenues from ATCO
Frontec projects, primarily reflecting the expiry of the Balkans contract.

Earnings for the three months ended December 31, 2003, decreased by $2.6 million to $7.4 million, primarily due to
the impact of the 2003/2004 rate decision for ATCO Pipelines, and lower earnings from gas gathering and
processing and storage operations in ATCO Midstream, partially offset by higher earnings from natural gas liquids
in ATCO Midstream:

Earnings for the year ended December 31, 2003, decreased by $1.9 million to $31.5 million, primarily due to the
impact of the 2003/2004 rate decision for ATCO Pipelines and lower earnings from ATCO Frontec projects and
ATCO Midstream’s storage operations, partially offset by higher earnings from ATCO Midstream’s natural gas
liquids operations. The $31.5 million of earnings amounted to 24.0% of consolidated earnings of the Corporation.

Operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2003, net of intersegment expenses, increased by $105.6
million, primarily due to higher natural gas prices on gas sales by ATCO Midstream and higher shrinkage gas and
power costs in ATCO Midstream.

Industrials

Revenues from the Industrials Business Group for the three months ended December 31, 2003, increased by $5.2
million 1o $51.1 million, primarily due to increased business activity in Europe and South America in ATCO
Structures, partially offset by lower business activity in ATCO Noise Management.

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2003, decreased by $47.8 million to $154.4 million, primarily due to
decreased business activity in ATCO Structures.

Earnings for the three months ended December 31, 2003, were essentially unchanged!
Earnings from the Industrials Business Group for the year ended December 31, 2003, decreased by $8.4 million to

$2.6 million, largely due to lower business activity in ATCO Structures. The $2.6 million of earnings amounted to
2.0% of consolidated earnings of the Corporation.

Demand for workforce housing products is directly related to the capital spending cycle and the level of
development activity in natural resource industries. During 2003, the utilization rate for ATCO Structures’ work
force housing fleet averaged 47%, down from 52% in 2002. Programs to rationalize and modernize the size of the
workforce housing lease fleet are continuing.

Operating expenses for 2003 decreased by $36.8 million to $139.6 miillion, primarily as a result of lower business
activity.

ATCO Structures will continue to focus on its core businesses of workforce housing in North America, Australia,
South America, Europe and selective international markets and on the space rental business in Australia, Canada,
South America and Europe. ATCO Noise Management will continue to focus on turnkey noise abatement
opportunities in the energy and petrochemical industries worldwide.

A number of major projects, which provide opportunities for ATCO Structures, are planned for development in
2004 and beyond. ATCO Noise Management is focusing its efforts on exploring industrial noise abatement
opportunities in North America, Latin America and Europe. These areas represent opportunities in the electrical
power generation and fossil fuel markets where demand continues to grow.

International sales may expose ATCO Structures and ATCO Noise Management to greater risk than normally

associated with domestic transactions due to the political and financial aspects of international business. However,
ATCO Structures and ATCO Noise Management will continue to follow strict credit policies on international sales
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to minimize financial exposure and will continue to utilize its international experience to manage the political and
other risks associated with international business.

Technologies and Other Businesses

Revenues from Technologies and Other Businesses for the three months ended December 31, 2003, increased by
$7.1 million to $35.0 million, primarily due to increased business activity and commencement of work for new
customers.

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2003, increased by $24.0 million to $130.2 million, largely due to
increased business activity and commencement of work for new customers.

Earnings for the three months ended December 31, 2003, increased by $1.1 million to $2.7 million, primarily due to
increased business activity and cost containment initiatives.
Earnings for the year ended December 31, 2003, increased by $4.1 million to $10.4 million, largely due to increased

business activity and cost containment initiatives. The $10.4 million of earnings amounted to 7.9% of consolidated
earnings of the Corporation.

ATCO I-Tek Business Services Ltd. has entered into a 10-year contract with Direct Energy Marketing Limited
(“Direct Energy”) to provide billing and customer care services to nearly one million Alberta customers.
Commencement of the contract is conditional upon the closing of the sale of ATCO Gas’ and ATCO Electric’s retail
operations to Direct Energy (see “Business Risks — Regulated Operations — Sale of Retail Operations”).

Corporate
Earnings for the three months ended December 31, 2003, decreased by $3.8 million to $(4.6) million, primarily due
to higher interest expense and non-controlling interests due to preferred share dividends resulting from the issue of

$100.0 million of 6.14% Debentures in November 2002 and the Series W and Series X Preferred Shares, net of
investment income,

Earnings for the year ended December 31, 2003, decreased by $9.0 million to $(15.0) million, primarily due to
higher interest expense and non-controlling interests due to preferred share dividends resuiting from the issue of
$100.0 million of 6.14% Debentures in November 2002 and the Series W and Series X Preferred Shares, net of
investment income.

In 2001, the Corporation received and paid income tax reassessments of $21.3 million, of which $12.9 million was
assessed to Canadian Utilities, relating to the 1996 disposal of ATCOR Resources Ltd. Management did not agree
with this reassessment and contested the matter with tax authorities. Accordingly, the payment was recorded as a
reduction of future income tax liabilities. During 2003, the Corporation was successful in appealing the
reassessments to the Tax Court of Canada. However, the Federal Government has commenced an appeal of the Tax
Court’s decision with the Federal Court of Appeal. Consequently, the future income tax reduction of $21.3 million
has not been adjusted.

REGULATORY MATTERS

Regulated operations are conducted by ATCO Electric, the ATCO Gas and ATCO Pipelines divisions of ATCO Gas
and Pipelines Ltd., CU Water and the generating plants of Alberta Power (2000), all of which are wholly owned
subsidiaries of Canadian Utilities’ wholly owned subsidiary, CU Inc.

In August 2002, the Government of Alberta announced changes to utility legislation designed to improve the
environment for retail competition in the Province. Amendments to the Electric Utilities Act and Gas Utilities Act
received Royal Assent in March 2003 and were proclaimed in force in June 2003. These changes were designed to
bring customer choice for both gas and electricity into closer alignment, as well as to move towards consistent
regulatory treatment of investor-owned and municipally-owned utilities. In July 2003, ATCO Gas filed its
compliance application in accordance with the new legislation.
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In December 2003, the AEUB issued a decision approving the implementation of the "One Bill Model" no later than
April 1, 2004. The One Bill Model will ensure that customers who choose to purchase their natural gas
requirements from a retailer will receive only one bill for natural gas service. Previously, customers would receive a
bill from the retailer for the purchase of the commodity and a separate bill from ATCO Gas for the delivery service.

In April 2003, the AEUB determined that it would proceed with a generic cost of capital hearing to focus on the
possibility of establishing a standardized approach to determine the rate of return on equity and capital structure for
all utilities under the jurisdiction of the AEUB. Hearings were completed in January 2004. A decision from the
AEUB is not expected until the third quarter of 2004.

In May 2003, the AEUB issued a decision respecting affiliate transactions between ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas and
ATCO Pipelines (the “ATCO utilities”) and their affiliates. The decision and the resulting Code of Conduct set the
framework for ongoing affiliate transactions. The ATCO utilities must be able to demonstrate that services or
products from an affiliate have been acquired at a price that is no more than the fair market value of such services or
products.

ATCO Electric

In December 2000, the Prcovince of Alberta issued regulations providing for the deferral of price and volume
variance in excess of forecast amounts in respect of the supply of electricity by distributors to their customers for the
year ended December 31, 2000. In 2002, the AEUB issued decisions approving the collection by ATCO Electric of
its deferred costs from customers, and permitting ATCO Electric to sell these deferred costs and related rights. In
2002, ATCO Electric sold deferred costs of $81 million to an unrelated purchaser for equivalent cash consideration.
Generally accepted accounting principles required that this transaction be accounted for as a financing arrangement
rather than a sale. Accordingly, the cash received resulted in the recording of a deferred electricity cost obligation
rather than a reduction of deferred electricity costs. The obligation bore interest at 3.3975%, which approximated
the interest earned on the deferred costs. The obligation principal and interest incurred were paid to the purchaser as
the deferred costs and interest earned were collected from customers. At December 31, 2003, the outstanding
obligation was nil.

In June 2003, the AEUB issued a decision approving the collection from customers of interim balances as applied
for by ATCO Electric of $4.8 million for the 2002 regulated rate option deferral accounts and $16.6 million for the
2003 regulated rate option energy deferral account accumulated for the first 3 months of 2003. The AEUB directed
that ATCO Electric collect these interim balances from customers over the period July 1, 2003, to December 31,
2003.

In August 2002, ATCO Electric filed a general tariff application with the AEUB for the 2003, 2004 and 2005 test
years. In a decision dated December 11, 2002, the AEUB approved interim rates effective January 1, 2003.
Hearings for ATCO Electric’s general tariff application for the 2003, 2004 and 2005 test years commenced on April
15, 2003, and were completed in May 2003. During the hearings, ATCO Electric withdrew the 2005 test year from
its application in light of uncertainty around whether the equity component and return for 2005 would be determined
based on the merits of its application or through the generic cost of capital proceeding.

In a decision dated October 2, 2003, the AEUB approved, among other things, a rate of return on common equity of
9.40% and a common equity ratio of 32% for ATCO Electric’s transmission operations and 35% for its distribution
operations for 2003. However, the 2004 rate of return on common equity and the common equity ratios for the
transmission and distribution operations will be determined as part of the generic cost of capital hearing. Certain
matters relating to transactions with affiliates will be addressed in separate proceedings during 2004. ATCO
Electric, as directed by the AEUB, has refiled the 2003 and 2004 revenue requirements, incorporating the findings in
the decision. In a decision dated February 17, 2004, the AEUB issued its final determination of the revenue
requirements for the 2003 and 2004 test years, accepting the refiling with no material changes.

In September 2003, ATCO Electric received approval from the AEUB to build a $95.0 million, 350 kilometre 240
kilovolt transmission line between Fort McMurray and Whitefish Lake. The line includes three substations and is
expected to be completed by August 31, 2004,

ATCO Electric is obligated to supply energy under the regulated rate option to the residential, farm and small
commercial customers in its designated service area who do not choose an unregulated retailer. ATCO Electric
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purchases electricity from the AESO at spot prices to supply the regulated rate option customers, the costs for which
are collected from customers at rates approved by the AEUB. In November 2003, the government of Alberta
revised its regulations, effective January 1, 2004, and as a result, ATCO Electric will now be at risk for electric
energy supply and will no longer be able to flow through the AESO price to customers. A further revision to the
regulations in November permitted the AEUB to extend the period for implementation to July 1, 2004 upon
application. In December 2003, the AEUB issued a decision approving ATCO Electric’s application to extend the
implementation date to July 1, 2004. Under the revised regulations, ATCO Electric is obligated to provide a fixed
price regulated rate option to customers until July 1, 2006, and a regulated rate option based on actual spot prices
thereafter.

ATCO Gas

In August 2002, ATCO Gas filed a general rate application with the AEUB for the 2003 and 2004 test years. In
December 2002, the AEUB issued a decision approving rates on an interim basis effective January 1, 2003. Ina
decision dated October 1, 2003, the AEUB approved, among other things, a rate of return on common equity of
9.50% for 2003 and 2004 and a common equity ratio of 37%. Certain matters relating to transactions with affiliates
will be addressed in separate proceedings during 2004. ATCO Gas, as directed by the AEUB, has refiled the 2003
and 2004 general rate application, incorporating the findings in the decision. The AEUB has not yet issued its final
determination of the revenue requirements for the 2003 and 2004 test years.

In February 2003, the AEUB issued a decision approving the methodology of distributing the proceeds from the sale
of the Beaverhill Lake and Fort Saskatchewan natural gas producing properties, and in March 2003, $23 million of
the related sales proceeds was refunded to ATCO Gas’ North division customers. The sale has no significant impact
On earnings.

In March, 2003, $2.5 million was refunded to ATCO Gas’ North division customers. This resulted from the AEUB
approval of the final 2002 distribution service rates for ATCO Gas’ North division, as established in a negotiated
settlement.

In October 2001, the AEUB approved the sale by ATCO Gas of certain properties located in the City of Calgary,
known as the Calgary Stores Block, for $6.6 million and subsequently issued a decision allocating $4.1 million of
the proceeds to customers. Leave to appeal this decision was granted on July 12, 2002. On January 27, 2004, the
Alberta Court of Appeal issued a decision which overturned the AEUB decision and directed the AEUB to allocate
$5.4 million of the proceeds to ATCO Gas. ATCO Gas has not recorded the impact of the appeal decision to date as
the period to appeal the court’s decision has not yet expired.

ATCO Pipelines

In January 2003, the AEUB issued a decision approving ATCO Pipelines’ negotiated settlement of the 2001/2002
exchange deferred account deficit, which arose from the exchange mechanism utilized to deliver net producer
transportation guantities sourced from the ATCO system onto the system owned by NOVA Gas Transmission Ltd.
The decision approved mechanisms to collect ATCO Pipelines’ South division deficit of approximately $9.0 million
over a two year period. It further allowed the collection of ATCO Pipelines’ North division deficit of $2.3 million
in 2003. Approximately $3.5 million remains to be collected in 2004. The decision also provided for the recovery
of carrying costs.

In February 2003, ATCO Pipelines filed a general rate application for the 2003 and 2004 test years. In a decision
dated December 2, 2003, the AEUB approved, among other things, a rate of return on common equity of 9.50% and
a common equity ratio of 43.5% for 2003. The rate of return on common equity and the common equity ratio for
2004 will be determined as part of the generic cost of capital hearing. Certain matters relating to transactions with
affiliates will be addressed in separate proceedings during 2004. ATCO Pipelines, as directed by the AEUB, has
refiled the 2003 and 2004 general rate applications, incorporating the findings in the decision. The AEUB has not
yet issued its final determination of the revenue requirements for the 2003 and 2004 test years.

In October 2003, ATCO Pipelines filed a 2004 Phase II general rate application for new rates. This application is

part of a broader process through which the AEUB will address competitive issues between ATCO Pipelines and
NOVA Gas Transmission Ltd.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

A major portion of the Corporation’s operating income and cash flow is generated from its utility operations.
Canadian Utilities and its wholly owned subsidiary, CU Inc., use commercial paper borrowings and short term bank
loans to provide flexibility in the timing and amounts of long term financing. ATCO Ltd. has received dividends
from Canadian Utilities which have been more than sufficient to service debt requirements and pay dividends.

Cash flow from operations for the three months ended December 31, 2003, decreased by $14.1 million to $166.3
million, primarily the result of higher current income taxes resulting from timing differences in the recognition of
revenues and expenses for tax reporting purposes and decreased deferred availability incentives in Alberta Power
(2000), partially offset by stronger earnings.

Cash flow from operations for the year ended December 31, 2003, increased by $29.5 million to $573.6 million,
primarily due to stronger eamnings, partially offset by higher current income taxes resulting from timing differences
in the recognition of revenues and expenses for tax reporting purposes and decreased deferred availability incentives
in Alberta Power (2000). In addition, in the first quarter of 2002, ATCO Gas refunded to customers a total of
$405.6 million related to the sale of the Viking property, of which $20.6 million reduced cash flow from operations.

Investing for the three months ended December 31, 2003, decreased by $20.9 million to $133.8 million, primarilj
due to the collection of non-current deferred electricity costs and changes in non-cash working capital in respect of
investing activities, partially offset by higher capital expenditures. Capital expenditures for the three months ended
December 31, 2003, increased by $17.1 million to $188.7 million, primarily due to increased investment in regulated
electric transmission and natural gas distribution projects, partially offset by lower investment in non-regulated
power generation projects.

Investing for the year ended December 31, 2003, excluding the $107.7 million sale of the Viking property in 2002,
decreased by $124.6 million to $475.1 million, primarily due to lower capital expenditures and increased proceeds
on disposal of other property, plant and equipment, partially offset by changes in non-cash working capital in respect
of investing activities. Investing for 2002, including the impact of the sale of the Viking property, was $492.0
million. Capital expenditures for 2003 decreased by $109.6 million to $539.6 million, primarily due to lower
investment in non-regulated power generation projects, regulated natural gas transmission projects and workforce
housing, partially offset by increased investment in regulated natural gas distribution and regulated electric
generation projects.

During the three months ended December 31, 2003, the Corporation redeemed $42.0 million of notes payable,
issued $21.7 million of long term debt and redeemed $68.2 million of long term debt and $7.1 million of non-

During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Corporation issued $45.8 million of long term debt and $50.9 million
of non-recourse long term debt for the Brighton Beach project, and redeemed $60.0 million of 7.25% debentures,
$84.6 million of other long term debt and $41.2 million of non-recourse long term debt, resulting in a net debt
reduction of $89.1 million.

A planned issue of $180.0 million of debentures by CU Inc. in 2003 was deferred until January 2004 pending
clarification of one of the Corporation’s credit ratings (see “Credit Ratings”). As a result of the uncertainty
surrounding the timing of the receipt of the credit rating, the Corporation utilized its cash resources in late 2003 to
temporarily pay down outstanding debt. These payments amounted to approximately $215 million, of which
approximately $150 million was advanced to ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric, and approximately $65 million to
other subsidiaries of the Corporation. In January 2004, the amounts advanced to ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric
were repaid from the proceeds of the CU Inc. $180.0 million issue of 5.432% Debentures and the remaining
amounts were replaced with bank borrowings.

During 2003, the opening balance of the deferred electricity cost obligation was reduced by $51.0 million, which

represents the amount of the deferred electricity cost obligation collected and remitted during the period January 1,
2003, to December 31, 2003. The deferred electricity cost obligation has now been fully repaid.
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In April 2003, Canadian Utilities issued 6,000,000 Series X Preferred Shares, having a dividend rate of 6.00%, at a
price of $25.00 per share, for aggregate gross proceeds of $150.0 million. The net proceeds of the issue were added
to the general funds of Canadian Ultilities to be used for general corporate purposes including capital expenditures.

Capital expenditures to maintain capacity, meet planned growth and fund future development activities are expected
to be approximately $600 million in 2004. Included in these capital expenditures are committed amounts relating to
ATCO Electric’s 350 kilometre 240 kilovolt transmission line between Fort McMurray and Whitefish Lake, ATCO
Power’s Brighton Beach project, a 580 megawatt natural gas-fired combined cycle generating plant in Windsor,
Ontario and a project to improve operating efficiency at Alberta Power (2000)’s Sheerness and Battle River
generating plants. ATCO Electric’s transmission line and the Brighton Beach project are currently under
construction. These three projects are expected to be completed in 2004, at a cost of approximately $110 million.
The remainder of the 2004 capital expenditures, amounting to approximately $490 million, is uncommitted and
relates primarily to regulated operations.

Contractual obligations for the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

Payments Due by Period
Less
than 1 1-3 4-5 After 5
Contractual Obligations Total Year Years Years Years
($ Millions)
Long term debt.......ccoceviincineriiicieercicne s 1,843.9 116.1 323.8 179.0 1,225.0
Non-recourse long term debt ......ccocniniiiiiiiniinne, 999.2 51.0 132.5 152.9 662.8
Operating [€ases.........ccoovvviiiiiiinnni s 71.9 13.6 231 20.0 15.2
Purchase obligations:
ATCO Gas natural gas purchase contracts (1)........ 1,115.5 115.5 228.4 222.0 549.6
Alberta Power (2000) coal purchase contracts (2).. 874.7 42.0 86.6 91.1 655.0
Alberta Power (2000) capital expenditures (3)....... 9.9 9.9 - - -
ATCO Power and ATCO Resources natural gas
fuel supply contracts (4) ......cccoocvereevenvrenaennnen, 457.3 59.9 122.7 117.9 156.8
ATCO Power and ATCO Resources operating
and maintenance agreements (5).......cocoevrevennnne 117.1 18.1 287 29.8 40.5
ATCO Power and ATCO Resources capital
EXPENAitures (6)......cecrerriieriersrenverrennrrninsencnnenies 29.3 28.4 0.6 03 -
OLher ..o e 21.5 20.5 1.0 - -
TOtAL. .ot 5,540.3 475.0 947.4 813.0 3,304.9
Notes:

(1) ATCO Gas has obligations to purchase fixed quantities of natural gas from various gas producers at market
prices that are in effect at the time the quantities are purchased. Some of these obligations are for the life of the
gas reserves. The estimated value of these purchase obligations is based on the market price of natural gas in
effect on December 31, 2003, and assumes a remaining life of 10 years for the gas reserves. The cost of natural
gas purchased under these obligations is recoverable from ATCO Gas' customers. These purchase obligations
would transfer to Direct Energy upon the sale of the retail energy business of ATCO Gas.

(2) Alberta Power (2000) has fixed price long term contracts to purchase coal for its coal-fired generating plants.
These costs are recoverable pursuant to the power purchase arrangements.

(3) Alberta Power (2000) has entered into contracts with. suppliers to improve operating efficiency at certain of its
generating plants.

(4) ATCO Power and ATCO Resources have various contracts to purchase natural gas for their natural gas-fired
generating plants. ATCO Power and ATCO Resources have long term offtake agreements with the purchasers
of the electricity to recover 82% of these costs. The balance of 18% is currently being recovered under short
term bilateral agreements.

(5) ATCO Power and ATCQO Resources have various contracts with suppliers to provide operating and
maintenance services at certain of their generating plants.

(6) ATCO Power and ATCO Resources have entered into various contracts to purchase goods and services with
respect to their capital expenditure programs.
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At December 31, 2003, the Corporation had the following credit lines that enable it to obtain funding for general
corporate purposes.

Total Used Available
($ Millions)
Long term commutted...........ccovviimimcmiiniinic e e 584.6 45.8 538.8
Short term COMITUIE ..ccvvvivririiienirieei st ir et siresesbeseaneerens 624.3 49.8 574.5
UNCOIMUTUIIED 1. vvieivvvieivieteiirrtseree st serncosreasstssareesenessenessensensessaseserees 243 4 36.6 206.8
TOUAL. v ettt et e e eeb e sr bt e e te bt ste et b et e aerasreea 1,452.3 132.2 1,320.1

The amount and timing of future financings will depend on market conditions and the specific needs of the
Corporation.

Current and long term future income tax liabilities of $244.7 million at December 31, 2003, are attributable to
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. These
differences result primarily from recognizing revenue and expenses in different years for financial and tax reporting
purposes. Future income taxes will become payable when such differences are reversed through the settlement of
liabilities and realization of assets.

On May 27, 2002, the Corporation commenced a normal course issuer bid for the purchase of up to 3% of the
outstanding Class I shares. The offer expired on May 26, 2003. Over the life of the offer, 20,700 shares were
purchased, all of which were purchased in 2003. On May 27, 2003, the Corporation commenced a normal course
issuer bid for the purchase of up to 3% of the outstanding Class I shares. The offer will expire on May 26, 2004.
From May 27, 2003, to February 6, 2004, 65,300 shares have been purchased, all of which were purchased in 2003.

It is the policy of the Corporation to pay dividends quarterly on its Class I and Class II shares. In 2003, the
Corporation increased the dividends on Class I and Class II shares by $0.12 per share, the same increase as in 2002.
The Corporation has increased its annual common share dividend each year since 1993. The matter of an increase in
the quarterly dividend is addressed by the Board of Directors in the first quarter of each year. For the first quarter of
2004, the quarterly dividend payment has been increased by $0.03 to $0.35 per share. The payment of any dividend
is at the discretion of the Board of Directors and depends on the financial condition of the Corporation and other
factors.
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Credit Ratings

The current ratings on the Corporation’s, Canadian Utilities’ and CU Inc.’s securities are as follows:

DBRS (1) S&P (2)
ATCO Ld.:
Preferred Shares.....o. v vcivenisicvniarinrcosirceienneescrssscionseessrsssssvsenenseones Pfd-2 (low) P-2 (high)
Canadian Utilities Limited:
DEDENTUTES .oiiiciiiiiie i et e sar e e eestee s e e s s bt aetnaeesansrbeene A A-
COMIMETCIAl PAPET ....ceiiiiriricicritte et et e siaane R-1 (low) A-1 (mid)
Preferred shares:
Obligations of CUINC. (3).coriiereomiimrriiiniii e Pfd-2 (high) P-2 (high)
Obligations 0f CU ......ccccoirminierineinerrnncresieereenesereesssasseseenane Pfd-2 P-2 (high)
CU Inc.:
DEDEIIUTES ...ovvvevvereetisiereereeteranesereseessereenssescrseneescsensssensesesnesresassasaesssenns A (high) A
COMMETCIAl PAPET ..o.ccveiiieerietetr et e on s e sae s R-1 (low) A-1 (mid)
Preferred shares........cooi it Pfd-2 (high) Not rated
Notes:

(1) Dominion Bond Rating Service Limited (“DBRS”) maintains a stable trend on the above securities.

(2) In January 2004, Standard and Poor’s (“S&P”) announced it had lowered its ratings on the Corporation’s
preferred shares from P-1 (low) to P-2 (high), Canadian Utilities’ debentures and preferred shares from A to A-
and from P-1 (low) to P2 (high), respectively, and CU Inc.'s debentures from A+ to A. At the same time, the
ratings were removed from CreditWarch, where they were placed March 5, 2003. The outlook is stable.

(3) Refers to the Cumulative Redeemable Second Preferred Shares Series Q, R and S and the Perpetual Cumulative
Second Preferred Shares Series U and V which were issued by Canadian Utilities prior to the creation of CU
Inc. on March 12, 1999.

On January 16, 2004, CU Inc. filed a base shelf prospectus which permits CU Inc. to issue up to an aggregate of
$750.0 million of debentures over the twenty-five month life of the prospectus. On January 23, 2004, CU Inc.
issued $180.0 million of 5.432% Debentures due January 23, 2019, at a price of 100 to yield 5.432%. The proceeds
of the issue were advanced to ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas, ATCO Pipelines and CU Water and used to fund capital
expenditures, repay indebtedness and for general corporate purposes.

DISCLOSURE OF OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA

At February 26, 2004, the Corporation had outstanding 26,298,431 Class I shares and 3,506,801 Class II shares and
6,000,000 5.75% Cumulative Redeemable Second Preferred Series 3 (“Series 3 Preferred Shares™).

Class I Non-Voting Shares and Class II Voting Shares.

Each Class II share may be converted to one Class I share at the share owner’s option. In the event an offer to
purchase Class II shares is made to all owners of Class II shares, and is accepted and taken up by the owners of a
majority of such shares pursuant to such offer, then provided an offer is not made to the owners of Class I shares on
the same terms and conditions, the Class I shares shall be entitled to the same voting rights as the Class II shares.
The two classes of shares rank equally in all other respects.

Series 3 Preferred Shares

On and after December 1, 2008, the Corporation may convert all or any of the Series 3 Preferred Shares into Class I
shares. The number of Class I shares into which each Series 3 Preferred Share may be converted will be determined
by dividing the applicable redemption price together with all accrued and unpaid dividends by the greater of $2.00
and 95% of the weighted average trading price of Class I shares on The Toronto Stock Exchange for a period of 20
consecutive trading days ending on the fourth day prior to the date specified for conversion.
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On and after December 1, 2011, each Series 3 Preferred Share will be convertible at the option of the owner, on the
first day of March, June, September and December of each year, into that number of Class I shares determined by
dividing $25.00 together with all accrued and unpaid dividends by the greater of $2.00 and 95% of the then current
market price of the Class I shares. If an owner of Series 3 Preferred Shares elects to convert any of the shares into
Class I shares, the Corporation may elect to redeem the Series 3 Preferred Shares for cash or arrange for the sale of
such shares to substitute purchasers. At any time, the Corporation may offer the owners of the Series 3 Preferred
Shares the right to convert into a further series of Preferred Shares.

The Series 3 Preferred shares are redeemable at the option of the Corporation commencing on December 1, 2008, at
the stated value plus a 4% premium for the next 12 months plus accrued and unpaid dividends. The redemption
premium declines by 2% in each succeeding 12 month period until December 1, 2010.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

In transactions with entities related through common control, the Corporation sold and rented manufactured product
and recovered administrative expenses totaling $1.0 million and incurred advertising and promotion expenses and
administrative expenses totaling $1.5 million. These transactions are in the normal course of business and under
normal commercial terms.

BUSINESS RISKS

During 2002, the Government of Canada ratified the Kyoto Protocol. The Corporation is unable to determine what
impact, if any, the ratification will have on its operations as the implementation plan has not yet been released by the
Government. It is anticipated that the Corporation’s power purchase arrangements (“PPA’s”) relating to its coal-
fired generating plants will allow the Corporation to recover any increased costs associated with the implementation
of the protocol.

Regulated Operations

ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas, ATCO Pipelines and CU Water are regulated primarily by the AEUB, which
administers acts and regulations covering such matters as rates, financing, accounting, construction, operation and
service area. The AEUB may approve interim rates, subject to final determination. These subsidiaries are subject to
the normal risks faced by companies that are regulated. These risks include the approval by the AEUB of customer
rates that permit a reasonable opportunity to recover on a timely basis the estimated costs of providing service,
including a fair return on rate base. The Corporation’s ability to recover the actual costs of providing service and to
earn the approved rates of return depends on achieving the forecasts established in the rate-setting process.

ATCO Electric is obligated to supply energy under the regulated rate option to the residential, farm and small
commercial customers in its designated service area who do not choose an unregulated retailer. ATCO Electric
purchases electricity from the AESO at spot prices to supply the regulated rate option customers, the costs for which
are collected from customers at rates approved by the AEUB. In November 2003, the government of Alberta
revised its regulations, effective January 1, 2004, and as a result, ATCO Electric will now be at risk for electric
energy supply and will no longer be able to flow through the AESO price to customers. A further revision to the
regulations in November permitted the AEUB to extend the period for implementation to July 1, 2004 upon
application. In December 2003, the AEUB issued a decision approving ATCO Electric’s application to extend the
implementation date to July 1, 2004. Under the revised regulations, ATCO Electric is obligated to provide a fixed
price regulated rate option to customers until July 1, 2006, and a regulated rate option based on actual spot prices
thereafter.

Based on customer requirements in 2003, ATCO Electric estimates that this new policy will require it to purchase
approximately 2,000 gigawatt hours (approximately $100 million based on current prices) of electricity per year on a
fixed price basis. ATCO Electric will attempt to minimize the credit risk and price risk for volume variances
associated with buying electricity in the forward market at fixed prices and then selling to customers at fixed rates
by entering into appropriate hedging strategies, adopting prudent credit policies and negotiating with customers a
risk premium, a hedging framework and a pricing mechanism involving frequent load forecast updates and rate
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adjustments. There can be no guarantee that ATCO Electric will be able to recover all of the costs associated with
this new energy purchasing policy.

Sale of Retail Operations

In December 2002, Direct Energy agreed to purchase the retail energy businesses of ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric,
subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions, including the receipt of required regulatory approvals and the
government of Alberta amending certain natural gas and electricity legislation. In December 2003, the AEUB
issued decisions approving the transfer of the retail operations of ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric to Direct Energy,
appointing Direct Energy provider of the natural gas Default Rate Tariff and electricity Regulated Rate Tariff in the
ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric service territories and approving the tariff rate structure of Direct Energy Regulated
Services, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric. The City of Calgary has filed leave to appeal the AEUB decision
approving the transfer of the retail operations. The Corporation is reviewing the AEUB decisions and certain other
conditions which must be satisfied in order to close the sale of its retail business to Direct Energy.

If the sale does close on the anticipated terms, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric will no longer be involved in
arranging for the supply and sale of natural gas and electricity to customers, but will continue to provide
transportation and distribution services under AEUB approved rates that provide for a recovery of costs of service
and fair return. The sale does not include any of the distribution and transmission facilities used to deliver natural
gas and electricity to customers.

Alberta Power (2000)

Included in regulated operations are the generating plants of Alberta Power (2000), which were regulated by the
AEUB until December 31, 2000, but are now governed by legislatively mandated PPA’s that were approved by the
AEUB. These plants are included in regulated operations primarily because the PPA’s are designed to allow the
owners of generating plants constructed before January 1, 1996, to recover their forecast fixed and variable costs and
to earn a return at the rate specified in the PPA’s. The plants will become deregulated upon the expiry of the PPA’s,
Each PPA is to remain in effect until the earlier of the last day of the life of the related generating plant and
December 31, 2020.

Substantially all the electricity generated by Alberta Power (2000) is sold pursuant to PPA’s. Under the PPA’s,
Alberta Power (2000) is required to make the generating capacity for each generating unit available to the purchaser
of the PPA for that unit. In return, Alberta Power (2000) is entitled to recover its forecast fixed and variable costs
for that unit from the PPA purchaser, including a return on common equity equal to the long term Canada bond rate
plus 4.5% based on a deemed common equity ratio of 45%. Many of the forecast costs will be determined by
indices, formulae or other means for the entire period of the PPA. Alberta Power (2000)’s actual results will vary
and depend on performance compared to the forecasts on which the PPA’s were based.

Under the terms of the PPA’s, the Corporation is subject to an incentive/penalty regime related to generating unit
availability. Incentives are paid to the Corporation by the PPA counterparties for availability in excess of
predetermined targets, whereas penalties are paid by the Corporation to the PPA counterparties when the availability
targets are not achieved.

Accumulated incentives in excess of accumulated penalties are deferred. For any of the individual PPA’s, should
accumulated incentives plus estimated future incentives exceed accumulated penalties plus estimated future
penalties, the excess will be amortized to revenues on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the PPA’s.
Should accumulated penalties plus estimated future penalties exceed accumulated incentives plus estimated future
incentives, the shortfall will be expensed in the year the shortfall occurs.

At December 31, 2003, the Corporation had recorded $43.3 million of deferred availability incentives.
Fuel costs in Alberta Power (2000) are mostly for coal supply. To protect against volatility in coal prices, Alberta
Power (2000) owns or has sufficient coal supplies under long term contracts for the anticipated lives of its Battle

River and Sheerness coal-fired generating plants. These contracts are at prices that are either fixed or indexed to
inflation.
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As a result of unprecedented drought conditions, the water level in the cooling pond used by the Battle River plant in
its production of electricity had fallen to an all-time low in early 2003, and the Corporation made a force majeure
claim in respect of short term curtailed plant production which was experienced during the first quarter of 2003.
Water levels continue to be below normal levels, however sufficient water is currently available to permit the plant
to produce electricity according to its PPA contractual requirements. The Corporation is preparing submissions for
the arbitration hearings scheduled to commence May 3, 2004, in respect of the force majeure claim.

Non-Regulated Operations

The Corporation’s non-regulated operations are complementary to its traditional regulated businesses and are related
to them in terms of skills, knowledge and experience. The Corporation accounts for its non-regulated operations
separately from its regulated operations. The Corporation’s non-regulated operations are subject to the risks faced
by any commercial enterprise in those industries and in those countries in which they operate.

The Corporation’s portfolio of non-regulated electric generating plants is made up of gas-fired cogeneration, gas-
fired combined cycle, gas-fired simple cycle, and small hydro plants. The majority of operating income from power
generation operations is derived through long term power, steam and transmission support agreements. Where long
term agreements are in place, the purchaser assumes the fuel supply and price risks and the Corporation, under these
agreements, assumes the operating risks.

ATCO Power and ATCO Resources

ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ generating plants include high efficiency gas-fired cogeneration plants, with
associated on-site steam and power tolling arrangements, and gas-fired peaking and hydroelectric plants with
underlying transmission support agreements. In 2003, sales from approximately 65% of ATCO Power’s and ATCO
Resources’ generating capacity were subject to long term agreements, while the remaining 35% consisted primarily
of sales to the AESO. In 2004, the portion of generating capacity subject to long term agreements is expected to be
approximately 72% while the remaining 28% is expected to consist primarily of sales of electricity to the AESO.
These sales are dependent on prices in the Alberta electricity spot market. The majority of the electricity sales to the
AESO are from gas-fired generating plants, and as a result operating income is affected by natural gas prices.
During peak electricity usage hours in Alberta, a strong correlation exists between electricity spot prices and natural
gas spot prices. During off-peak hours, there is less correlation. The correlation is expected to increase in the future
as customer load grows and older plants are decommissioned.

Electricity prices and natural gas prices can be very volatile, as shown in the following graph, which illustrates a
range of prices experienced during the period January 2000 to February 2004,
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Changes in AESO prices and gas prices may have a significant impact on the Corporation’s earnings and cash flow
from operations in the future. It is the Corporation’s policy to continually monitor the status of its non-regulated
electrical generating capacity that is not subject to long term commitments.

ATCO Power and ATCO Resources have financed their non-regulated electrical generating capacity on a non-
recourse basis. In these projects, the lender’s recourse in the event of default is limited to the business and assets of
the project in question, which includes the Corporation’s equity therein. Canadian Utilities has provided a number
of guarantees related to ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ obligations under their respective non-recourse Joans
associated with certain of their projects. ATCO Power (80%) and ATCO Resources (20%) have a joint venture in
these projects. ATCO Ltd. has indemnified and agreed to reimburse Canadian Utilities for any amounts it may be
required to pay under these guarantees in respect of ATCO Resources’ 20% interest. These guarantees cover the
following items:

a) Equity contributions — Represents equity funding requirements needed to complete construction of the project
being built. At December 31, 2003, the maximum value of the obligation under this guarantee for the Brighton
Beach project financing is anticipated to be $44.2 million.

b) Completion of construction — Represents completion guarantees associated with project financing whereby non-
completion of a project by a certain date will require the repurchase of all or a portion of the project debt. At
December 31, 2003, the maximum value of the obligation under this guarantee for the Brighton Beach project
financing is $201.5 million, with an expiry date of September 30, 2006.

¢) Project cash flows ~ Represents annual payments related to maintaining base case margins for electricity prices
on the merchant power component of the project, being 30 megawatts for the Scotford project and 60
megawatts for the Muskeg River project. These guarantees became effective upon the commercial operation of
the plants and exist until 2022, when the project debt is to be fully repaid. The amounts payable under these
guarantees will vary each year depending on the pool price received for the merchant power generated. Any
payments made to maintain the project base case margins will either be available for distribution to the owners
or be applied to mandatory prepayment of the project debt in accordance with the terms of the project financing
agreement depending upon the specific operating results of the plant. At December 31, 2003, $0.5 million was
payable for the Muskeg River and Scotford projects.

d) Reserve amounts — Represents amounts to be set aside for major maintenance and debt service reserves as
stipulated in the project’s financing agreement. These reserves are intended to be funded with project cash
flows. To the extent that project cash flows are insufficient to meet reserve requirements, Canadian Utilities
may choose to provide guarantees in lieu of ATCO Power providing security. At December 31, 2003, the
amount of the obligations under these guarantees is:

Major Debt
Project Maintenance Service
($ Millions)
ATCO Power Alberta Limited Partnership (“APALP”) project financing ....... Nil (1) 8.4
Joffre project financing .......c.ccovvverii i Nil (2) 6.0
Muskeg River project financing.........ccvevecminininsnne e Nil (1) 6.6
Scotford project finANCING .....ovveiiviiiiieriirc e Nil (1) 6.6

Notes:
(1) No major maintenance reserve required for this financing.
(2) Reserve requirements of $1.8 million met with project cash flows.

e) Prepaid operating and maintenance fee — Should ATCO Power cease to be operator of the APALP generating
plants as a result of a termination of the operating agreement, Canadian Utilities has guaranteed the payment of
the unamortized portion of the prepaid operating and maintenance fee to APALP, the proceeds of which are to
be used to repay project debt in accordance with the project financing agreements. This guarantee, which
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declines by $1.5 million per year, remains in effect until 2016, when the project debt is to be fully repaid. At
December 31, 2003, the maximum value of the guarantee is $42.0 million.

f) Purchase project assets — Represents an obligation to purchase the Scotford and Muskeg River projects at a
price sufficient to repay any outstanding project debt upon the occurrence of any one of the following very
limited events:

(i) where all of the following events have occurred:
¢ the insolvency of ATCO Power;
o the failure of the project debt lenders to complete a sale of the project pursuant to their security
within a fixed period of time; and
o the project purchaser of electricity and steam elects to terminate its purchase contracts due to the
insolvency of ATCO Power;

(ii) where the project purchaser of electricity and steam does not remove ATCO Power as operator of the
project after an event of default under the project financing agreements in circumstances where such
default is either:

¢ adeliberate or willful breach of a project financing agreement; or
o where ATCO Power has failed to co-operate with the lenders in a sale of the project; and

(iii) where the project purchaser of electricity and steam terminates its purchase contracts for the project as
a result of a default by ATCO Power’s project minority joint venturers. ATCO Power has the right to
cure any such default by acquiring the minority interest which is in default.

These guarantees remain in effect until the project debt is fully repaid. At December 31, 2003, no such events
have occurred.

Canadian Utilities has also guaranteed ATCO Power’s duties to operate the Barking Power, Scotford and Muskeg
River generating plants in accordance with acceptable industry operating standards under the relevant project
contracts. Canadian Utilities has also guaranteed ATCO Power’s obligation to remediate certain deficiencies at the
Oldman River project in the amount of $3.0 million. In addition, Canadian Utilities has posted acceptable credit
support in the amount of $2.7 million with respect to builders’ liens filed against the Cory Project.

To date, Canadian Utilities has not been required to pay any of its guaranteed obligations.
Contingencies

The Corporation is party to a number of disputes and lawsuits in the normal course of business. Management is
confident that the ultimate liability arising from these matters will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Hedging

In conducting its business, the Corporation uses various instruments, including forward contracts, swaps and
options, to manage the risks arising from fluctuations in exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices. All
such instruments are used only to manage risk and not for trading purposes.

The Corporation designates each derivative instrument as a hedge of specific assets or liabilities on the balance sheet
or specific firm commitments or anticipated transactions. The Corporation also assesses, both at the hedge’s
inception and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivative instruments that are used in hedging transactions are
effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged items.

Payments or receipts on derivative instruments that are designated and effective as hedges are recognized
concurrently with, and in the same financial category as, the hedged item.

If a derivative instrument is terminated or ceases to be effective as a hedge prior to maturity, the gain or loss at that

date is deferred and recognized in income concurrently with the hedged item. Subsequent changes in the value of
the derivative instrument are reflected in income. If the designated hedged item is sold, extinguished or matures
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prior to the termination of the related derivative instrument, the gain or loss at that date on such derivative
instrument is recognized in income.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

Unrecorded future income tax liabilities of the regulated operations amounted to $167.5 million at December 31,
2003. This balance includes $46.3 million in respect of Alberta Power (2000)’s generating plants, which will be
recovered through future payments received in respect of the PPA’s. The remainder, amounting to $121.2 million,
is expected to be recovered from utility customers through inclusion in future rates. In addition, there are tax loss
carryforwards of $0.7 million for Canadian subsidiary corporations and tax loss carryforwards of $8.8 million for a
foreign subsidiary for which no tax benefit has been recorded. These losses begin to expire in 2007 and 2005,
respectively. In addition, the Corporation uses various derivative instruments to manage the risks arising from
fluctuations in exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices. Note 20 to the financial statements sets out the
instruments in place at December 31, 2003.

Other than the foregoing, the Corporation does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have, or are likely
to have, a current or future effect on the results of operations or financial condition, including, without limitation,
such considerations as liquidity and capital resources.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Corporation’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the year. On an on-going basis, management reviews its
estimates, particularly those related to depreciation and amortization methods, useful lives and impairment of long-
lived assets, amortization of deferred availability incentives, and employee future benefits, using currently available
information. Changes in facts and circumstances may result in revised estimates, and actual results could differ
from those estimates. The Corporation’s critical accounting estimates are discussed below.

Deferred Availability Incentives

As noted previously in the Business Risks section, Alberta Power (2000) is subject to an incentive/penalty regime
related to generating unit availability. As at December 31, 2003, the Corporation had recorded $43.3 million of
deferred availability incentives. The amortization of deferred availability incentives, which was recorded in
revenues, amounted to $7.5 million in 2003.

The amount of deferred availability incentives to be amortized is dependent upon estimates of future generating unit
availability and future electricity prices over the term of the PPA’s. Each quarter, the Corporation uses these
estimates to forecast best case, worst case and most likely scenarios for the incentives to be received from, less
penaities to be paid to, the PPA counterparties. These forecasts are added to the accumulated unamortized deferred
availability incentives outstanding at the end of the quarter; the resulting total is divided by the remaining term of
the PPA to arrive at the amortization for the quarter.

Compared to the most likely scenario recorded in revenues, the best case scenario would have resulted in higher
revenues of approximately $4.0 million, whereas the worst case scenario would have resulted in lower revenues of
approximately $3.5 million.

Employee Future Benefits

The Corporation’s employee future benefits disclosures are based on three critical accounting estimates: (1) the
expected long term rate of return on plan assets; (2) the liability discount rate; and, (3) the long term inflation rate.

The expected long term rate of return on plan assets is determined at the beginning of the year on the basis of the

long bond yield rate at the beginning of the year plus an equity and management premium that reflects the plan asset
mix. Actual balanced fund performance over a longer period suggests that this premium is about 1%, which, when
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added to the long bond yield rate of 6.5% at the beginning of 2003, resulted in an expected long term rate of return
of 7.5% for 2003. This methodology is supported by actuarial guidance on long term asset return assumptions for
the Corporation’s defined benefit pension plans, taking into account asset class returns, normal equity risk
premiums, and asset diversification effect on portfolio returns.

Expected return on plan assets for the year is calculated by applying the expected long term rate of return to the
market related value of plan assets, which is the average of the market value of plan assets at the end of the
preceding three years.

The liability discount rate reflects market interest rates on high quality corporate bonds that match the timing and
amount of expected benefit payments. The liability discount rate used to calculate the cost of benefit obligations in
2003 was 6.5%; the liability discount rate used to determine the accrued benefit obligations at the end of 2003 was
reduced to 6.25%.

The expected long term rate of return has declined over the past two years, from 8.1% in 2001 to 7.5% in 2003. The
result has been a decrease in the expected return on plan assets. The difference between the expected return and the
actual return on plan assets results in an experience gain or loss on plan assets. The liability discount rate has also
declined over the same period, from 6.9% at the end of 2001 to 6.25% at the end of 2003. The effect of this change
has been to increase the accrued benefit obligations, resulting in experience losses in 2002 and 2003. In accordance
with the Corporation’s accounting policy to amortize cumulative experience gains and losses in excess of 10 percent
of the greater of the accrued benefit obligations or the market value of plan assets, the Corporation began amortizing
a portion of the cumulative experience losses in 2003 for both pension benefit plans and other post employment
benefit plans.

The assumed annual health care cost trend rate increases used in measuring the accumulated post employment
benefit obligation are as follows: for drug costs, 10.5% for 2003 grading down over 10 years to 4.5%, and, for other
medical and dental costs, 4.0% for 2003 and thereafter. Combined with higher claims experience, the effect of these
changes has been to increase the costs of other post employment benefits.

The effect of changes in these estimates and assumptions is mitigated by an AEUB decision to record the costs of

employee future benefits when paid rather than accrued. Therefore, a significant portion of the benefit plans
expense or income is unrecognized by the regulated operations, excluding Alberta Power (2000).
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The sensitivities of key assumptions used in measuring accrued benefit obligations and benefit plan expense
(income) for 2003 are outlined in the following table. The sensitivities of each key assumption have been calculated
independently of changes in other key assumptions. Actual experience may result in changes in a number of
assumptions simultaneously.

2003 2003 Other Post
Pension Benefit Plans Employment Benefit Plans
Benefit Benefit
Accrued Plan Accrued Plan
Benefit Expense Benefit Expense
Obligation (Income) Obligation (Income)
($ Millions)
Expected long term rate of return on plan
assets
1% increase (1)..coivcrncvncriceeniianeieniennnnnn. - 3.9 - -
1% decrease (1).ccoevveeenvrreiieninnneen e, - 39 - -
Liability discount rate
1% increase (1)..ceervnenincerveerecincresnenne. (57.4) (0.9) 3.0) (0.3)
1% decrease (1) ..ovvecereereeceinrenneeceercaiennin e 57.4 0.9 3.0 0.3
Long term inflation rate (2)
1% 1nCrease (1)..eoeuenereniecerreinerensreseereons 38.0 0.6 2.6 0.5
1% decrease (1)..occeveecericeececnncieeeeieieene, (38.0) 0.6) 2.2) 0.4)

Notes:

(1) Sensitivities are net of the associated regulatory asset (liability) and unrecognized defined benefit plans expense
(income), which reflect an AEUB decision to record costs of employee future benefits in the regulated
operations, excluding Alberta Power (2000), when paid rather than accrued.

(2) The long term inflation rate for other post employment benefits plans is the assumed annual health care cost
trend rate described in the weighted average assumptions.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Effective January 1, 2004, the Corporation will retroactively adopt the recommendations of the Canadian Institute of
Chartered Accountants (“CICA”) on stock based compensation. The recommendations require expensing of stock
options. The impact on the financial statements resulting from the adoption of the recommendations is not expected
to be material.

Effective January 1, 2004, the Corporation will retroactively adopt the recommendations of the CICA on accounting
for asset retirement obligations. The recommendations require total retirement costs to be recorded as a liability at
fair value, with a corresponding increase to property, plant and equipment. The impact on the financial statements
resulting from the adoption of the recommendations is not expected to be material.

Effective January 1, 2004, the Corporation will prospectively adopt the recommendations of the CICA on
accounting for asset impairment. The recommendations require an impairment of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets with finite lives, deferred operating costs and long term prepaid expenses to be recognized in
income when the asset’s carrying value exceeds the total cash flows expected from its use and eventual disposition.
The impairment loss is then calculated as the difference between the asset’s carrying value and its fair value, which
is determined using present value techniques. The impact on the financial statements resulting from the adoption of
the recommendations is not expected to be material.

During 2003, the Corporation adopted the CICA’s accounting guideline pertaining to the identification, designation,
documentation and effectiveness of hedging relationships for the purposes of applying hedge accounting.

February 26, 2004
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DOCUMENT INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
The Corporation’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations for the year ended December 31, 2003, is incorporated by reference into and forms an
integral part of this Annual Information Form.
DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS

Certain terms used in this Annual Information Form are defined below:

“AESQO” means the Alberta Electric System Operator, formerly the Alberta Power Pool and the
Transmissicn Administrator;

“AEUB” means the Alberta Energy and Utilities Board;
“AGP” means ATCO Gas and Pipelines Ltd.;

“Alberta Power (2000)” means Alberta Power (2000) Ltd.;
“ASHCOR Technologies” means ASHCOR Technologies Ltd.;

“ATCO” means ATCO Ltd.;
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“ATCO Electric” means ATCO Electric Ltd.;
“ATCO Frontec” means ATCO Frontec Corp.;

“ATCO Gas” means the natural gas distribution division of AGP;

“ATCO I-Tek” means ATCO I-Tek Inc. Prior to January 1, 2004, ATCO I-Tek was a division of

Cu;

“ATCO I-Tek Business Services” means ATCO I-Tek Business Services Ltd.;
“ATCO Investments” means ATCO Investments Ltd.;

“ATCO Midstream” means ATCO Midstream Ltd.;

“ATCO Noise Management” means ATCO Noise Management Ltd.;

“ATCO Pipelines” means the natural gas transportation division of AGP;
“ATCO Power” means ATCO Power Ltd. together with its subsidiaries;
“ATCO Resources” means ATCO Resources 1.td.;

“ATCO Structures” means ATCO Structures Inc. together with its subsidiaries;
“ATCO Travel” means ATCO Travel Ltd.;

“ATCO Utility Services” means ATCO Utility Services Ltd.;

“BPL” means Barking Power Limited;

“Canadian Utilities” means Canadian Utilities Limited together with all its subsidiaries;
“Class I Shares” means the Class I Non-Voting Shares of the Corporation;

“Class I Shares” means the Class II Voting Shares of the Corporation;

“Corporation” means ATCO Ltd. and, unless the context otherwise requires, includes its

subsidiaries;
“CU” means Canadian Utilities Limited;
“CU Water” means CU Water Limited,

“EEEP” means the Edmonton Ethane Extraction Plant;
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“EUA” means the Electric Utilities Act (Alberta);

“Genics” means Genics Inc.;

“km’” means kilometre;

“Mmcf” means one million cubic feet and “Bcf” means one billion cubic feet;

“negotiated settlement” means an agreement related to a revenue requirement and/or customer
rates for a specific period of time resulting from direct negotiations between a utility and its
customers. A negotiated settlement avoids the need for a general rate application for the duration
of the agreement. All negotiated settlements must be approved by the AEUB;

“NLD” means Northland Utilities (NWT) Limited;
“NUY” means Northland Utilities (Yellowknife) Limited;

“petajoule” means a unit of energy equal to approximately 948.2 billion British thermal units,
“terajoule” means a unit of energy equal to approximately 948.2 million British thermal units
and “gigajoule” means a unit of energy equal to approximately 948.2 thousand British thermal
units;

“PPA’s” mean power purchase arrangements that became effective on January 1, 2001, as part of
the process of restructuring the electric utility business in Alberta. The PPA’s are legislatively
mandated and approved by the AEUB; -

“REA” means Rural Electrification Association. REAs are constituted under the Rural Utilities
Act (Alberta) by groups of persons carrying on farming operations. Each REA purchases
electric power for distribution to its members through a distribution system owned by that REA;

“Thames Power” means Thames Power Limited;

“YECL” means The Yukon Electrical Company Limited.

ATCOLTD.

The Corporation is the successor to the business commenced in 1947 by the late S.D. Southern
and R.D. Southern and was incorporated under The Companies Act (Alberta) by Certificate of
Incorporation dated August 31, 1962. The Corporation was continued under the Business
Corporations Act (Alberta) on March 13, 1984. The address of the principal and registered
office of the Corporation is 1600 ATCO Centre, 909 — 11™ Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta T2R
1NG6.
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The following chart includes the names of the operating subsidiaries of the Corporation, the
jurisdictions under the laws of which they are organized and the percentages of their voting
shares beneficially owned or over which control or direction is exercised by the Corporation.

ATCO Ltd.
(Alberta)
0]
Canadian Utilities
Limited
(Canada)
[ 100% 100% [ 100% [ 100% 100%
CU Inc. ATCO ATCO ATCO I-Tek ATCO
Power Ltd. Midstream Ltd. Inc. Structures Inc.
(Canada) (Canada) (Canada) (Canada) (Alberta)
100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
ATCO Gas and ATCO Power ATCO ATCO I-Tek ATCO Structures
Pipelines Ltd. Canada Lud. Frontec Corp. Business Services Ltd. Pty Ltd.
(Alberta) (Canada) (Alberta) (Canada) (Australia)
100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Alberta Power ATCO Power ATCO ASHCOR ATCO
(2000) L1d. Generation Ltd. Travel Ltd. Technologies Ltd. | | Europe Kft.
(Canada) (England) (Canada) (Canada) __(Hungary)
100% 50% 50% 50%
CU Water Thames Genics || Tecno Fast
Limited Power Limited Inc. ATCO S.A.
(Canada) (England) (Alberta) (Chile)
100% 51% 100% 100%
ATCO Barking ATCOUdlity | | ATCO Noise
Electric Ltd. Power Limited Services Ltd. Management Ltd.
(Canada) (England) (Canada) (Alberta)
100% 100% 100%
The Yukon Electrical | | ATCO Power ATCO
Company Limited Australia Pty Ltd. Investments Ltd.
(Yukon Territory) (Australia) (Alberta)
100% 100%
Norven ATCO
Holdings Inc. Resources Ltd.
(Canada) (Alberta)
76%
Northland Utilities
Enterprises Ltd.
(Canada)
100%
Northland Utilities
(Yellowkaife) Limited
(Canada)
100%
Nerthiand Utilities
(NWT) Limited
(Northwest Territories)

Notes:

(1) At December 31, 2003, all of the non-voting shares of each of the above corporations were directly or indirectly
owned by the Corporation, with the exception of Canadian Utilities Limited. 73.4% of the Class B common
shares, being the only voting securities outstanding, and 40.2% of the Class A non-voting shares of Canadian

Utilities Limited are held by ATCO Ltd.
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CONSOLIDATED THREE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Year Ended December 31
2003 2002 2001
(3 Millions except per share data)
REVEIIUES ...c.vti ittt st st ste s ebresraeesessasbearebeeabesstnsessassnsns 3,929.7 3,196.3 3,767.8
Earnings attributable to Class I and Class IT Shares (1) (2) ..cc.coocvvivvvreenccnnnne 131.2 163.0 1244
Earnings per Class I and Class IT Share (1) ..o 4.40 547 4.18
Diluted earnings per Class I and Class II Share (1) .....cooovvvvincinnicninnnencnn, 4.35 5.39 4.12
TOLA] ASSELS....viviieririisiireerasr i nerrsene e eseess e ser st e b eeeesiebbsb b etaebbers st s st e sbaate st besens 6,591.2 6,403.3 5,845.4
LONG termM debt......ccoiiiiiiiicr ettt 1,841.6 1,936.0 1,883.0
Non-recourse long term debt ......ccoeeeviiiirienenceniicren e 948.2 956.4 770.4
Equity preferred Shares ............coovrininiinicnnicinenene e csesevenes 150.0 150.0 150.0
Class I and Class II share OWners’ equity ......cccocevmeneriminnenminnincenneeen, 1,133.6 1,044.8 911.6
Cash dividends declared per share:
5.75% Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares, Series 3 (3).......c...... 1.44 1.44 0.57
Class T SHATES......ccveeriiiiiieriireree s st ebc st sce e e nseseenens 1.28 1.16 1.04
ClIass II SHATES ..ovveveiieieectee ettt bbb e 1.28 1.16 1.04
Notes:

(1) There were no discontinued operations or extraordinary items during these periods.
(2) The 2002 results include earnings of $34.9 million on the sale of the Viking-Kinsella natural gas producing

property.
(3) Issued July 10, 2001.

BUSINESS OF THE CORPORATION

The Corporation is a holding company. Its principal operating subsidiaries are engaged in
regulated natural gas and electric energy operations, primarily in Alberta, and in related non-
regulated operations. Regulated operations are conducted by ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas,
ATCO Pipelines and CU Water. Included in regulated operations are the generating plants of
Alberta Power (2000), which were regulated by the AEUB until December 31, 2000, but are now
governed by legislatively mandated PPA’s that were approved by the AEUB. These plants are
included in regulated operations primarily because the PPA’s are designed to allow the owners of
generating plants constructed before January 1, 1996, to recover their forecast fixed and variable
costs and to earn a return at the rate specified in the PPA’s. The plants will become deregulated
upon the expiry of the PPA’s. Each PPA is to remain in effect until the earlier of the last day of
the life of the related generating plant and December 31, 2020.

The Corporation has five Business Groups: Utilities, Power Generation, Logistics and Energy
Services, Industrials and Technologies. For the purposes of financial disclosure, the
Technologies Business Group is included in Technologies and Other Businesses. Corporate
results, which include administrative expenses, earnings from corporate investments and
financing charges, are accounted for as Corporate.

The Utilities Business Group includes the regulated distribution of natural gas by ATCO Gas, the
regulated distribution and transmission of electric energy by ATCO Electric and its subsidiaries,
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NLD, NUY and YECL, the regulated transmission and distribution of water by CU Water, and
the provision of non-regulated engineering, procurement and construction services for customers
in the utility, energy and telecommunications sectors by ATCO Utility Services.

The Power Generation Business Group includes the non-regulated supply of electricity and
cogeneration steam by ATCO Power and ATCO Resources and the regulated supply of
electricity by Alberta Power (2000).

The Logistics and Energy Services Business Group includes the regulated transportation of
natural gas by ATCO Pipelines, the non-regulated gathering, processing, storage, purchase and
sale of natural gas by ATCO Midstream, and the provision of project management and technical
services for customers in the industrial, defence and transportation sectors by ATCO Frontec.

The Industrials Business Group includes the manufacture, sale and lease of transportable
workforce shelter and space rentals products by ATCO Structures and the design and
construction of buildings to reduce noise emissions from industrial facilities by ATCO Noise
Management.

The Technologies Business Group and Other Businesses includes the development, operation
and support of information systems and technologies by ATCO I-Tek, the provision of billing
services, payment processing, credit, collection and call centre services by ATCO I-Tek Business
Services, the sale of fly ash and other combustion byproducts produced in coal-fired electrical
generating plants by ASHCOR Technologies, the manufacture of wood preservation products by
Genics, and the sale of travel services to both business and consumer sectors by ATCO Travel.
In addition, ATCO Investments owns commercial real estate in Calgary, Alberta and Canadian
Utilities owns commercial real estate in Fort McMurray, Alberta.

Utilities
Natural Gas Operations

ATCO Gas is primarily engaged in the business of distributing natural gas throughout Alberta
and in the Lloydminster area of Saskatchewan. In addition, ATCO Gas stores and purchases
natural gas. Although ATCO Gas is the major natural gas distributor in Alberta, certain areas are
served by other natural gas utilities.

ATCO Gas’ principal markets for the sale of natural gas are in the communities of Edmonton,
Calgary, Airdrie, Camrose, Fort McMurray, Grande Prairie, Lethbridge, Lloydminster, Red
Deer, St. Albert and Sherwood Park, which have a combined population of approximately
1,988,000. Also served are 280 smaller communities as well as rural areas having a combined
population of approximately 553,000, located on or in the vicinity of ATCO Pipelines’
transportation systems or the natural gas transportation pipelines of other companies. ATCO Gas
serves approximately 888,000 customers with natural gas, of whom approximately 75% are
located in the 11 communities named above.
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The number of customers served by ATCO Gas as at the end of each of the last two years was as
follows:

2003 2002
Sales Transportation Sales Transportation
Service Service Total Service Service Total
Residential ................. 760,508 49,413 809,921 751,373 34,037 785,410
Commercial................ 72,707 4,729 77,436 72,052 4,101 76,153
Industrial......ccccoeveee. 260 107 367 250 109 359
Other.ocoviveirieccrinninee, 16 - 16 1 - 1
Affiliates ......cvvernenee 27 - 27 29 - 29
Total..ooereriiieeecne 833,518 54,249 887,767 823,705 38,247 861,952

ATCO Gas owns and operates approximately 34,200 km of distribution mains. In addition,
ATCO Gas owns modern service and maintenance facilities in major centres.

Sales and earnings of ATCO Gas are affected by temperature and consequently winter weather
can have a significant impact. Usually, more than 50% of the earnings of ATCO Gas are
generated during the months of January, February, November and December.

The amounts of natural gas sold and distributed by ATCO Gas for each of the last two years
were as follows:

2003 2002
Sales Transportation Sales Transportation
Service Service Total Service Service Total
(petajoules)
Residential ................. 103.6 5.7 109.3 105.5 4.6 110.1
Commercial................ 84.5 15.6 100.1 86.7 15.5 102.2
Industrial .......ccooovevne 4.1 10.5 14.6 42 10.8 15.0
Other....ocovvveenernnrnnen. 5.8 - 5.8 4.4 - 44
Affiliates.....coveeveerennn 0.2 - 0.2 0.2 - 0.2
Total ..o 198.2 31.8 230.0 201.0 30.9 231.9
Natural Gas Supply

ATCO Gas purchases the major portion (approximately 84%) of its supplies of natural gas under
contracts with terms of less than one year. The prices for these purchases are determined
through a tender/bid process or a negotiation process and are generally referenced to indices
related to other Alberta natural gas purchase contracts.

Additional natural gas requirements are provided under longer term contracts. The prices for
these purchases are based on price indices related to prices paid under other third party natural
gas purchase contracts in Alberta. As ATCO Gas’ long term natural gas purchase contracts
expire, ATCO Gas replaces them with contracts for one year or less. These shorter term
contracts provide the flexibility needed to ensure that customers who choose to purchase their
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natural gas from other suppliers can be accommodated while still maintaining the supply security
stipulated by legislation.

ATCO Gas also owns natural gas field storage facilities at Carbon, Alberta.

In the opinion of the management of ATCO Gas, the foregoing arrangements provide sufficient
supplies of natural gas to meet the requirements of sales customers.

CU Water

CU Water is engaged in the transmission and distribution of water. CU Water owns and operates
a distribution system to supply water to rural customers and small towns east of Edmonton. At
the end of 2003, approximately 856 customers were being served directly by CU Water and, in
addition, bulk water sales were being made to the town of Tofield and to approximately 192
commercial water haulers. The operations of CU Water are subject to regulation by the AEUB.

Electric Operations

ATCO Electric is engaged in the business of distributing and transmitting electric energy to 246
communities as well as rural areas in east-central and northern Alberta. Included are the
communities of Drumheller, Lloydminster, Grande Prairie and Fort McMurray as well as the oil
sands areas near Fort McMurray and the heavy oil areas near Cold Lake and Peace River.
Electric utility service is also provided to one community in British Columbia and to two
communities in Saskatchewan. YECL serves 19 communities in the Yukon Territory, including
the capital city of Whitehorse, and NUY and NLD serve nine communities in the Northwest
Territories, including the capital city of Yellowknife.

Electricity distributed to the various classes of customers for each of the last two years was as
follows:

2003 2002
Millions Millions
of of

Kilowatt Kilowatt
Hours % Hours %
INAUSTIAL . oviieee et ee st sttt er et snneanaon 6,502 67 7,143 70
COMMETCIAL v cvvveeeeireeriiienieeesiirerieee st ertvareseversissessessesneesrerens 1,729 18 1,655 16
RESIACNAL ..veovviievireiiniie ettt ettt 982 10 963 9
Rural, REAS and Other ....cc.coovvve i scrseressrnennns 555 5 463 5
4 0171 (TR TRRUTORI 9,768 100 10,224 100

The aggregate population of the areas provided with electric utility service by ATCO Electric,
NUY, NLD and YECL is approximately 438,000 and service is provided to approximately
202,000 customers. ATCO Electric has been assigned approximately 65% of the designated
service area within Alberta which contains approximately 15% of the existing provincial
electrical load and 12% of the existing population.
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The number of customers served by ATCO Electric, NUY, NLD and YECL as at the end of each
of the last two years was as follows:

2003 2002
Number % Number %
INAUSEIIAL ..ot ettt et 10,484 5 10,623 5
COMMMETCIAL c.vvviiiieire ittt a e e e esbee e snees 27.386 14 27,448 14
ReSIAENUAL .ottt 135,263 67 131,143 66
Rural, REAS and Other.......cooieiviiiecirvinmenenmececsinreoeeseneons 29,135 14 28,632 15
03721 SOOI 202,268 100 197,846 100

ATCO Electric, NUY, NLD and YECL own and operate extensive electric transmission and
distribution systems. The systems consist of approximately 9,000 km of main transmission lines
and 58,000 km of distribution lines. In addition, ATCO Electric delivers power to and operates
approximately 12,300 km of REA-owned distribution lines.

ATCO Electric, NUY, NLD and YECL own and operate 36 diesel, natural gas turbine and hydro
generating plants having an aggregate nameplate capacity of 62 megawatts in Alberta and in the
Yukon and Northwest Territories. The maximum peak load demand for these plants during the
year ended December 31, 2003, was 33 megawatts.

Electricity Supply

ATCO Electric is required to supply energy to certain customers in one of three ways: through
the regulated rate tariff, as the default retailer or as the default supplier (formerly “supplier of last
resort”).

ATCO Electric is obligated to supply energy under the regulated rate option to the residential,
farm and small commercial customers in its designated service area who do not choose an
unregulated retailer. ATCO Electric purchases electricity from the AESO at spot prices to
supply the regulated rate option customers, the costs for which are collected from customers at
rates approved by the AEUB. In November 2003, the government of Alberta revised its
regulations, effective January 1, 2004, and as a result, ATCO Electric will now be at risk for
electric energy supply and will no longer be able to flow through the AESO price to customers.
A further revision to the regulations in November permitted the AEUB to extend the period for
implementation to July 1, 2004 upon application. In December 2003, the AEUB issued a
decision approving ATCO Electric’s application to extend the implementation date to July I,
2004. Under the revised regulations, ATCO Electric is obligated to provide a fixed price
regulated rate option to customers until July 1, 2006, and a regulated rate option based on actual
spot prices thereafter.

ATCO Electric is also obligated to assign a default retailer for its customers who are not eligible
for the regulated rate tariff and did not choose an unregulated retailer prior to 2001. ATCO
Electric appointed itself as the default retailer and purchases electricity from the AESO at the
spot price to supply these customers, the costs for which are passed on to customers on a dollar
for dollar basis.
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ATCO Electric has appointed itself as the default supplier (formerly “supplier of last resort™) for
its customers who are not eligible for its regulated rate tariff and who are unable to obtain service
from a retailer. The energy procurement price for these customers is the spot price of the AESO,
the costs for which are passed on to customers on a dollar for dollar basis.

Sale of Retail Operations

In December 2002, Direct Energy Marketing Limited (“Direct Energy”) agreed to purchase the
retail energy businesses of ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric, subject to the satisfaction of certain
conditions, including the receipt of required regulatory approvals and the government of Alberta
amending certain natural gas and electricity legislation. In December 2003, the AEUB issued
decisions approving the transfer of the retail operations of ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric to
Direct Energy, appointing Direct Energy provider of the natural gas Default Rate Tariff and
electricity Regulated Rate Tariff in the ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric service territories and
approving the tariff rate structure of Direct Energy Regulated Services, ATCO Gas and ATCO
Electric. The City of Calgary has filed leave to appeal the AEUB decision approving the transfer
of the retail operations. The Corporation is reviewing the AEUB decisions and certain other
conditions which must be satisfied in order to close the sale of its retail business to Direct
Energy.

If the sale does close on the anticipated terms, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric will no longer be
involved in arranging for the supply and sale of natural gas and electricity to customers, but will
continue to provide transportation and distribution services under AEUB approved rates that
provide for a recovery of costs of service and fair return. The sale does not include any of the
distribution and transmission facilities used to deliver natural gas and electricity to customers.

In addition, ATCO I-Tek Business Services Ltd., which currently provides billing and customer
care services to ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric, has entered into a contract to provide similar
services to Direct Energy in the event the sale closes as anticipated (see “Technologies — ATCO
I-Tek Business Services Ltd.”).

Power Generation

Power generation operations are conducted by Alberta Power (2000), ATCO Power and ATCO
Resources.

Regulated

Alberta Power (2000) is engaged in the regulated supply of electricity in Alberta. Alberta Power
(2000)’s assets are operated by ATCO Power pursuant to management agreements. The
generating plants of Alberta Power (2000) were regulated by the AEUB until December 31,
2000, but are now governed by legislatively mandated PPA’s that were approved by the AEUB.
These plants are included in regulated operations primarily because the PPA’s are designed to
allow the owners of generating plants constructed before January 1, 1996, to recover their
forecast fixed and variable costs and to earn a return at the rate specified in the PPA’s. The
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plants will become deregulated upon the expiry of the PPA’s. Each PPA is to remain in effect
until the earlier of the last day of the life of the related generating plant and December 31, 2020.

Substantially all of the electricity generated by Alberta Power (2000) is sold pursuant to PPA’s
with EPCOR Utilities Inc. (Battle River generating plant); Duke Energy Inc. (Rainbow
generating plant); and the Alberta Balancing Pool (Sheerness generating plant). Under the
PPA’s, Alberta Power (2000) is required to make the generating capacity for each generating
unit available to the purchaser of the PPA for that unit. In return, Alberta Power (2000) is
entitled to recover its forecast fixed and variable costs for that unit from the PPA purchaser,
including a return on common equity equal to the long term Canada bond rate plus 4.5% based
on a deemed common equity ratio of 45%. Many of the forecast costs will be determined by
indices, formulae or other means for the entire period of the PPA. Alberta Power (2000)’s actual
results will vary and depend on performance compared to the forecasts on which the PPA’s are
based.

The name plate capacity ratings of Alberta Power (2000)’s generating plants are listed below.

Name Plate
Plant Type of Generating Plant Capacity Rating
(megawatts)

Battle River coal-fired steam turbine 679
Sheerness coal-fired steam turbine 375 (9
H.R. Milner coal-fired steam turbine 150 (@)
Rainbow natural gas turbine 90
Sturgeon natural gas turbine 18

1,312

Notes:
(1) Alberta Power (2000)’s ownership of the 750 megawatt name plate capacity.
(2) Alberta Power (2000) operated H.R. Milner to the closing date of its sale on January 29, 2004.

Alberta Power (2000) manages the Sheerness generating plant under long term agreements with
TransAlta Cogeneration L.P. for the equal sharing of ownership and cost of electric capacity.

Alberta Power (2000) owns or has committed under long term contracts sufficient coal supplies
for the anticipated lives of its Battle River and Sheerness generating plants.

In 2001, Alberta Power (2000) and the Alberta Balancing Pool entered into an agreement which
gave the Alberta Balancing Pool control of the H.R. Milner generating plant effective January 1,
2001 and the right to sell it until September 30, 2003, failing which the rights to control the
generating plant would revert to Alberta Power (2000). In return, Alberta Power (2000) was
paid $63.5 million, the net book value of the generating plant and coal inventory. Alberta Power
(2000) operated the generating plant under a cost of service contract with the Alberta Balancing
Pool. On August 6, 2003, the Alberta Balancing Pool announced that it had entered into an
agreement for the sale of plant. Alberta Power (2000) extended its cost of service contract until
January 29, 2004, when the plant was sold by the Alberta Balancing Pool to a third party. As
part of the sale, Alberta Power (2000) was relieved of all decommissioning risk, including any
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environmental liabilities incurred while Alberta Power (2000) was operating the generating
plant.

As a result of unprecedented drought conditions, the water level in the cooling pond used by the
Battle River plant in its production of electricity had fallen to an all-time low in early 2003, and
the Corporation made a force majeure claim in respect of short term curtailed plant production
which was experienced during the first quarter of 2003. Water levels continue to be below
normal levels, however sufficient water is currently available to permit the plant to produce
electricity according to its PPA contractual requirements. The Corporation is preparing
submissions for the arbitration hearings scheduled to commence May 3, 2004, in respect of the
force majeure claim.

Non-Regulated
ATCO Power is engaged in the non-regulated supply of electricity and cogeneration steam in
Canada, the United Kingdom and Australia. ATCO Power also manages Alberta Power (2000)’s

assets. ATCO Power continues to focus its development efforts on independent power
production projects in Canada, Australia and the United Kingdom.
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ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ non-regulated independent cogeneration plants and
generating plants, with their respective commissioning dates and name plate capacity ratings, are
shown below.

Naimne Plate
Commissioning Capacity Net
Location Date Rating Ownership Ownership
(megawatts) (megawatts)
Canada:
Operating Units:
McMabhon, B.C. 1993 120 50.0% 60
Primrose, Alberta 1998 85 50.0% 43
Poplar Hill, Alberta 1998 43 100.0% 43
Rainbow Lake, Alberta 1999 89 50.0% 45
Joffre, Alberta 2000 480 40.0% 192
Valleyview, Alberta 2001 46 100.0% 46
Muskeg River, Alberta 2003 170 70.0% 119
Cory, Saskatchewan 2003 260 50.0% 130
Oldman River, Alberta 2003 32 100.0% 32
Scotford, Alberta 2003 170 100.0% 170
Units Under Construction:
Brighton Beach, Ontario 2004 580 50.0% 290
United Kingdom:
Operating Units:
Barking, London 1995 1,000 25.5% 255
Heathrow Airport 1995 14 50.0% 7
Australia:
Operating Units:
Osborne, South Australia 1998 180 50.0% 90
Bulwer Island, Queensland 2001 33 50.0% 17
Total 3,302 1,539
Canada

ATCO Power has a 50% interest in a joint venture with McMahon Power Holdings L.P. The
joint venture owns and operates the 120 megawatt McMahon cogeneration plant at Taylor,
British Columbia. All of the electricity generated is sold to British Columbia Hydro and Power
Authority (“BC Hydro™) pursuant to an electricity purchase agreement expiring in 2013. In
addition to generating electricity, the plant sells steam to Westcoast Energy Inc.’s adjacent
natural gas processing plant.

A joint venture, owned by ATCO Power, Canadian Natural Resources Limited (“CNRL”) and
ATCO Resources, operates an 85 megawatt cogeneration power plant (the “Primrose Steam
Enhancement Plant”) near Bonnyville, Alberta. The joint venture sells electricity and steam to
CNRL for use in its heavy oil recovery process. Any excess electricity generated is sold to the
AESO or to specific customers. ATCO Power owns a 40% interest in the project, ATCO
Resources owns 10% and CNRL owns 50%.
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ATCO Power operates a 43 megawatt natural gas-fired generating plant at Poplar Hill near
Grande Prairie, Alberta. Revenues are derived from power sold to the AESO and from
transmission deferral credits contracted with the AESO. ATCO Power owns an 80% interest in
the project and ATCO Resources owns 20%.

ATCO Power operates an 89 megawatt natural gas-fired generating plant at Rainbow Lake,
Alberta which sells steam and electricity to Husky Energy Inc. (“Husky”). Surplus electricity is
sold to the AESO. ATCO Power owns a 40% interest in the project, ATCO Resources owns
10% and Husky owns 50%.

ATCO Power, EPCOR Power Development Corporation (“EPCOR”) and NOVA Chemicals
Corporation (“NOVA”) are participants in a joint venture which operates a 480 megawatt natural
gas-fired cogeneration plant near Joffre, Alberta. ATCO Power is the operator of the facility.
NOVA purchases all of the steam and approximately 25% of the electricity produced for use in
NOVA’s Joffre petrochemical site under an energy purchase agreement expiring in 2020. The
balance of the output is sold to the AESO or to specific customers. ATCO Power owns a 32%
interest in the project, ATCO Resources owns 8%, EPCOR owns 40% and NOVA owns 20%.

ATCO Power operates a 46 megawatt natural gas-fired generating plant near Valleyview,
Alberta. All of the electricity produced by the plant is sold to the AESO. ATCO Power owns an
80% interest in the project and ATCO Resources owns 20%.

ATCO Power and SaskPower International Inc. (“SPI”) are participants in a joint venture which
operates a 170 megawatt natural gas-fired cogeneration plant and related facilities at the
Athabasca Oil Sands Project (“AOSP”) Muskeg River mine near Fort McMurray, Alberta.
Approximately one-half of the electricity and all of the steam produced by the plant are supplied
to AOSP for use in its Muskeg River mine. The balance of the electricity generated is sold to the
AESO. Construction of the plant has been completed and commercial operation commenced on
January 1, 2003. ATCO Power owns a 56% interest in the project, ATCO Resources owns 14%
and SPI owns 30%.

ATCO Power and SPI are participants in a joint venture which operates a 260 megawatt natural
gas-fired cogeneration plant at Potash Corporation of Saskatchewan Inc.’s Cory Mine, located
near Saskatoon, Saskatchewan. ATCO Power is the operator of the facility. Saskatchewan
Power Corporation purchases all of the electricity generated by the plant for 25 years.
Construction of the plant has been completed and commercial operation commenced on January
15, 2003. ATCO Power owns a 40% interest in the project, ATCO Resources owns 10% and
SPI owns 50%.

ATCO Power operates a 32 megawatt hydroelectric generating plant at the Oldman River dam
near Pincher Creek, Alberta. All of the electricity produced by the plant is sold to the AESO.
The project was commissioned on September 30, 2003. ATCO Power owns an 80% interest in
the project and ATCO Resources owns 20%. The Piikani Nation of Brockett, Alberta has an
option which expires May 31, 2005, to purchase a 25% interest in the project.
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ATCO Power operates a 170 megawatt natural gas-fired cogeneration plant at the AOSP
upgrader at Scotford, Alberta. Approximately 80% of the electricity and all the thermal energy
produced by the plant is supplied to AOSP for use in the upgrader and the balance of the
electricity is sold to the AESO. Construction of the plant has been completed and commercial
operation commenced on December 1, 2003. ATCO Power owns an 80% interest in the project
and ATCO Resources owns 20%.

A partnership formed by ATCO Power and Ontario Power Generation (“OPG”) is constructing
and will operate the Brighton Beach power plant, a 580 megawatt natural gas-fired combined
cycle generating plant at the site of the former J.C. Keith Generating Station, near Windsor,
Ontario. Coral Energy Canada Inc. has agreed to supply and pay for the natural gas to be used at
the plant and will own, market and trade all the electricity produced. Construction is progressing
with commercial operation scheduled for the summer of 2004.. ATCO Power owns a 40%
interest in the project, ATCO Resources owns 10% and OPG owns 50%. The estimated costs to
complete the generating plant have increased from original estimates by approximately 19% to
$562 million due to higher supply and assembly costs for the heat recovery steam generator,
higher costs for civil works and changes in engineering scope. In addition, ATCO Power has
provided a contingency of $10 million for unforeseen commissioning costs. ATCO Power’s and
ATCO Resources’ share is $286 million.

On September 8, 2003, SPI announced that it had selected ATCO Power as its joint venture
partner to potentially develop up to 150 megawatts of wind generation power in Saskatchewan.

United Kingdom

ATCO Power and Balfour Beatty plc (formerly BICC plc), a United Kingdom construction
group, each own a 50% equity interest in Thames Power, a London, England based company.
Thames Power has a 51% interest in BPL which owns a 1,000 megawatt natural gas-fired
combined cycle generating plant at Dagenham in London, England (the “Barking power plant”).
EDF Energy (Energy Branch) plc (formerly London Power Company plc), SSE Energy Supply
Limited (formerly Scottish and Southern Energy Limited), and TXU Europe Power Limited (the
“Regional Electricity Companies”) own the remaining 49% interest in BPL. The Regional
Electricity Companies have entered into long term agreements expiring in 2010 to purchase all of
the electricity produced at the plant. The Barking power plant is operated by ATCO Power.

On November 19, 2002, an administration order was issued by a United Kingdom court for TXU
Europe Energy Trading Ltd. (“TXU Europe”), which had a long term offtake agreement for
27.5% of the power produced by the Barking power plant. An administration order is similar to
a Chapter 11 bankruptcy filing in the United States. BPL has filed a claim with the
Administrator and is working with the Administrator and Creditors’ Committees on liquidation
of TXU Europe and settlement of claims. The Barking power plant will continue to supply 725
megawatts of power under long term contracts. The 275 megawatts of power previously
supplied to TXU Europe is being sold under short term bilateral agreements.

ATCO Power has a 50% interest in a joint venture with a subsidiary of EDF Energy plc
(formerly London Electricity plc). The joint venture owns and operates a facility consisting of a
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14 megawatt natural gas turbine, 40 megawatts of boiler capacity and an associated heat
distribution system at London’s Heathrow Airport. The joint venture has a 15 year energy
services contract, expiring in 2010, with BAA plc, owner of the Heathrow Airport, for all of the
electric energy and hot water produced by the facility.

Australia

ATCO Power has a 50% interest in a joint venture with Origin Energy Limited (“Origin”). The
joint venture owns and operates a 180 megawatt cogeneration plant in Osborne, South Australia.
This joint venture supplies electricity to Flinders Osborne Trading Pty Ltd (“FOT”) under a 20
year electricity purchase agreement expiring in 2018. In addition to generating electricity, the
plant provides steam under a 20 year agreement, expiring in 2018, to Penrice Soda Products Pty
Ltd.

In December 2002, the joint venture was advised that FOT’s parent corporation would no longer
provide financial support to FOT. FOT continues to meet its obligations under its agreements
with the joint venture. The government of South Australia has guaranteed the obligations of
FOT under these agreements.

ATCO Power has a 50% interest in a consortium with Origin. The consortium owns and
operates a 33 megawatt natural gas-fired cogeneration plant and other utility infrastructure at BP
Amoco plc’s (“BP”) Bulwer Island refinery, near Brisbane, Queensland. All of the power and
steam produced by the plant is sold to BP under a 20 year agreement expiring in 2021.

Logistics and Energy Services

Regulated Natural Gas Transportation
ATCO Pipelines is engaged in the business of transporting natural gas throughout Alberta.
ATCO Pipelines owns and operates extensive natural gas transportation systems. The systems
consist of approximately 8,310 km of pipelines, 21 compressor sites and a salt cavern peaking
facility. The systems have 203 producer receipt points, 77 interconnections with TransCanada

Pipelines Limited, two interconnections with Alliance Pipeline and one interconnection with
Many Islands Pipelines.
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ATCO Pipelines’ revenues are based primarily on contractual arrangements for access to its
transmission systems. Contract demand for access, and interruptible (IT), overrun (OR) and
variable volumes for each of the last two years was as follows:

2003 2002
(terajoules/day)

Contract Demand:

PLOAUCET c..ovvi ittt b ot e e et e e s b e e b et s bee s reessmbeeraree s sestessabesssnenans 1,314 1,463

TRAUSITIAL 1 oveene ettt et et se st sebe s sbe s bt s sarseseeresatne s sressreanteesenes 1,075 1,131

DASIADULION «..ccvveeiriiiciie et ettt bt ecte s e sat s sr sttt str e e besebe e eressabeesanessabneenbassserntessabssanees 39 39

ATTIHALES 1vveiiieririeeiniereniercrte et rtr e s e s s e etrteeteesbaesaraesareesbesstteeesssaeatestareeseasenssteesoseessassses 2,171 2,257

TOAL..ocviiveeeeti ettt et et et e et e s b b e st et s e e b e bt sr e s b b s aRaeshe e araanaseeeteestesarbesreen 4,599 4,890
IT/OR/Variable Volumes:

PrOUCET 1ottt ettt et b e st he e sre bt e e e s st s s raatesht e e e rae eenareesaaaasnnes 209 156

INAUSITIAL oot e et e s e rne et ets e e e resabeseresbe s sbe ot tbssssaeesasbestesennesrenan 231 135

DISIIDULION .. vvvveeiiirreere e ieree s b s st be s etatr s e s rreestaressesstsseesarasasanrasessanessesarsrsneesessarens 18 18

TOtAL ceerietieice ettt e e e b a e bt e s te s b s at e bt s re s e aReetont s s ebeessebaes s et aenrenean 458 309
Total Contract Demand and IT/OR/Variable VOIUITIES ....o.ovvevvvvniiriinviiirinriiins e ennine e 5,057 5,199

In addition, ATCO Pipelines provides sales service to certain customers. ATCO Pipelines
obtains natural gas for these customers from ATCO Gas.

Non-Regulated Natural Gas Gathering, Processing and Storage Operations

ATCO Midstream owns and operates non-regulated gathering and processing facilities in
Alberta. ATCO Midstream also provides management services for ATCO Gas’ storage field at
Carbon, Alberta and natural gas procurement services for ATCO Gas and other subsidiaries of
the Corporation.

ATCO Midstream owns a 51.3% interest in EEEP. Located in south Edmonton, EEEP is a
natural gas processing plant which extracts ethane and other natural gas liquids from natural gas
flowing into the Edmonton market area. Ethane is sold to an Alberta ethylene producer under a
long term contract that expires in December 2012 and other natural gas liquids are sold under
annual contracts that are renewable every March 31.

ATCO Midstream owns or has a joint venture interest in 12 natural gas processing plants, eight
of which it operates, three compression facilities, all of which it operates, and approximately
1,000 km of field gathering lines. Natural gas production from the producing properties
connected to ATCO Midstream’s natural gas gathering systems is processed by ATCO
Midstream and either transported for a fee or purchased and sold under contracts with third
parties.

ATCO Midstream has agreements for natural gas storage capacity with various facilities in
Alberta. ATCO Midstream utilizes this capacity to provide storage services to third parties.
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Technical Facilities Management

ATCO Frontec, through its own operations and through a number of joint ventures, provides
project management and technical services for customers in the industrial, defence,
telecommunications and transportation sectors. Activities include the operation and maintenance
of the Alaska Radar System, the Solid State Phased Array Radar System, the Automatic Data
Processing systems for the NATO Stabilization Force Headquarters in Sarajevo, and various
remote sites for Northwestel Inc. in northern Canada. ATCO Frontec also provides airport
operation and maintenance, security, facilities management, bulk fuel storage and distribution
and a wide variety of services and business activities in various locations throughout Canada.

ATCO Frontec and Pan Arctic Inuit Logistics Corporation (“Pan Arctic”’) have a contract with
the Government of Canada to operate and maintain the North Warning System until September
30, 2006. Nasittug Corporation, a corporation jointly owned by ATCO Frontec and Pan Arctic,
operates as agent for the purposes of the contract.

Industrials
ATCO Structures

ATCO Structures is engaged in the manufacture, sale and lease of transportable shelters and
related products. ATCO Structures has marketed and installed its manufactured products in over
105 countries around the world since 1947 and has established a reputation as a leader in the
international supply of relocatable shelter products. Products sold are manufactured in Canada,
the U.S., Australia, Hungary and Chile and under subcontract in other jurisdictions.

Workforce Housing

ATCO Structures’ workforce housing products include prefabricated standardized or custom
units that are designed to be assembled into self contained camps complete with sleeping
accommodation, kitchen, dining and recreation facilities. The units are designed to be used in all
weather conditions and are fully transportable. Workforce housing products are used primarily
by companies in the oil and gas, forestry products and mining industries and by governments.

The workforce housing lease fleet of 1,868 units (1,097 units in Canada) includes sleeping
accommodation, kitchens, diners, recreation facilities and washcars which can accommodate up
to 6,700 persons. The fleet is maintained to meet the latest standards set by the building industry
and trade unions and is refurbished and upgraded as required. ATCO Structures also purchases
used workforce housing units from customers which are then retrofitted as required and made
available for resale or lease in the workforce housing market.

ATCO Structures also sells and leases Fold-A-Way metal buildings domestically and
internationally. These prefabricated steel buildings have a modular design which enables them
to be erected in hours and easily dismantled and relocated. Fold-A-Way metal buildings have
been used by a broad range of industries and government agencies with many varied applications
such as equipment storage, maintenance facilities, factories, gymnasiums, sewage treatment
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plants, aircraft hangers and emergency shelters. The buildings are manufactured by
subcontractors to designs and specifications developed by ATCO Structures.

Demand for workforce housing products is directly related to the capital spending cycle and the
level of development activity in natural resource industries. During 2003, the utilization rate for
ATCO Structures’ work force housing fleet averaged 47%, down from 52% in 2002.

Space Rentals

In Canada, Australia, the United Kingdom and Chile, ATCO Structures’ space rentals business
involves the lease and sale of relocatable modular offices, classrooms and other community
structures. In the United States, ATCO Structures sells its space rentals products to leasing
companies. ATCO Structures’ space rentals fleet of 5,170 units consists of on-site structures
such as site offices, lunchrooms, storage facilities, lavatories, first-aid units and locker rooms,
and modular commercial and community structures such as office complexes and classrooms.
On-site structures are used primarily by construction companies on urban and rural construction
sites. Commercial and community structures, although relocatable, are generally used as more
permanent facilities by a wide range of private and public sector customers.

Space rentals products are generally offered to customers under lease packages which may
include options to purchase. The terms of leases generally vary from one month to five years.
Customers with longer term requirements typically purchase rather than lease. Sales from the
fleet assist ATCO Structures in maintaining a modern inventory of space rentals units.

The number of units in ATCO Structures’ lease fleets as at the end of each of the last two years
was as follows:

2003 2002
Work Work
Force Space Force Space
Housing  _Rentals Housing  _Rentals

Canada ....ooovceriiie e e e 1,097 1,054 1,173 873
AUSITANA. e eirerr ettt sb e este b 462 3,850 396 3,350
OhET oottt ss bbb esees 309 266 249 202
TOtal it e 1,868 5,170 1,818 4,425
Manufacturing
Canada

ATCO Structures’ principal manufacturing facilities are located on a 72 acre leased site in
Calgary known as the ATCO Industrial Park, with approximately 275,000 square feet of
production and office space. ATCO Structures employs a staff of engineers and designers whose
expertise in designing modular buildings, complemented by technicians experienced in selection
of materials and modular construction methods, results in the manufacturing of products for use
anywhere in the world ranging from sophisticated custom-designed projects to basic construction
camp facilities and modular housing.
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ATCO Structures’ Spruce Grove manufacturing facility is located 15 km west of Edmonton,
Alberta. This 90,000 square foot facility was originally used for service and maintenance work,
but has been used as an overflow manufacturing facility and for service and maintenance since
1995 to meet incremental demand for modular products that cannot be met from facilities in
Calgary.

International

ATCO Structures operates a leased 90,000 square foot manufacturing facility in Diboll, Texas.
This plant manufactures relocatable modular products and serves the local domestic market and
international markets.

ATCO Structures operates a leased 50,000 square foot manufacturing facility in Budapest,
Hungary. This plant manufactures workforce housing products, predominantly for use by
western energy and resource companies operating in eastern Europe and northern Africa.

ATCO Structures has a 50% interest in a joint venture with Tecno Fast S.A., a modular
manufacturing company based in Santiago, Chile. Tecno Fast owns and operates a 70,000
square foot manufacturing facility.

ATCO Structures owns and operates a 15,000 square foot manufacturing facility on a three acre
site in Brisbane, Queensland, Australia and a 15,000 square foot manufacturing facility on a two
acre site in Townsville, Queensland.

Although ATCO Structures’ international competitors generally serve regional markets and often
are not able to offer the same capabilities and experience as ATCO Structures, the international
market is nevertheless very competitive and price is often the determining factor in securing
contracts.

Noise Management

ATCO Noise Management provides guaranteed “one — stop” turnkey solutions for industrial
noise that may include acoustic enclosures, buildings, barriers, ventilation systems, combustion
air intake and exhaust silencers and other noise abatement components. Registered to the ISO
9001-2000 quality assurance standard, it offers its clients a full range of services, including noise
surveys, regulatory review, engineering design, procurement, construction and post-construction
testing.

The growing awareness of noise as a pollutant has resulted in a more rigorous enforcement of
noise abatement by the National Energy Board in Canada, the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission in the United States, the European Union Commission as well as local government
bodies.

ATCO Noise Management’s clients are predominantly from the energy and manufacturing
sectors. Typical projects are acoustic buildings for new compressor stations, retrofitting of
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existing industrial plants, acoustic buildings, barriers, and enclosures for power generation
facilities, and acoustic buildings for gas separation plants.

Major accomplishments for 2003 included the completion of 25 acoustical consulting projects in
Canada, the United States, Mexico and Brazil, along with the supply and installation of three 43
metre silenced exhaust stacks for Gilbert Southern Corp. at the Fluvanna Generating Station in
Virginia.

ATCO Noise Management will continue to concentrate on its worldwide business through an
emphasis on the energy and petrochemical industries.
Technologies

ATCO I-Tek

ATCO I-Tek is engaged in the development, operation and support of information systems and
technologies.

ATCO I-Tek Business Services

ATCO I-Tek Business Services provides billing services, payment processing, credit, collection
and call centre services. ATCO I-Tek Business Services provides contract utility billing and
related services to the City of Red Deer pursuant to a five year contract which expired, and was
not renewed, on December 31, 2003. Utility billing and related services are supplied to ATCO
Gas and ATCO Electric pursuant to contracts expiring on January 1, 2007.

On December 12, 2002, ATCO I-Tek Business Services announced that it had entered into a 10
year contract with Direct Energy to provide billing and customer care services to nearly one
million Alberta customers. Commencement of the contract is conditional upon the closing of the
sale of ATCO Gas’ and ATCO Electric’s retail operations to Direct Energy (see “Business of the
Corporation — Utilities — Sale of Retail Operations”).

ASHCOR Technologies

ASHCOR Technologies is engaged in the sale of fly ash and other combustion byproducts
produced in coal-fired electrical generating plants.

ATCO Travel
ATCO Travel is engaged in the provision of travel services to corporate clients, the general

public and the Corporation. ATCO Travel is one of the largest independent travel agencies in
western Canada.
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Genics

The Corporation owns a 50% interest in the shares of Genics, a manufacturer of wood
preservation products.

Real Estate Operations

ATCO Investments Ltd. owns ATCO Centre Phase II at 919 — 11 Avenue S.W., Calgary,
containing 125,000 square feet of net rentable area, of which 100% was occupied as at February
26, 2004.

ATCO Investments Ltd. also has a 67% interest in a 56,000 square foot prime land assembly in
downtown Calgary.

FRANCHISES

AGP, ATCO Electric, YECL, NUY and NLD distribute natural gas and electricity in
incorporated communities under the authority of franchises or by-laws and in rural areas under
approvals, permits or orders issued pursuant to applicable statutes.

In Edmonton, distribution of natural gas is carried on under the authority of an exclusive
franchise. AGP has entered into an agreement with the City of Edmonton for a 10 year renewal
of the franchise to November 15, 2005. The franchise renewal is subject to the right of the City
of Edmonton, at the end of the renewal period, to purchase all of AGP’s assets within the city
and its assets outside the city used in supplying natural gas to the city. The purchase price would
be the amount of the actual value thereof as a going concern plus 10% of such value. Although
the franchise agreement gives the City certain rights of purchase, since 1935 the City has granted
renewals for 10 year periods.

In Calgary, distribution of natural gas is carried on under the authority of a municipal by-law.
The rights of AGP under this by-law, while not exclusive, are unrestricted as to time. The by-
law does not confer any right on the City of Calgary to acquire the facilities used in providing the
service.

The franchises under which service is provided in other incorporated communities in Alberta and
in the Northwest Territories have been granted for periods of up to 20 years. These franchises
are exclusive to AGP, ATCO Electric, NUY or NLD and are renewable by agreement for further
periods not exceeding 20 years each in the case of AGP and 10 years in the case of ATCO
Electric, NUY and NLD. If any franchise is not renewed, it remains in effect until such time as
either party, with the approval of the prevailing regulatory authority, terminates it on six months
written notice. Upon termination of a franchise the municipality may purchase the facilities used
in connection with that franchise at a price to be agreed upon or, failing agreement, to be fixed
by the prevailing regulatory authority. The franchise under which service is provided in the
Yukon Territory was granted under the Public Utilities Act (Yukon Territory) and has no set
expiry date. '
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GOVERNMENT REGULATION

Under Alberta legislation, owners of public, electric or gas utilities are required to obtain AEUB
approval prior to issuing securities. The Corporation is not subject to, and CU and CU Inc. have
obtained from the AEUB orders which exempt them from, this requirement.

The utility operations of the Corporation in Alberta (ATCO Gas, ATCO Electric, ATCO
Pipelines and CU Water) are subject to the jurisdiction of the AEUB which, among other things,
is vested with broad general powers of supervision with respect to the construction and operation
of electric energy and natural gas facilities within the Province and broad powers of regulation in
respect of rates charged for electric energy, natural gas and water.

The AEUB approves customer rates based on anticipated energy sales as well as the revenue
required to recover estimated costs of service, including a fair return on rate base, estimated
operating expenses, depreciation and taxes, all in respect of a future test period. Energy sales are
based on a forecast of economic and business conditions and, in the case of natural gas utility
operations, normal temperature which is defined as the average temperature for the previous 20
years.

Rate base consists of the depreciated cost of utility assets and an allowance for working capital.
Return on rate base is designed to meet the cost of interest on long term debt and dividends on
preferred shares and to provide the common shareholders with a reasonable opportunity to earn a
fair return on their investment. The determination of a fair return to the common shareholders
involves an assessment by the AEUB of many factors, including returns on aiternative
investment opportunities of comparable risk and the level of return which will enable a utility to
attract the necessary capital to fund its operations.

The EUA and the Gas Utilities Act grant the AEUB specific authority to approve customer rates
that provide incentives for efficiencies that result in cost savings or other benefits that can be
shared in an equitable manner between a utility and its customers. Final determination of such
customer rates requires the approval of the AEUB.

The regulated operations of the Corporation in the Yukon Territory (YECL) and the Northwest

Territeries (NUY and NLD) are subject to regulation similar to that in effect in Alberta by
regulatory authorities in those jurisdictions.
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Particulars of the most recent final decisions made by the AEUB respecting general rate
applications or negotiated settlements filed by the principal regulated subsidiaries of the
Corporation are as follows:

Rate of Return
Date of Mid-Year Rate Common
Year Decision (1) Rate Base Base Equity (2)
($ Millions) (%) (%)
ATCO Electric
TransmiSsion ......cceoveerveerrucnverenene 2003 Oct. 02/03 672.0 (3) 8.03(3) 9.40
2004 Oct. 02/03 474.8 (4) (4) 4)
Distribution «...c..coeeveereveenieercenninn, 2003 Oct. 02/03 558.5(5) 7.93(5) 9.40
2004 Oct. 02/03 584.5 (4) 4) C)
ATCO Pipelines North............ccccv...... 2003 Dec. 02/03 (6) (6) 9.50
2004 Dec. 02/03 @ “4) )
ATCO Pipelines South.........ccoceveunnenee 2003 Dec. 02/03 (6) 6) 9.50
2004 Dec. 02/03 4) 4) C))
ATCO Gas North..c..oovnerennnrenen. 2003 Oct. 01/03 @) @) 9.50
2004 Oct. 01/03 ) @ 9.50
ATCO Gas South....c.ccoveecrrnrerereenee 2003 Oct. 01/03 @) @) 9.50
2004 Oct. 01/03 @] N 9.50
Notes:
(1) The information shown reflects the most recent amending or varying orders issued subsequent to the original

@
3

C))

5)

(6)

0

date of decision.

Common equity rate of return is the rate of return on the portion of rate base considered to be financed by
common equity.

Based on a common equity ratio of 32%. ATCO Electric, as directed by the AEUB, has refiled the 2003 and
2004 revenue requirements, incorporating the findings in the decision. The AEUB issued its final determinaticn
of the revenue requirements for the 2003 and 2004 test years on February 17, 2004.

The 2004 rate of return on common equity and the common equity ratios for the ATCO Electric’s transmission
and distribution operations and ATCO Pipelines operations will be determined as part of the generic cost of
capital hearing.

Based on 2 common equity ratio of 35%. ATCO Electric, as directed by the AEUB, has refiled the 2003 and
2004 revenue requirements, incorporating the findings in the decision. The AEUB issued its final determination
of the revenue requirements for the 2003 and 2004 test years on February 17, 2004.

Based on a common equity ratio of 43.5%. ATCO Pipelines, as directed by the AEUB, has refiled the 2003 and
2004 revenue requirements, incorporating the findings in the decision. The AEUB has not yet issued its final
determination of the revenue requirements and rate base for the 2003 and 2004 test years.

Based on a common equity ratio of 37%. ATCO Gas, as directed by the AEUB, has refiled the 2003 and 2004
revenue requirements, incorporating the findings in the decision. The AEUB has not yet issued its final
determination of the revenue requirements and rate base for the 2003 and 2004 test years.

Gas Utilities Act

Under the Gas Utilities Act, customers in Alberta have the choice of purchasing their natural gas
supplies from their local natural gas utility or directly from retailers, subject to certain
conditions.
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Customers purchasing natural gas from ATCO Gas do so at rates that are approved by the
AEUB. ATCO Gas receives no profit or benefit from increases in natural gas prices. The cost of
the natural gas it purchases for sale to its customers is passed on directly to its customers
following scrutiny in a public process under the authority of the AEUB. In October 2001, the
AEUB approved the implementation on April 1, 2002, of a monthly method of adjusting
customer rates to recover the cost of natural gas purchased for customers of ATCO Gas. The
new methodology replaces the previous method under which rates were adjusted twice a year.
The new methodology is intended to provide greater price transparency for customers.

In August 2002, the Government of Alberta announced changes to utility legislation designed to
improve the environment for retail competition in the Province. Amendments to the Electric
Utilities Act and Gas Utilities Act received Royal Assent in March 2003 and were proclaimed in
force in June 2003. These changes were designed to bring customer choice for both gas and
electricity into closer alignment, as well as to move towards consistent regulatory treatment of
investor-owned and municipally-owned utilities.

In July 2003, ATCO Gas filed its compliance application in accordance with the new legislation.

In December 2003, the AEUB issued a decision approving the implementation of the "One Bill
Model" no later than April 1, 2004. The One Bill Model will ensure that customers who choose
to purchase their natural gas requirements from a retailer will receive only one bill for natural gas
service. Previously, customers would receive a bill from the retailer for the purchase of the
commodity and a separate bill from ATCO Gas for the delivery service.

Electric Utilities Act

The EUA provides the framework for a new structure in Alberta’s electric utility industry and
introduces competition into the electric utility business. As of January 1, 2001, new generation
was completely deregulated and retail competition was introduced. In August 2002, the
Government of Alberta announced further changes to utility legislation in order to improve the
environment for retail competition in the Province. Amendments to the Electric Utilities Act and
Gas Utilities Act received Royal Assent in March 2003 and were proclaimed in force in June
2003. These changes were designed to bring customer choice for both gas and electricity into
closer alignment, as well as to move towards consistent regulatory treatment of investor-owned
and municipally-owned utilities.

It 1s anticipated that ATCO Electric’s transmission and distribution activities will continue to be
regulated by the AEUB and Alberta Power (2000)’s generation activities will continue to be
regulated via legislatively mandated PPA’s approved by the AEUB.

New Generation
Under the EUA, generation assets constructed after December 31, 1995 are not considered part

of utility operations and rates are not regulated by the AEUB. All owners of new and existing
generating units must sell their surplus electric energy through the AESO.
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Existing Generation

The EUA provided for the equalization of costs of “existing generation” that was in service at
December 31, 1995. On January 1, 2001, existing generation became subject to legislatively
mandated PPA’s approved by the AEUB. The PPA’s are designed to allow the owners of
generating plants constructed before January 1, 1996 to recover their forecast fixed and variable
costs and to earn a return at the rate specified in the PPA’s. The plants will become deregulated
upon the expiry of the PPA’s. Each PPA is to remain in effect until the earlier of the last day of
the life of the related generating plant and December 31, 2020.

Transmission

Under the EUA, separate wholesale tariffs for transmission must be approved by the AEUB.
The transmission tariffs allow any owner of a generating unit to have access to the transmission
system in Alberta and thus facilitate the sale of its power. The same transmission tariff is
charged to each distribution utility or customer directly connected to the transmission system
regardless of location.

The equalization of transmission costs is achieved by having each owner of transmission
facilities charge its costs to the AESO. The AESO then aggregates these costs and charges a
common transmission rate to all who use the transmission system.

Certain transmission expansion projects were to be procured by the AESO through a competitive
bid process. The project costs were to be charged to the AESO through contracts between the
winning bidder and the AESO. Following consultation with interested parties, the Alberta
Department of Energy suspended this competitive bid process for awarding transmission
expansion and subsequently eliminated the process in its recent transmission policy paper. The
projects previously awarded under this process have been assigned to regulated entities at the
direction of the Government of Alberta.

Distribution

Under the EUA, separate retail rates for distribution must be approved by the AEUB. Costs of
distribution are not equalized. The distribution utility provides the transportation and
distribution services for all customers under AEUB approved tariffs which provide for the
recovery of the cost of service, including a fair return on rate base.

Retail

On January 1, 2001, all customers had a choice as to the supplier of their electric energy.
Industrial and large commercial customers were required to select a retailer effective January 1,
2001. Other customers may continue to purchase electricity from their current distribution utility
under a regulated rate option. This option was originally to be available for five years (2001 -
2005) for residential and farm customers and for three years (2001 — 2003) for small commercial
and small industrial customers. In November 2003, the government of Alberta revised its
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regulations to require distribution utilities to provide the fixed regulated rate option to July 1,
2006 for all eligible regulated rate option customers. After July 1, 2006, the distribution utilities
are required to provide the regulated rate option to customers based on actual spot prices.

ATCO Electric is obligated to supply energy under the regulated rate option to the residential,
farm and small commercial customers in its designated service area who do not choose an
unregulated retailer. ATCO Electric purchases electricity from the AESO at spot prices to
supply the regulated rate option customers, the costs for which are collected from customers at
rates approved by the AEUB. In November 2003, the government of Alberta revised its
regulations, effective January 1, 2004, and as a result, ATCO Electric will now be at risk for
electric energy supply and will no longer be able to flow through the AESO price to customers.
A further revision to the regulations in November permitted the AEUB to extend the period for
implementation to July 1, 2004 upon application. In December 2003, the AEUB issued a
decision approving ATCO Electric’s application to extend the implementation date to July 1,
2004. Under the revised regulations, ATCO Electric is obligated to provide a fixed price
regulated rate option to customers until July 1, 2006, and a regulated rate option based on actual
spot prices thereafter,

Environmental Protection

The Corporation’s operating subsidiaries and the industries in which they operate are subject to
extensive federal, provincial and local environmental protection laws concerning emissions to
the air, discharges to surface and subsurface waters, land use activities and the handling,
manufacturing, processing, use, emission and disposal of materials and waste products. In
Alberta, protection of the environment is generally governed by the Alberta Environmental
Protection and Enhancement Act. The operating subsidiaries have obtained or are obtaining all
permits and licenses required by law to carry on their operations.

The Corporation’s operating subsidiaries are committed to preserving and protecting the
environment and minimizing the discharge of harmful materials into the environment in
accordance with environmental protection laws and regulations. Nevertheless, some risk of
unintentional violation of environmental protection laws and the resulting liability to the
Corporation’s operating subsidiaries is inherent in particular operations of these subsidiaries, as
it is with other companies engaged in similar businesses. There can be no assurance that
material costs and liabilities will not be incurred. To mitigate these costs, the Corporation carries
insurance for the operating subsidiaries against third party claims for bodily injury and property
damage arising from a sudden and accidental event or occurrence resulting from an unexpected
release of pollutants or contaminants.

The Corporation’s operating subsidiaries do not expect that environmental protection laws and
regulations will affect them differently from other companies in the industries in which they
operate. Specifically identifiable expenditures for pollution abatement and control were
approximately $18.1 million in 2003 and are estimated to be $14.8 million in 2004. Costs of
compliance with existing laws and regulations are not expected to have a material impact on the
earnings of the Corporation or the competitive position of the operating subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Set out below is information with respect to the directors and officers of the Corporation.

Period Served

Name and as a Director of
Municipality of the
Residence Position Principal Occupation Corporation
B.M. Andrews Vice President Vice President, Finance, ATCO I-
Calgary, Alberta Tek Inc. :
C.R. Armour Managing Director, Managing Director, ATCO
Fullarton, South ATCO Group, Group, Australia/Asia/Pacific,
Australia Australia/Asia/Pacific ATCO Lid.

W.L. Britton, Q.C.

@®
Calgary, Alberta

J.A. Campbell
(5)
Calgary, Alberta

D.R. Cawsey (5)
Calgary, Alberta

B.P. Collomb
Paris, France

D.T. Davis
Calgary, Alberta

B.P. Drummond
@3®
Montreal, Quebec

B.K. French

@G G
Calgary, Alberta

H.E. Joudrie
Toronto, Ontario

S.W. Kiefer
Calgary, Alberta

Director and Vice
Chairman of the Board

Senior Vice President,
Finance and Chief
Financial Officer

Vice President, Human
Resources and Corporate
Secretary

Director

Vice President, Internal
Audit

Director

Director

Director

Vice President,
Information Technology
and Chief Information
Officer

Partner, Bennett Jones LLP
(barristers and solicitors)

Senior Vice President, Finance
and Chief Financial Officer,

ATCO Ltd. and Canadian Utilities

Limited

Vice President, Human Resources

and Corporate Secretary, ATCO

Ltd. and Canadian Utilities
Limited

Chairman, Lafarge S.A.

(building materials company)

Vice President, Internal Audit,
ATCO Ltd. and Canadian Utilities

Limited

Corporate Director

President, Karusel Management
Ltd. (property management and

management consultants)

Corporate Director

Vice President, Information

Technology and Chief
Information Officer and

Managing Director, Technologies
Business Group, ATCO Ltd. and

Canadian Utilities Limited
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1999 to date

1968 to date

1982 to date

1999 to date
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Period Served

Name and as a Director of
Municipality of the
Residence Position Principal Occupation Corporation

Rt. Hon. D.F. Director Business Consultant and 1999 to date
Mazankowski, Corporate Director
P.C.,0.C,AOQE,
D.Eng., LL.D.
Vegreville, Alberta
C.S. McConnell Treasurer Treasurer, ATCO Ltd. and
Calgary, Alberta Canadian Utilities Limited
H.M. Neldner (3) (4) Director Corporate Director 1997 to date
Westerose, Alberta
N.C. Southern Director, President and President and Chief Executive 1989 to date
Calgary, Alberta Chief Executive Officer Officer, ATCO Ltd. and Canadian

Utilities Limited
R. D. Southern, Director and Chairman Chairman of the Board, ATCO 1963 to date
CB.E,O.C.,LLD. of the Board Ltd. and Canadian Utilities
Calgary, Alberta Limited
P. Spruin Assistant Corporate Assistant Corporate Secretary and
Calgary, Alberta Secretary and Manager, Manager, Corporate Secretarial,

Corporate Secretarial ATCO Ltd. and Canadian Utilities

Limited
L.C. van Wachem, Director Chairman of the Board, Zurich 1993 to date
KBE, Financial Services (insurance
The Hague, based financial services company)
The Netherlands
L.J. Vegh, Vice President, Vice President, Insurance, ATCO
Calgary, Alberta Insurance Ltd. and Canadian Utilities

Limited
K.M. Watson Vice President, Finance Vice President, Finance and
Calgary, Alberta and Controller Controlier, ATCO Ltd. and

Canadian Utilities Limited
S.R. Werth (5) Senior Vice President Senior Vice President and Chief
Caigary, Alberta and Chief Administration Officer, ATCO

Administration Officer Ltd. and Canadian Utilities
Limited
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Period Served

Name and as a Director of
Municipality of the
Residence Position Principal Occupation Corporation
C.W. Wilson (3) (4) Director Corporate Director 2002 to date

Evergreen, Colorado

Notes:

(1) Each director holds office until the close of the annual meeting of shareholders of the Corporation.
(2) Member of the Corporate Governance — Nomination, Succession and Compensation Commiittee.
(3) Member of the Audit Committee.

(4) Member of the Risk Review Committee.

(5) Member of the Crisis Management Committee.

All of the directors and officers have been engaged for the last five years in the indicated
principal occupations, or in other capacities with the companies or firms referred to, or with
affiliates or predecessors thereof, with the exception of Mr. H.E. Joudrie, who was Chairman of
the Board, Gulf Canada Resources Limited; Ms. P. Spruin, who was a corporate consultant and
prior thereto was Corporate Secretary, [PEC Ltd.; Mr. L.C. van Wachem who was Chairman of
the Supervisory Board, Royal Dutch Petroleum Company and Mr. C.W. Wilson, who was
Director, President and Chief Executive Officer of Shell Canada Ltd. Mr. Joudrie was Chairman
of the Board of Algoma Steel Inc. (“Algoma”) during 2001 when Algoma obtained protection
under the Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act, emerging from protection on January 29,
2002. Mr. Joudrie ceased being a director of Algoma in January 2002.

SHAREHOLDINGS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR OFFICERS

At December 31, 2003, the directors and officers of the Corporation, as a group, beneficially
owned, directly or indirectly (via corporate holdings or otherwise), or exercised control or
direction over approximately 82.3% of the issued and outstanding Class II Voting Shares of the
Corporation. In addition, all the directors and senior officers of the Corporation, as a group,
beneficially owned, directly or indirectly (via corporate holdings or otherwise), or exercised
control or direction over approximately 73.8% of the issued and outstanding Class B common
shares of Canadian Utilities Limited.

MARKETS FOR THE SECURITIES OF THE CORPORATION

The Corporation’s Class I Non-Voting Shares, Class II Voting Shares and 5.75% Cumulative
Redeemable Preferred Shares, Series 3 are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange.
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EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

At December 31, 2003, the Corporation and its joint ventures had the following number of
employees:

Number

UTIITIES uvvererrerieereiiereriurerreeieeetesssrerrereriae eeeeeasaessbeseaes s asssaareresaaassesesaeasessansasbenreseesnsaeaneeesessnssssnssbesnnaeesesnaerins 2,863
Logistics and ENEIZY SEIVICES ....cvuvirmrvrririereriesisicsssiirmsiimiessstsssnisississasiontsessssasosssnasssssarsssinssssmssssosasosins 978
POWET GENETALION .. .vieiiiiniriiieiirieserressetbeerersebeesrraesbesabbesassssttesssesssntssssesssnsontsasanssnesassesssnnssessasssnsnssasesases 463
INAUSLIIALS 1eiierrii ittt ittt re s e et it b ettt aa s oo ab e e eaebeeseoabeeaenbrane s s tesin b kae st san et e seesarnraseranaseseeerenrenesannns 776
101 17=) TR TR OO OO UPTORORPURPIPOOE 712

SUD Tl verririeectieireire e rrissteis s beessesteessessesssessssssssnssisenssesnsanssanssessensasasstonssesseanssesresssanenesnsnssenntarans 5,792
Joint Ventures — Logistics and ENergy SEIVICES ....uuiiiiriiiriiieieieneeeaesessnese et s e eseesaesessiens 970
JoInt Ventures — POWET GEMETAION «.vvvivvivieeieviiveeerierereereriese s steeseressasesssssesssesosensssrssaessnsessssaesssnearsssanssneerns 263
Joint Ventures - INAUSIFIALS ...c..veoiviiiri et cceries e see s sae st e e ctesebaesaesrs s sanne st baasnearsessbesasessaeentsennes tens 100
TOtAL. et ietr ettt et e ettt et et et e etbe et et e et b e ereeeb e et et ean bt eae st ta s eabe e eeaeaneoREesasbeantaaRbe e Eeetreentesasnenrtareeans 7,125

Approximately 3,800 employees are members of seven employee associations and 18 unions and
are covered by 32 collective agreements. Seven of these agreements have expired and are under
re-negotiation and the remaining 25 agreements expire over the period September 30, 2004 to
December 31, 2008.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information, including executive compensation and principal holders of the
Corporation’s securities, is contained in the Corporation’s Management Proxy Circular dated
March 12, 2003. Additional financial information is provided in the Corporation’s comparative
financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2003.

The Corporation will provide to any person, upon request to the Vice President, Human
Resources and Corporate Secretary of the Corporation at 1400 ATCO Centre, 909-11" Avenue
S.W., Calgary, Alberta T2R 1N6 (telephone (403)292-7500 or fax (403) 292-7623):

(a) when the securities of the Corporation are in the course of a distribution under a
preliminary short form prospectus or a short form prospectus,

(i) one copy of this Annual Information Form together with one copy of any
document, or the pertinent pages of any document, incorporated by reference in
this Annual Information Form,

(ii) one copy of the comparative financial statements of the Corporation for the
financial year ended December 31, 2003 together with the accompanying report of
the auditor and one copy of the most recent interim financial statements of the
Corporation that have been filed, if any, for any period after the end of its financial
year ended December 31, 2003,
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(iii) one copy of the Corporation’s Management Proxy Circular dated March 12, 2003,
and

(iv) one copy of any other documents that are incorporated by reference into the
preliminary short form prospectus or the short form prospectus and are not
required to be provided under (i) to (iii) above; or

(b) at any other time, one copy of any of the documents referred to in (i) to (iii) above,
provided the Corporation may require the payment of a reasonable charge if the request is
made by a person who is not a security holder of the Corporation.

Information relating to Canadian Utilities Limited or CU Inc. may be obtained upon request from
the Vice President, Human Resources and Corporate Secretary of the respective corporation at
1400 ATCO Centre, 909 — 11™ Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta T2R IN6 (telephone (403) 292-
7500 or fax (403) 292-7623). Corporate information is also available on the Corporation’s
website: www.atco.com. Additional information relating to the Corporation may be found on
SEDAR at www.sedar.com.
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G ROUP

ATCO LTD.

FORM 13-502F1
ANNUAL PARTICIPATION FEE FOR REPORTING ISSUERS

For the Year Ending December 31, 2003



FORM 13-502F1

ANNUAL PARTICIPATION FEE FOR REPORTING ISSUERS

Reporting Issuer Name: ATCO Ltd.
Participation Fee for the Financial Year Ending : December 31, 2003
1. Class 1 Reporting Issuers

Market value of equity securities:

Class I Non-Voting Shares:
Total number of securities outstanding at the end of the most recent

financial year: 26,287,281
Simple average of the closing price as of the last trading day of
each of the months of the most recent financial year (1) X $45.87
Market Value of Class $1,205,798,000 $1,205,798,000
(A)
Class II Voting Shares:
Total number of securities outstanding at the end of the most recent
financial year: 3,508,801
Simple average of the closing price as of the last trading day of
each of the months of the most recent financial year (1) X $46.13
Market Value of Class $161,861,000 $161,861,000
(A)
Market value of corporate debt or preferred shares of Reporting Issuer
Series 3 Preferred Shares
Total number of securities outstanding at the end of the most recent
financial year: 6,000,000
Simple average of the closing price as of the last trading day of
each of the months of the most recent financial year (1) X $27.52
Market Value of Class $165,120,000 $165,120,000
(B)



Market value of preferred shares or corporate debt of Subsidiary Entity (2)

Market value of corporate debt of Subsidiary Entity:

6.14% Debentures

Book Value at December 31, 2003 100,000,000
Market Value at December 31, 2003 $102.479
Market Value of Class $102,479,000 $102,479,000
B)
Market value of preferred shares of Subsidiary Entity:
Series Q
Total number of securities outstanding at the end of the most recent
financial year: 2,277,675
Market Value at Dec. 31, 2003 X $26.25
Market Value of Class $59,789,000 $59,789,000
B)
Series R
Total number of securities outstanding at the end of the most recent
financial year: 2,146,730
Market Value at Dec. 31, 2003 X $24.85
Market Value of Class $53,346,000 $53,346,000
(B)
Series S
Total number of securities outstanding at the end of the most recent
financial year: 635,700
Market Value at Dec. 31, 2003 X $32.00
Market Value of Class $20,342,000 $20,342.000
(B)



Series W
Total number of securities outstanding at the end of the most recent

financial year: 6,000,000
Market Value at Dec. 31, 2003 X $26.75
Market Value of Class $160,500,000 $160,500,000
(B)
Series X
Total number of securities outstanding at the end of the most recent
financial year: 6,000,000
Market Value at Dec. 31, 2003 X $26.85
Market Value of Class $161,100,000 $161,100,000
(B)
Total Capitalization (A+B) $2,090,335,000
Total Fee payable pursuant to Appendix A of the Rule $50,000
Notes:

(1) See Schedule A
(2) See Schedule B



Schedule A

Simple Average of Closing Price On
Last Trading Day of Each Month of 2003

ATCO Ltd.

Class 1 Class I1 Series 3
Non-Voting Voting Preferred

Shares Shares Shares
January $44.30 $44.55 $27.40
February $43.99 $43.75 $26.90
March $42.09 $42.25 $27.30
April $41.60 $42.50 $27.00
May $45.75 $45.85 $27.49
June $48.23 $48.25 $27.60
July $49.10 $49.00 $27.70
August $46.55 $48.00 $27.49
September $46.38 $46.45 $27.80
October $47.19 $47.00 $27.55
November $47.25 $47.69 $27.80
December $48.00 $48.31 $28.24

Average $45.87 $46.13 $27.52




SCHEDULE B

Canadian Utilities Limited is a subsidiary entity of ATCO Ltd. that is exempt from paying
the participation fee based on the following:

As per Part 2, Section 2.2 (2), a reporting issuer is exempt from paying a participation fee if:

(a) the parent of the subsidiary entity is a reporting issuer;

(b) the parent of the subsidiary entity has paid the participation fee required; and

(c) the net assets and gross revenues of the subsidiary entity represent more than 90
percent of the net assets and gross revenues of the parent for the previous financial year
of the parent of the subsidiary entity.

December 31, 2003
Net Gross
Assets Revenues
(% Millions)
ATCO Ltd. (parent) $6,591.2 $3,929.7
Canadian Utilities Limited (subsidiary entity) $6,070.5 $3,742.6

92.1% 95.2%
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DOCUMENT INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
The Corporation’s Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations for the year ended December 31, 2003, is incorporated by reference into and forms an
integral part of this Annual Information Form.
DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS

Certain terms used in this Annual Information Form are defined below:

“AESO” means the Alberta Electric System Operator, formerly the Alberta Power Pool and the
Transmission Administrator;

“AEUB” means the Alberta Energy and Utilities Board;
“AGP” means ATCO Gas and Pipelines Ltd.;

“Alberta Power (2000)” means Alberta Power (2000) Ltd.;
“ASHCOR Technologies” means ASHCOR Technologies Ltd.;

“ATCO” means ATCO Ltd.;
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“ATCO Electric” means ATCO Electric Ltd.;
“ATCO Frontec” means ATCO Frontec Corp.;
“ATCO Gas” means the natural gas distribution division of AGP;

“ATCO I-Tek” means ATCO I-Tek Inc. Prior to January 1, 2004, ATCO I-Tek was a division of
Cu;

“ATCO I-Tek Business Services” means ATCO I-Tek Business Services Ltd.;
“ATCO Investments” means ATCO Investments Ltd.;

“ATCO Midstream” means ATCO Midstream Ltd.;

“ATCO Noise Management” means ATCO Noise Management Ltd.;

“ATCO Pipelines” means the natural gas transportation division of AGP;
“ATCO Power” means ATCO Power Ltd. together with its subsidiaries;
“ATCO Resources” means ATCO Resources Ltd.;

“ATCO Structures” means ATCO Structures Inc. together with its subsidiaries;
“ATCO Travel” means ATCO Travel Ltd.;

“ATCO Utility Services” means ATCO Utility Services Ltd.;

“BPL” means Barking Power Limited;

“Canadian Utilities” means Canadian Utilities Limited together with all its subsidiaries;
“Class I Shares” means the Class I Non-Voting Shares of the Corporation;
“Class II Shares” means the Class II Voting Shares of the Corporation;

“Corporation” means ATCO Ltd. and, unless the context otherwise requires, includes its
subsidiaries;

“CU” means Canadian Utilities Limited;
“CU Water” means CU Water Limited;

“EEEP” means the Edmonton Ethane Extraction Plant;
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“EUA” means the Electric Utilitiés Act (Alberta);

“Genics” means Genics Inc.;

“km” means kilometre;

“Mmcf” means one million cubic feet and “Bcf” means one billion cubic feet;

“negotiated settlement” means an agreement related to a revenue requirement and/or customer
rates for a specific period of time resulting from direct negotiations between a utility and its
customers. A negotiated settlement avoids the need for a general rate application for the duration
of the agreement. All negotiated settlements must be approved by the AEUB;

“NLD” means Northland Utilities (NWT) Limited;
“NUY” means Northland Utilities (Yellowknife) Limited;

“petajoule” means a unit of energy equal to approximately 948.2 billion British thermal units,
“terajoule” means a unit of energy equal to approximately 948.2 million British thermal units
* and “gigajoule” means a unit of energy equal to approximately 948.2 thousand British thermal
units;

“PPA’s” mean power purchase arrangements that became effective on January 1, 2001, as part of
the process of restructuring the electric utility business in Alberta. The PPA’s are legislatively
mandated and approved by the AEUB;

“REA” means Rural Electrification Association. REAs are constituted under the Rural Utilities
Act (Alberta) by groups of persons carrying on farming operations. Each REA purchases
electric power for distribution to its members through a distribution system owned by that REA;

“Thames Power” means Thames Power Limited,;

“YECL” means The Yukon Electrical Company Limited.

ATCO LTD.

The Corporation is the successor to the business commenced in 1947 by the late S.D. Southern
and R.D. Southern and was incorporated under The Companies Act (Alberta) by Certificate of
Incorporation dated August 31, 1962. The Corporation was continued under the Business
Corporations Act (Alberta) on March 13, 1984. The address of the principal and registered
office of the Corporation is 1600 ATCO Centre, 909 — 11™ Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta T2R
ING6.
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The following chart includes the names of the operating subsidiaries of the Corporation, the
jurisdictions under the laws of which they are organized and the percentages of their voting
shares beneficially owned or over which control or direction is exercised by the Corporation.

ATCO Ltd.
(Alberta)
[ @
Canadian Utilities
Limited
(Canada)
!
[ 100% [ 100% [ 100% [ 100% 100%
CU Inc. ATCO ATCO ATCO I-Tek ATCO
Power Ltd. Midstream Ltd. Inc. Structures Inc.
_{(Canada) _ (Canada) (Canada) {Canada) (Alberta)
100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
ATCO Gas and ATCO Power ATCO ATCO I-Tek ATCO Structures
Pipelines Ltd. Canada Ltd. Frontec Corp. Business Services Ltd. Pty Ltd.
(Alberta) (Canada) {Alberta} (Canada) _ (Australia)
100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Alberta Power ATCO Power ATCO ASHCOR ATCO
(2000) Ltd. Generation Ltd. Travel Ltd. Technologies Ltd. Europe Kft.
_(Canada) (England) (Canada) (Canada) (Hungary)
100% 50% 50% 50%
CU Water Thames Genics Tecno Fast
Limited Power Limited Inmc. ATCO S.A.
(Canada) (England) (Alberta) (Chile)
100% 51% 100% 100%
ATCO Barking ATCO Utility ATCO Noise
Electric Ltd. Power Limited Services Ltd. Management Ltd.
__{(Canada) (England) (Canada) (Alberta)
100% 100% 100%
The Yukon Electrical | | ATCO Power ATCO
Company Limited Australia Pty Lid. Investments Ltd.
(Yukon Territory) (Australia) {Alberta)
100% 100%
Norven ATCO
Holdings Inc. Resources Ltd.
(Canada) (Alberta)
76%
Northland Utilities
Enterprises Ltd.
(Canada)
100%
Northland Utilities
{Yellowknife) Limited
{Canada)
100%
Northland Utilities
(NWT) Limited
{(Northwest Territories)

Notes:

(1) At December 31, 2003, all of the non-voting shares of each of the above corporations were directly or indirectly
owned by the Corporation, with the exception of Canadian Utilities Limited. 73.4% of the Class B common
shares, being the only voting securities outstanding, and 40.2% of the Class A non-voting shares of Canadian
Utilities Limited are held by ATCO Ltd.
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CONSOLIDATED THREE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Year Ended December 31
2003 2002 2001
($ Millions except per share data)
ROVEIUES ... cvviecctiie ettt erbt e e sr st e s sbe e e br s ssessaresebeset bt e teneenesans 3,929.7 3,196.3 3,767.8
Earnings attributable to Class I and Class IT Shares (1) (2) .cocoovevveeriincveennenns 131.2 163.0 124.4
Earnings per Class I and Class II Share (1) ....cccceevrvieiiiiniiineninineconnenonen 4.40 547 4.18
Diluted earnings per Class I and Class IT Share (1) ..o, 4.35 5.39 4.12
TTOAL ASSEES.cvrvvenrvirrerrsresrrrerscrserertensernrseeessesestarensesaesessesessasessonesesnasesansessonsas 6,591.2 6,403.3 5,845.4
Long term debt.....cciiiiiiieiiiie et 1,841.6 1,936.0 1,883.0
Non-recourse 1ong term debt .......cooceviirieniiiiniiiien s 948.2 956.4 770.4
Equity preferred shares ... 150.0 150.0 150.0
Class I and Class II share OWners’ equity ....c..ccuovcnininconininncenine e 1,133.6 1,044.8 911.6
Cash dividends declared per share:
5.75% Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares, Series 3 (3).............. 1.44 1.44 0.57
ClasS T SHATES....eeiviriirrierererecriirieree sttt cre e sa e sb et sa e e nb e e era e sneeens 1.28 1.16 1.04
Class IT SRATES .....cocvivveeiieiceieecivire i eeeseansaecne s seeenesebasabesse s sresiesesaesneeneaes 1.28 1.16 1.04
Notes:

(1) There were no discontinued operations or extraordinary items during these periods.

(2) The 2002 results include earnings of $34.9 million on the sale of the Viking-Kinsella natural gas producing
property.

(3) Issued July 10, 2001.

BUSINESS OF THE CORPORATION

The Corporation is a holding company. Its principal operating subsidiaries are engaged in
regulated natural gas and electric energy operations, primarily in Alberta, and in related non-
regulated operations. Regulated operations are conducted by ATCO Electric, ATCO Gas,
ATCO Pipelines and CU Water. Included in regulated operations are the generating plants of
Alberta Power (2000), which were regulated by the AEUB until December 31, 2000, but are now
governed by legislatively mandated PPA’s that were approved by the AEUB. These plants are
included in regulated operations primarily because the PPA’s are designed to allow the owners of
generating plants constructed before January 1, 1996, to recover their forecast fixed and variable
costs and to earn a return at the rate specified in the PPA’s. The plants will become deregulated
upon the expiry of the PPA’s. Each PPA is to remain in effect until the earlier of the last day of
the life of the related generating plant and December 31, 2020.

The Corporation has five Business Groups: Ultilities, Power Generation, Logistics and Energy
Services, Industrials and Technologies. For the purposes of financial disclosure, the
Technologies Business Group is ‘included in Technologies and Other Businesses. Corporate
results, which include administrative expenses, earnings from corporate investments and
financing charges, are accounted for as Corporate.

The Utilities Business Group includes the regulated distribution of natural gas by ATCO Gas, the
regulated distribution and transmission of electric energy by ATCO Electric and its subsidiaries,
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NLD, NUY and YECL, the regulated transmission and distribution of water by CU Water, and
the provision of non-regulated engineering, procurement and construction services for customers
in the utility, energy and telecommunications sectors by ATCO Utility Services.

The Power Generation Business Group includes the non-regulated supply of electricity and
cogeneration steam by ATCO Power and ATCO Resources and the regulated supply of
electricity by Alberta Power (2000).

The Logistics and Energy Services Business Group includes the regulated transportation of
natural gas by ATCO Pipelines, the non-regulated gathering, processing, storage, purchase and
sale of natural gas by ATCO Midstream, and the provision of project management and technical
services for customers in the industrial, defence and transportation sectors by ATCO Frontec.

The Industrials Business Group includes the manufacture, sale and lease of transportable
workforce shelter and space rentals products by ATCO Structures and the design and
construction of buildings to reduce noise emissions from industrial facilities by ATCO Noise
Management.

The Technologies Business Group and Other Businesses includes the development, operation
and support of information systems and technologies by ATCO I-Tek, the provision of billing
services, payment processing, credit, collection and call centre services by ATCO I-Tek Business
Services, the sale of fly ash and other combustion byproducts produced in coal-fired electrical
generating plants by ASHCOR Technologies, the manufacture of wood preservation products by
Genics, and the sale of travel services to both business and consumer sectors by ATCO Travel.
In addition, ATCO Investments owns commercial real estate in Calgary, Alberta and Canadian
Utilities owns commercial real estate in Fort McMurray, Alberta.

Utilities
Natural Gas Operations

ATCO Gas 1s primarily engaged in the business of distributing natural gas throughout Alberta
and in the Lloydminster area of Saskatchewan. In addition, ATCO Gas stores and purchases
natural gas. Although ATCO Gas is the major natural gas distributor in Alberta, certain areas are
served by other natural gas utilities.

ATCO Gas’ principal markets for the sale of natural gas are in the communities of Edmonton,
Calgary, Airdrie, Camrose, Fort McMurray, Grande Prairie, Lethbridge, Lloydminster, Red
Deer, St. Albert and Sherwood Park, which have a combined population of approximately
1,988,000. Also served are 280 smaller communities as well as rural areas having a combined
population of approximately 553,000, located on or in the vicinity of ATCO Pipelines’
transportation systems or the natural gas transportation pipelines of other companies. ATCO Gas
serves approximately 888,000 customers with natural gas, of whom approximately 75% are
located in the 11 communities named above.
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The number of customers served by ATCO Gas as at the end of each of the last two years was as

follows:
2003 2002
Sales Transportation Sales Transportation
Service Service Total Service Service Total

Residential ................. 760,508 49,413 809,921 751,373 34,037 785,410
Commercial................ 72,707 4,729 77,436 72,052 4,101 76,153
Industrial...........cco...... 260 107 367 250 109 359
Other..covvvvvireiieeeen, 16 - 16 1 - 1
Affiliates .....ooeevrvveennns 27 - 27 29 - 29
Total..ooovivviiirieiies 833,518 54,249 887,767 823,705 38,247 861,952

ATCO Gas owns and operates approximately 34,200 km of distribution mains.

ATCO Gas owns modern service and maintenance facilities in major centres.

In addition,

Sales and earnings of ATCO Gas are affected by temperature and consequently winter weather
Usually, more than 50% of the earnings of ATCO Gas are
generated during the months of January, February, November and December.

can have a significant impact.

The amounts of natural gas sold and distributed by ATCO Gas for each of the last two years

were as follows:

2003 2002
Sales Transportation Sales Transportation
Service Service Total Service Service Total
(petajoules)
Residential ................. 103.6 5.7 109.3 105.5 4.6 110.1
Commercial................ 84.5 15.6 100.1 86.7 15.5 102.2
Industrial...c..ccvveevnene. 4.1 10.5 14.6 42 10.8 15.0
Other...ovoviieceiieeeen, 5.8 - 5.8 4.4 - 4.4
Affiliates .....coovveevnneeen. 0.2 - 0.2 0.2 - 0.2
Total......ooovreeceerrreen, 198.2 31.8 230.0 201.0 30.9 231.9
Natural Gas Supply

ATCO Gas purchases the major portion (approximately 84%) of its supplies of natural gas under
contracts with terms of less than one year. The prices for these purchases are determined
through a tender/bid process or a negotiation process and are generally referenced to indices
related to other Alberta natural gas purchase contracts.

Additional natural gas requirements are provided under longer term contracts. The prices for
these purchases are based on price indices related to prices paid under other third party natural
gas purchase contracts in Alberta. As ATCO Gas’ long term natural gas purchase contracts

expire, ATCO Gas replaces them with contracts for one year or less.

These shorter term

contracts provide the flexibility needed to ensure that customers who choose to purchase their
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natural gas from other suppliers can be accommodated while still maintaining the supply security
stipulated by legislation.

ATCO Gas also owns natural gas field storage facilities at Carbon, Alberta.

In the opinion of the management of ATCO Gas, the foregoing arrangements provide sufficient
supplies of natural gas to meet the requirements of sales customers.

CU Water

CU Water is engaged in the transmission and distribution of water. CU Water owns and operates
a distribution system to supply water to rural customers and small towns east of Edmonton. At
the end of 2003, approximately 856 customers were being served directly by CU Water and, in
addition, bulk water sales were being made to the town of Tofield and to approximately 192
commercial water haulers. The operations of CU Water are subject to regulation by the AEUB.

Electric Operations

ATCO Electric is engaged in the business of distributing and transmitting electric energy to 246
communities as well as rural areas in east-central and northern Alberta. Included are the
communities of Drumbheller, Lloydminster, Grande Prairie and Fort McMurray as well as the oil
sands areas near Fort McMurray and the heavy oil areas near Cold Lake and Peace River.
Electric utility service is also provided to one community in British Columbia and to two
communities in Saskatchewan. YECL serves 19 communities in the Yukon Territory, including
the capital city of Whitehorse, and NUY and NLD serve nine communities in the Northwest
Territories, including the capital city of Yellowknife.

Electricity distributed to the various classes of customers for each of the last two years was as
follows:

2003 2002
Millions Millions
of of

Kilowatt Kilowatt

Hours T Hours T
TNAUSTEIAL ..o ettt s st 6,502 67 7,143 70
COMIMETCIAL . vveiiiiriiiieir et errre e ssbr e e ssrreeeaene 1,729 18 1,655 16
ReSIAENIIAL c.vvviviiiereiiiee et e st b e 982 10 963 9
Rural, REAS and Other....ccvvvveiiee et enee e 555 5 463 5
TOUAL. ettt st e st erre e s aar e s ene s 9,768 100 10,224 100

The aggregate population of the areas provided with electric utility service by ATCO Electric,
NUY, NLD and YECL is approximately 438,000 and service is provided to approximately
202,000 customers. ATCO Electric has been assigned approximately 65% of the designated
service area within Alberta which contains approximately 15% of the existing provincial
electrical load and 12% of the existing population.
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The number of customers served by ATCO Electric, NUY, NLD and YECL as at the end of each
of the last two years was as follows:

2003 2002
Number % Number %
INAUSEIIAL ..o ettt e cebre e sars e cneaneerens 10,484 5 10,623 5
COMMETCIAL..ovvvviiiciiie et serenre s reaseeresbaresssreeenns 27,386 14 27,448 14
ReSIAENtial ....coveiieviiiie ettt et 135,263 67 131,143 66
Rural, REAS and OtheT .....coooviveiivir et e e creeenesies enree e 29,135 14 28,632 15
TO AL vttt ettt ere et ne et ebe s s e e e e b e ebees 202,268 100 197,846 100

ATCO Electric, NUY, NLD and YECL own and operate extensive electric transmission and
distribution systems. The systems consist of approximately 9,000 km of main transmission lines
and 58,000 km of distribution lines. In addition, ATCO Electric delivers power to and operates
approximately 12,300 km of REA-owned distribution lines.

ATCO Electric, NUY, NLD and YECL own and operate 36 diesel, natural gas turbine and hydro
generating plants having an aggregate nameplate capacity of 62 megawatts in Alberta and in the
Yukon and Northwest Territories. The maximum peak load demand for these plants during the
year ended December 31, 2003, was 33 megawatts.

Electricity Supply

ATCO Electric is required to supply energy to certain customers in one of three ways: through
the regulated rate tariff, as the default retailer or as the default supplier (formerly “supplier of last
resort”).

ATCO Electric is obligated to supply energy under the regulated rate option to the residential,
farm and small commercial customers in its designated service area who do not choose an
unregulated retailer. ATCO Electric purchases electricity from the AESO at spot prices to
supply the regulated rate option customers, the costs for which are collected from customers at
rates approved by the AEUB. In November 2003, the government of Alberta revised its
regulations, effective January 1, 2004, and as a result, ATCO Electric will now be at risk for
electric energy supply and will no longer be able to flow through the AESO price to customers.
A further revision to the regulations in November permitted the AEUB to extend the period for
implementation to July 1, 2004 upon application. In December 2003, the AEUB issued a
decision approving ATCO Electric’s application to extend the implementation date to July 1,
2004. Under the revised regulations, ATCO Electric is obligated to provide a fixed price
regulated rate option to customers until July 1, 2006, and a regulated rate option based on actual
spot prices thereafter.

ATCO Electric is also obligated to assign a default retailer for its customers who are not eligible
for the regulated rate tariff and did not choose an unregulated retailer prior to 2001. ATCO
Electric appointed itself as the default retailer and purchases electricity from the AESO at the
spot price to supply these customers, the costs for which are passed on to customers on a dollar
for dollar basis.
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ATCO Electric has appointed itself as the default supplier (formerly “supplier of last resort™) for
its customers who are not eligible for its regulated rate tariff and who are unable to obtain service
from a retailer. The energy procurement price for these customers is the spot price of the AESO,
the costs for which are passed on to customers on a dollar for dollar basis.

Sale of Retail Operations

In December 2002, Direct Energy Marketing Limited (“Direct Energy”) agreed to purchase the
retail energy businesses of ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric, subject to the satisfaction of certain
conditions, including the receipt of required regulatory approvals and the government of Alberta
amending certain natural gas and electricity legislation. In December 2003, the AEUB issued
decisions approving the transfer of the retail operations of ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric to
Direct Energy, appointing Direct Energy provider of the natural gas Default Rate Tariff and
electricity Regulated Rate Tariff in the ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric service territories and
approving the tariff rate structure of Direct Energy Regulated Services, ATCO Gas and ATCO
Electric. The City of Calgary has filed leave to appeal the AEUB decision approving the transfer
of the retail operations. The Corporation is reviewing the AEUB decisions and certain other
conditions which must be satisfied in order to close the sale of its retail business to Direct
Energy.

If the sale does close on the anticipated terms, ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric will no longer be
involved in arranging for the supply and sale of natural gas and electricity to customers, but will
continue to provide transportation and distribution services under AEUB approved rates that
provide for a recovery of costs of service and fair return. The sale does not include any of the
distribution and transmission facilities used to deliver natural gas and electricity to customers.

In addition, ATCO I-Tek Business Services Ltd., which currently provides billing and customer
care services to ATCO Gas and ATCO Electric, has entered into a contract to provide similar
services to Direct Energy in the event the sale closes as anticipated (see ‘“Technologies ~ ATCO
I-Tek Business Services Ltd.”).

Power Generation

Power generation operations are conducted by Alberta Power (2000), ATCO Power and ATCO
Resources.

Regulated

Alberta Power (2000) is engaged in the regulated supply of electricity in Alberta. Alberta Power
(2000)’s assets are operated by ATCO Power pursuant to management agreements. The
generating plants of Alberta Power (2000) were regulated by the AEUB until December 31,
2000, but are now governed by legislatively mandated PPA’s that were approved by the AEUB.
These plants are included in regulated operations primarily because the PPA’s are designed to
allow the owners of generating plants constructed before January 1, 1996, to recover their
forecast fixed and variable costs and to earn a return at the rate specified in the PPA’s. The
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plants will become deregulated upon the expiry of the PPA’s. Each PPA is to remain in effect
until the earlier of the last day of the life of the related generating plant and December 31, 2020.

Substantially all of the electricity generated by Alberta Power (2000) is sold pursuant to PPA’s
with EPCOR Utilities Inc. (Battle River generating plant); Duke Energy Inc. (Rainbow
generating plant); and the Alberta Balancing Pool (Sheerness generating plant). Under the
PPA’s, Alberta Power (2000) is required to make the generating capacity for each generating
unit available to the purchaser of the PPA for that unit. In return, Alberta Power (2000) is
entitled to recover its forecast fixed and variable costs for that unit from the PPA purchaser,
including a return on common equity equal to the long term Canada bond rate plus 4.5% based
on a deemed common equity ratio of 45%. Many of the forecast costs will be determined by
indices, formulae or other means for the entire period of the PPA. Alberta Power (2000)’s actual
results will vary and depend on performance compared to the forecasts on which the PPA’s are
based.

The name plate capacity ratings of Alberta Power (2000)’s generating plants are listed below.

Name Plate
Plant Type of Generating Plant Capacity Rating
(megawatts)
Battle River : coal-fired steam turbine 679
Sheerness coal-fired steam turbine 375 (D
H.R. Milner coal-fired steam turbine 150 (2)
Rainbow natural gas turbine 90
Sturgeon natural gas turbine 18
1,312

Notes:
(1) Alberta Power (2000)’s ownership of the 750 megawatt name plate capacity.
(2) Alberta Power (2000) operated H.R. Milner to the closing date of its sale on January 29, 2004.

Alberta Power (2000) manages the Sheerness generating plant under long term agreements with
TransAlta Cogeneration L.P. for the equal sharing of ownership and cost of electric capacity.

Alberta Power (2000) owns or has committed under long term contracts sufficient coal supplies
for the anticipated lives of its Battle River and Sheerness generating plants.

In 2001, Alberta Power (2000) and the Alberta Balancing Pool entered into an agreement which
gave the Alberta Balancing Pool control of the H.R. Milner generating plant effective January 1,
2001 and the right to sell it until September 30, 2003, failing which the rights to control the
generating plant would revert to Alberta Power (2000). In return, Alberta Power (2000) was
paid $63.5 million, the net book value of the generating plant and coal inventory. Alberta Power
(2000) operated the generating plant under a cost of service contract with the Alberta Balancing
Pool. On August 6, 2003, the Alberta Balancing Pool announced that it had entered into an
agreement for the sale of plant. Alberta Power (2000) extended its cost of service contract until
January 29, 2004, when the plant was sold by the Alberta Balancing Pool to a third party. As
part of the sale, Alberta Power (2000) was relieved of all decommissioning risk, including any
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environmental liabilities incurred while Alberta Power (2000) was operating the generating
plant.

As a result of unprecedented drought conditions, the water level in the cooling pond used by the
Battle River plant in its production of electricity had fallen to an all-time low in early 2003, and
the Corporation made a force majeure claim in respect of short term curtailed plant production
which was experienced during the first quarter of 2003. Water levels continue to be below
normal levels, however sufficient water is currently available to permit the plant to produce
electricity according to its PPA contractual requirements. The Corporation is preparing
submissions for the arbitration hearings scheduled to commence May 3, 2004, in respect of the
force majeure claim.

Non-Regulated
ATCO Power is engaged in the non-regulated supply of electricity and cogeneration steam in
Canada, the United Kingdom and Australia. ATCO Power also manages Alberta Power (2000)’s

assets. ATCO Power continues to focus its development efforts on independent power
production projects in Canada, Australia and the United Kingdom.
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ATCO Power’s and ATCO Resources’ non-regulated independent cogeneration plants and
generating plants, with their respective commissioning dates and name plate capacity ratings, are
shown below.

Name Plate
Commissioning Capacity Net
Location Date Rating Ownership Ownership
(megawatts) (megawatts)
Canada:
Operating Units:
McMahon, B.C. 1993 120 50.0% 60
Primrose, Alberta 1998 85 50.0% 43
Poplar Hill, Alberta 1998 43 100.0% 43
Rainbow Lake, Alberta 1999 89 50.0% 45
Joffre, Alberta 2000 480 40.0% 192
Valleyview, Alberta 2001 46 100.0% 46
Muskeg River, Alberta 2003 . 170 70.0% 119
Cory, Saskatchewan 2003 260 50.0% 130
Oldman River, Alberta 2003 32 100.0% 32
Scotford, Alberta 2003 170 100.0% 170
Units Under Construction:
Brighton Beach, Ontario 2004 580 50.0% 290
United Kingdom:
Operating Units:
Barking, London 1995 1,000 25.5% 255
Heathrow Airport 1995 14 50.0% 7
Australia:
Operating Units:
Osborne, South Australia 1998 180 50.0% 90
Bulwer Island, Queensland 2001 33 50.0% 17
Total 3,302 1,539
Canada

ATCO Power has a 50% interest in a joint venture with McMahon Power Holdings L.P. The
joint venture owns and operates the 120 megawatt McMahon cogeneration plant at Taylor,
British Columbia. All of the electricity generated is sold to British Columbia Hydro and Power
Authority (“BC Hydro”) pursuant to an electricity purchase agreement expiring in 2013. In
addition to generating electricity, the plant sells steam to Westcoast Energy Inc.’s adjacent
natural gas processing plant.

A joint venture, owned by ATCO Power, Canadian Natural Resources Limited (“CNRL”) and
ATCO Resources, operates an 85 megawatt cogeneration power plant (the ‘“Primrose Steam
Enhancement Plant”) near Bonnyville, Alberta. The joint venture sells electricity and steam to
CNRL for use in its heavy oil recovery process. Any excess electricity generated is sold to the
AESO or to specific customers. ATCO Power owns a 40% interest in the project, ATCO
Resources owns 10% and CNRL owns 50%.
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ATCO Power operates a 43 megawatt natural gas-fired generating plant at Poplar Hill near
Grande Prairie, Alberta. Revenues are derived from power sold to the AESO and from
transmission deferral credits contracted with the AESO. ATCO Power owns an 80% interest in
the project and ATCO Resources owns 20%.

ATCO Power operates an 89 megawatt natural gas-fired generating plant at Rainbow Lake,
Alberta which sells steam and electricity to Husky Energy Inc. (“Husky”). Surplus electricity is
sold to the AESO. ATCO Power owns a 40% interest in the project, ATCO Resources owns
10% and Husky owns 50%.

ATCO Power, EPCOR Power Development Corporation (“EPCOR”) and NOVA Chemicals
Corporation (“NOVA”) are participants in a joint venture which operates a 480 megawatt natural
gas-fired cogeneration plant near Joffre, Alberta. ATCO Power is the operator of the facility.
NOVA purchases all of the steam and approximately 25% of the electricity produced for use in
NOVA'’s Joffre petrochemical site under an energy purchase agreement expiring in 2020. The
balance of the output is sold to the AESO or to specific customers. ATCO Power owns a 32%
interest in the project, ATCO Resources owns 8%, EPCOR owns 40% and NOVA owns 20%.

ATCO Power operates a 46 megawatt natural gas-fired generating plant near Valleyview,
Alberta. All of the electricity produced by the plant is sold to the AESO. ATCO Power owns an
80% interest in the project and ATCO Resources owns 20%.

ATCO Power and SaskPower International Inc. (“SPI”) are participants in a joint venture which
operates a 170 megawatt natural gas-fired cogeneration plant and related facilities at the
Athabasca Oil Sands Project (“AOSP”) Muskeg River mine near Fort McMurray, Alberta.
Approximately one-half of the electricity and all of the steam produced by the plant are supplied
to AOSP for use in its Muskeg River mine. The balance of the electricity generated is sold to the
AESO. Construction of the plant has been completed and commercial operation commenced on
January 1, 2003. ATCO Power owns a 56% interest in the project, ATCO Resources owns 14%
and SPI owns 30%.

ATCO Power and SPI are participants in a joint venture which operates a 260 megawatt natural
gas-fired cogeneration plant at Potash Corporation of Saskatchewan Inc.’s Cory Mine, located
near Saskatoon, Saskatchewan. ATCO Power is the operator of the facility. Saskatchewan
Power Corporation purchases all of the electricity generated by the plant for 25 years.
Construction of the plant has been completed and commercial operation commenced on January
15, 2003. ATCO Power owns a 40% interest in the project, ATCO Resources owns 10% and
SPI owns 50%.

ATCO Power operates a 32 megawatt hydroelectric generating plant at the Oldman River dam
near Pincher Creek, Alberta. All of the electricity produced by the plant is sold to the AESO.
The project was commissioned on September 30, 2003. ATCO Power owns an 80% interest in
the project and ATCO Resources owns 20%. The Piikani Nation of Brockett, Alberta has an
option which expires May 31, 2005, to purchase a 25% interest in the project.
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ATCO Power operates a 170 megawatt natural gas-fired cogeneration plant at the AOSP
upgrader at Scotford, Alberta. Approximately 80% of the electricity and all the thermal energy
produced by the plant is supplied to AOSP for use in the upgrader and the balance of the
electricity is sold to the AESO. Construction of the plant has been completed and commercial
operation commenced on December 1, 2003. ATCO Power owns an 80% interest in the project
and ATCO Resources owns 20%.

A partnership formed by ATCO Power and Ontario Power Generation (“OPG”) is constructing
and will operate the Brighton Beach power plant, a 580 megawatt natural gas-fired combined
cycle generating plant at the site of the former J.C. Keith Generating Station, near Windsor,
Ontario. Coral Energy Canada Inc. has agreed to supply and pay for the natural gas to be used at
the plant and will own, market and trade all the electricity produced. Construction is progressing
with commercial operation scheduled for the summer of 2004. ATCO Power owns a 40%
interest in the project, ATCO Resources owns 10% and OPG owns 50%. The estimated costs to
complete the generating plant have increased from original estimates by approximately 19% to
$562 million due to higher supply and assembly costs for the heat recovery steam generator,
higher costs for civil works and changes in engineering scope. In addition, ATCO Power has
provided a contingency of $10 million for unforeseen commissioning costs. ATCO Power’s and
ATCO Resources’ share is $286 million.

On September 8, 2003, SPI announced that it had selected ATCO Power as its joint venture
partner to potentially develop up to 150 megawatts of wind generation power in Saskatchewan.

 United Kingdom

ATCO Power and Balfour Beatty plc (formerly BICC plc), a United Kingdom construction
group, each own a 50% equity interest in Thames Power, a London, England based company.
Thames Power has a 51% interest in BPL which owns a 1,000 megawatt natural gas-fired
combined cycle generating plant at Dagenham in London, England (the “Barking power plant”).
EDF Energy (Energy Branch) plc (formerly London Power Company plc), SSE Energy Supply
Limited (formerly Scottish and Southern Energy Limited), and TXU Europe Power Limited (the
“Regional Electricity Companies”) own the remaining 49% interest in BPL. The Regional
Electricity Companies have entered into long term agreements expiring in 2010 to purchase all of
the electricity produced at the plant. The Barking power plant is operated by ATCO Power.

On November 19, 2002, an administration order was issued by a United Kingdom court for TXU
Europe Energy Trading Ltd. (“TXU Europe”), which had a long term offtake agreement for
27.5% of the power produced by the Barking power plant. An administration order is similar to
a Chapter 11 bankruptcy filing in the United States. BPL has filed a claim with the
Administrator and is working with the Administrator and Creditors’ Committees on liquidation
of TXU Europe and settlement of claims. The Barking power plant will continue to supply 725
megawatts of power under long term contracts. The 275 megawatts of power previously
supplied to TXU Europe is being sold under short term bilateral agreements.

ATCO Power has a 50% interest in a joint venture with a subsidiary of EDF Energy plc
(formerly London Electricity plc). The joint venture owns and operates a facility consisting of a
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14 megawatt natural gas turbine, 40 megawatts of boiler capacity and an associated heat
distribution system at London’s Heathrow Airport. The joint venture has a 15 year energy
services contract, expiring in 2010, with BAA plc, owner of the Heathrow Airport, for all of the
electric energy and hot water produced by the facility.

Australia

ATCO Power has a 50% interest in a joint venture with Origin Energy Limited (“Origin”). The
joint venture owns and operates a 180 megawatt cogeneration plant in Osborne, South Australia.
This joint venture supplies electricity to Flinders Osborne Trading Pty Ltd (“FOT”) under a 20
year electricity purchase agreement expiring in 2018. In addition to generating electricity, the
plant provides steam under a 20 year agreement, expiring in 2018, to Penrice Soda Products Pty
Ltd.

In December 2002, the joint venture was advised that FOT’s parent corporation would no longer
provide financial support to FOT. FOT continues to meet its obligations under its agreements
with the joint venture. The government of South Australia has guaranteed the obligations of
FOT under these agreements.

ATCO Power has a 50% interest in a consortium with Origin. The consortium owns and
operates a 33 megawatt natural gas-fired cogeneration plant and other utility infrastructure at BP
Amoco plc’s (“BP”) Bulwer Island refinery, near Brisbane, Queensland. All of the power and
steam produced by the plant is sold to BP under a 20 year agreement expiring in 2021.

Logistics and Energy Services

Regulated Natural Gas Transportation
ATCO Pipelines is engaged in the business of transporting natural gas throughout Alberta.
ATCO Pipelines owns and operates extensive natural gas transportation systems. The systems
consist of approximately 8,310 km of pipelines, 21 compressor sites and a salt cavern peaking
facility. The systems have 203 producer receipt points, 77 interconnections with TransCanada

Pipelines Limited, two interconnections with Alliance Pipeline and one interconnection with
Many Islands Pipelines.
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ATCO Pipelines’ revenues are based primarily on contractual arrangements for access to its
transmission systems. Contract demand for access, and interruptible (IT), overrun (OR) and
variable volumes for each of the last two years was as follows:

2003 2002
(terajoules/day)

Contract Demand:

PrOUCET oottt rette e bt e s bt s e st bre s e b bt e s s e b et s s e ebreresennnrane s sorntns 1,314 1,463

INAUSIEIAL c.ovovvecir ettt et e e et e vt et e s e be s ste s teasseobeesaaasbserteassreerserenessraas 1,075 1,131

DISTIIDULION ©viiivviiitirieriie ittt s carr ettt stbersee b e stesetsaestsssastsonsbesntesansesssnesserssssasbessssrres 39 39

ATTIHATES ..ovviieeciieirieie et ettecteeet et esaesteesre et aeentsebeertseseeebeetneste s ssesbesseesnsesnneeesresbessreennseans 2,171 2,257

OBl ettt e et s be e bbbt a e cr e sab b e ras st bt et b e e e erbbeneanesanbes 4,599 4,890
IT/OR/Variable Volumes:

3 (016 11167 GO O OO S SRR URRP 209 156

INAUSIEIAL .ottt et e e st sersea e e st e seb st e s bbeoRsesreasbea srseeeberatesneeseenes 231 135

DUSHIDULION ..o vttt ettt ree et cr e erests e et e s s reesas s ebts et b essteasernessnseesnsanssnsananssrans 18 18

B o372 U OO ST SRRSO 458 309
Total Contract Demand and IT/OR/Variable VOIIMES .......ccorvivireeniiinernirrenieneecnvenenrenesrenns 5,057 5,199

In addition, ATCO Pipelines provides sales service to certain customers. ATCO Pipelines
obtains natural gas for these customers from ATCO Gas.

Non-Regulated Natural Gas Gathering, Processing and Storage Operations

ATCO Midstream owns and operates non-regulated gathering and processing facilities in
Alberta. ATCO Midstream also provides management services for ATCO Gas’ storage field at
Carbon, Alberta and natural gas procurement services for ATCO Gas and other subsidiaries of
the Corporation.

ATCO Midstream owns a 51.3% interest in EEEP. Located in south Edmonton, EEEP is a
natural gas processing plant which extracts ethane and other natural gas liquids from natural gas
flowing into the Edmonton market area. Ethane is sold to an Alberta ethylene producer under a
long term contract that expires in December 2012 and other natural gas liquids are sold under
annual contracts that are renewable every March 31.

ATCO Midstream owns or has a joint venture interest in 12 natural gas processing plants, eight
of which it operates, three compression facilities, all of which it operates, and approximately
1,000 km of field gathering lines. Natural gas production from the producing properties
connected to ATCO Midstream’s natural gas gathering systems is processed by ATCO
Midstream and either transported for a fee or purchased and sold under contracts with third
parties.

ATCO Midstream has agreements for natural gas storage capacity with various facilities in
Alberta. ATCO Midstream utilizes this capacity to provide storage services to third parties.
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Technical Facilities Management

ATCO Frontec, through its own operations and through a number of joint ventures, provides
project management and technical services for customers in the industrial, defence,
telecommunications and transportation sectors. Activities include the operation and maintenance
of the Alaska Radar System, the Solid State Phased Array Radar System, the Automatic Data
Processing systems for the NATO Stabilization Force Headquarters in Sarajevo, and various
remote sites for Northwestel Inc. in northern Canada. ATCO Frontec also provides airport
operation and maintenance, security, facilities management, bulk fuel storage and distribution
and a wide variety of services and business activities in various locations throughout Canada.

ATCO Frontec and Pan Arctic Inuit Logistics Corporation (“Pan Arctic”) have a contract with
the Government of Canada to operate and maintain the North Warning System until September
30, 2006. Nasittug Corporation, a corporation jointly owned by ATCO Frontec and Pan Arctic,
operates as agent for the purposes of the contract.

Industrials
ATCO Structures

ATCO Structures is engaged in the manufacture, sale and lease of transportable shelters and
related products. ATCO Structures has marketed and installed its manufactured products in over
105 countries around the world since 1947 and has established a reputation as a leader in the
international supply of relocatable shelter products. Products sold are manufactured in Canada,
the U.S., Australia, Hungary and Chile and under subcontract in other jurisdictions.

Workforce Housing

ATCO Structures’ workforce housing products include prefabricated standardized or custom
units that are designed to be assembled into self contained camps complete with sleeping
accommodation, kitchen, dining and recreation facilities. The units are designed to be used in all
weather conditions and are fully transportable. Workforce housing products are used primarily
by companies in the oil and gas, forestry products and mining industries and by governments.

The workforce housing lease fleet of 1,868 units (1,097 units in Canada) includes sleeping
accommodation, kitchens, diners, recreation facilities and washcars which can accommodate up
to 6,700 persons. The fleet is maintained to meet the latest standards set by the building industry
and trade unions and is refurbished and upgraded as required. ATCO Structures also purchases
used workforce housing units from customers which are then retrofitted as required and made
available for resale or lease in the workforce housing market.

ATCO Structures also sells and leases Fold-A-Way metal buildings domestically and
internationally. These prefabricated steel buildings have a modular design which enables them
to be erected in hours and easily dismantled and relocated. Fold-A-Way metal buildings have
been used by a broad range of industries and government agencies with many varied applications
such as equipment storage, maintenance facilities, factories, gymnasiums, sewage treatment
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plants, aircraft hangers and emergency shelters. The buildings are manufactured by
subcontractors to designs and specifications developed by ATCO Structures.

Demand for workforce housing products is directly related to the capital spending cycle and the
level of development activity in natural resource industries. During 2003, the utilization rate for
ATCO Structures’ work force housing fleet averaged 47%, down from 52% in 2002.

Space Rentals

In Canada, Australia, the United Kingdom and Chile, ATCO Structures’ space rentals business
involves the lease and sale of relocatable modular offices, classrooms and other community
structures. In the United States, ATCO Structures sells its space rentals products to leasing
companies. ATCO Structures’ space rentals fleet of 5,170 units consists of on-site structures
such as site offices, lunchrooms, storage facilities, lavatories, first-aid units and locker rooms,
and modular commercial and community structures such as office complexes and classrooms.
On-site structures are used primarily by construction companies on urban and rural construction
sites. Commercial and community structures, although relocatable, are generally used as more
permanent facilities by a wide range of private and public sector customers.

Space rentals products are generally offered to customers under lease packages which may
include options to purchase. The terms of leases generally vary from one month to five years.
Customers with longer term requirements typically purchase rather than lease. Sales from the
fleet assist ATCO Structures in maintaining a modern inventory of space rentals units.

The number of units in ATCO Structures’ lease fleets as at the end of each of the last two years
was as follows:

2003 2002
Work Work
Force Space Force Space
Housing  _Rentals Housing Rentals
CaANAA cooviireiiir e et 1,097 1,054 1,173 873
AUSITAL ..ttt sebe bt er et eserena 462 3,850 396 3,350
OLhET oottt et et eae e anes 309 266 249 202
TOtal. oot e e 1,868 5,170 1,818 4,425
Manufacturing
Canada

ATCO Structures’ principal manufacturing facilities are located on a 72 acre leased site in
Calgary known as the ATCO Industrial Park, with approximately 275,000 square feet of
production and office space. ATCO Structures employs a staff of engineers and designers whose
expertise in designing modular buildings, complemented by technicians experienced in selection
of materials and modular construction methods, results in the manufacturing of products for use
anywhere in the world ranging from sophisticated custom-designed projects to basic construction
camp facilities and modular housing.

20 ATCO



ATCO Structures’ Spruce Grove manufacturing facility is located 15 km west of Edmonton,
Alberta. This 90,000 square foot facility was originally used for service and maintenance work,
but has been used as an overflow manufacturing facility and for service and maintenance since
1995 to meet incremental demand for modular products that cannot be met from facilities in
Calgary.

International

ATCO Structures operates a leased 90,000 square foot manufacturing facility in Diboll, Texas.
This plant manufactures relocatable modular products and serves the local domestic market and
international markets.

ATCO Structures operates a leased 50,000 square foot manufacturing facility in Budapest,
Hungary. This plant manufactures workforce housing products, predominantly for use by
western energy and resource companies operating in eastern Europe and northern Africa.

ATCO Structures has a 50% interest in a joint venture with Tecno Fast S.A., a modular
manufacturing company based in Santiago, Chile. Tecno Fast owns and operates a 70,000
square foot manufacturing facility.

ATCO Structures owns and operates a 15,000 square foot manufacturing facility on a three acre
site in Brisbane, Queensland, Australia and a 15,000 square foot manufacturing facility on a two
acre site in Townsville, Queensland.

Although ATCO Structures’ international competitors generally serve regional markets and often
are not able to offer the same capabilities and experience as ATCO Structures, the international
market is nevertheless very competitive and price is often the determining factor in securing
contracts.

Noise Management

ATCO Noise Management provides guaranteed “one — stop” turnkey solutions for industrial
noise that may include acoustic enclosures, buildings, barriers, ventilation systems, combustion
air intake and exhaust silencers and other noise abatement components. Registered to the ISO
9001-2000 quality assurance standard, it offers its clients a full range of services, including noise
surveys, regulatory review, engineering design, procurement, construction and post-construction
testing.

The growing awareness of noise as a pollutant has resulted in a more rigorous enforcement of
noise abatement by the National Energy Board in Canada, the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission in the United States, the European Union Commission as well as local government
bodies.

ATCO Noise Management’s clients are predominantly from the energy and manufacturing
sectors. Typical projects are acoustic buildings for new compressor stations, retrofitting of
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existing industrial plants, acoustic buildings, barriers, and enclosures for power generation
facilities, and acoustic buildings for gas separation plants.

Major accomplishments for 2003 included the completion of 25 acoustical consulting projects in
Canada, the United States, Mexico and Brazil, along with the supply and installation of three 43
metre silenced exhaust stacks for Gilbert Southern Corp. at the Fluvanna Generating Station in
Virginia. '

ATCO Noise Management will continue to concentrate on its worldwide business through an

emphasis on the energy and petrochemical industries.

Technologies
ATCO I-Tek

ATCO I-Tek is engaged in the development, operation and support of information systems and
technologies.

ATCO I-Tek Business Services

ATCO I-Tek Business Services provides billing services, payment processing, credit, collection
and call centre services. ATCO I-Tek Business Services provides contract utility billing and
related services to the City of Red Deer pursuant to a five year contract which expired, and was
not renewed, on December 31, 2003. Utility billing and related services are supplied to ATCO
Gas and ATCO Electric pursuant to contracts expiring on January 1, 2007.

On December 12, 2002, ATCO I-Tek Business Services announced that it had entered into a 10
year contract with Direct Energy to provide billing and customer care services to nearly one
million Alberta customers. Commencement of the contract is conditional upon the closing of the
sale of ATCO Gas’ and ATCO Electric’s retail operations to Direct Energy (see “Business of the
Corporation — Utilities — Sale of Retail Operations”).

ASHCOR Technologies

ASHCOR Technologies is engaged in the sale of fly ash and other combustion byproducts
produced in coal-fired electrical generating plants.

ATCO Travel
ATCO Travel is engaged in the provision of travel services to corporate clients, the general

public and the Corporation. ATCO Travel is one of the largest independent travel agencies in
western Canada.
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Genics

The Corporation owns a 50% interest in the shares of Genics, a manufacturer of wood
preservation products.

Real Estate Operations

ATCO Investments Ltd. owns ATCO Centre Phase II at 919 — 11 Avenue S.W., Calgary,
containing 125,000 square feet of net rentable area, of which 100% was occupied as at February
26, 2004.

ATCO Investments Ltd. also has a 67% interest in a 56,000 square foot prime land assembly in
downtown Calgary.

FRANCHISES

AGP, ATCO Electric, YECL, NUY and NLD distribute natural gas and electricity in
incorporated communities under the authority of franchises or by-laws and in rural areas under
approvals, permits or orders issued pursuant to applicable statutes.

In Edmonton, distribution of natural gas is carried on under the authority of an exclusive
franchise. AGP has entered into an agreement with the City of Edmonton for a 10 year renewal
of the franchise to November 15, 2005. The franchise renewal is subject to the right of the City
of Edmonton, at the end of the renewal period, to purchase all of AGP’s assets within the city
and its assets outside the city used in supplying natural gas to the city. The purchase price would
be the amount of the actual value thereof as a going concern plus 10% of such value. Although
the franchise agreement gives the City certain rights of purchase, since 1935 the City has granted
renewals for 10 year periods.

In Calgary, distribution of natural gas is carried on under the authority of a municipal by-law.
The rights of AGP under this by-law, while not exclusive, are unrestricted as to time. The by-
law does not confer any right on the City of Calgary to acquire the facilities used in providing the
service.

The franchises under which service is provided in other incorporated communities in Alberta and
in the Northwest Territories have been granted for periods of up to 20 years. These franchises
are exclusive to AGP, ATCO Electric, NUY or NLD and are renewable by agreement for further
periods not exceeding 20 years each in the case of AGP and 10 years in the case of ATCO
Electric, NUY and NLD. If any franchise is not renewed, it remains in effect until such time as
either party, with the approval of the prevailing regulatory authority, terminates it on six months
written notice. Upon termination of a franchise the municipality may purchase the facilities used
in connection with that franchise at a price to be agreed upon or, failing agreement, to be fixed
by the prevailing regulatory authority. The franchise under which service is provided in the
Yukon Territory was granted under the Public Utilities Act (Yukon Territory) and has no set
expiry date.
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GOVERNMENT REGULATION

Under Alberta legislation, owners of public, electric or gas utilities are required to obtain AEUB
approval prior to issuing securities. The Corporation is not subject to, and CU and CU Inc. have
obtained from the AEUB orders which exempt them from, this requirement.

The utility operations of the Corporation in Alberta (ATCO Gas, ATCO Electric, ATCO
Pipelines and CU Water) are subject to the jurisdiction of the AEUB which, among other things,
is vested with broad general powers of supervision with respect to the construction and operation
of electric energy and natural gas facilities within the Province and broad powers of regulation in
respect of rates charged for electric energy, natural gas and water.

The AEUB approves customer rates based on anticipated energy sales as well as the revenue
required to recover estimated costs of service, including a fair return on rate base, estimated
operating expenses, depreciation and taxes, all in respect of a future test period. Energy sales are
based on a forecast of economic and business conditions and, in the case of natural gas utility
operations, normal temperature which is defined as the average temperature for the previous 20
years.

Rate base consists of the depreciated cost of utility assets and an allowance for working capital.
Return on rate base is designed to meet the cost of interest on long term debt and dividends on
preferred shares and to provide the common shareholders with a reasonable opportunity to earn a
fair return on their investment. The determination of a fair return to the common shareholders
involves an assessment by the AEUB of many factors, including returns on alternative
investment opportunities of comparable risk and the level of return which will enable a utility to
attract the necessary capital to fund its operations.

The EUA and the Gas Ultilities Act grant the AEUB specific authority to approve customer rates
that provide incentives for efficiencies that result in cost savings or other benefits that can be
shared in an equitable manner between a utility and its customers. Final determination of such
customer rates requires the approval of the AEUB.

The regulated operations of the Corporation in the Yukon Territory (YECL) and the Northwest

Territories (NUY and NLD) are subject to regulation similar to that in effect in Alberta by
regulatory authorities in those jurisdictions.
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Particulars of the most recent final decisions made by the AEUB respecting general rate
applications or negotiated settlements filed by the principal regulated subsidiaries of the
Corporation are as follows:

Rate of Return
Date of Mid-Year Rate Common
Year Decision (1) Rate Base Base Equity (2)
($ Millions) (%) (%)
ATCO Electric
TranSmission ...coccverrerireenrieenernnes 2003 Qct. 02/03 672.0 (3) 8.03 (3) 9.40
2004 Oct. 02/03 747.8 (4) 4 ()]
DiStribution ..c..eevevveevvevresvereriereenns 2003 Oct. 02/03 558.5(5) 7.93(5) 9.40
2004 Oct. 02/03 584.5 (4) 4} 4)
ATCO Pipelines North............ccveeen. 2003 Dec. 02/03 6) (6) 9.50
2004 Dec. 02/03 “) ©))] 4
ATCO Pipelines South.........ccooeveunne 2003 Dec. 02/03 (6) (6) 9.50
2004 Dec. 02/03 @) “@ )]
ATCO Gas North ..o, 2003 Oct. 01/03 @) N 9.50
2004 Oct. 01/03 @) 0] 9.50
ATCO Gas South.....ccoeveevirecenennaes 2003 Oct. 01/03 @) @) 9.50
2004 Oct. 01/03 (7 @) 9.50
Notes:
(1) The information shown reflects the most recent amending or varying orders issued subsequent to the original

¢
3

C)

(5

(6

N

date of decision.

Common equity rate of return is the rate of return on the portion of rate base considered to be financed by
common equity.

Based on a common equity ratio of 32%. ATCO Electric, as directed by the AEUB, has refiled the 2003 and
2004 revenue requirements, incorporating the findings in the decision. The AEUB issued its final determination
of the revenue requirements for the 2003 and 2004 test years on February 17, 2004.

The 2004 rate of return on common equity and the common equity ratios for the ATCO Electric’s transmission
and distribution operations and ATCO Pipelines operations will be determined as part of the generic cost of
capital hearing.

Based on a common equity ratio of 35%. ATCO Electric, as directed by the AEUB, has refiled the 2003 and
2004 revenue requirements, incorporating the findings in the decision. The AEUB issued its final determination
of the revenue requirements for the 2003 and 2004 test years on February 17, 2004.

Based on a common equity ratio of 43.5%. ATCO Pipelines, as directed by the AEUB, has refiled the 2003 and
2004 revenue requirements, incorporating the findings in the decision. The AEUB has not yet issued its final
determination of the revenue requirements and rate base for the 2003 and 2004 test years.

Based on a common equity ratio of 37%. ATCO Gas, as directed by the AEUB, has refiled the 2003 and 2004
revenue requirements, incorporating the findings in the decision. The AEUB has not yet issued its final
determination of the revenue requirements and rate base for the 2003 and 2004 test years.

Gas Utilities Act

Under the Gas Utilities Act, customers in Alberta have the choice of purchasing their natural gas
supplies from their local natural gas utility or directly from retailers, subject to certain
conditions.
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Customers purchasing natural gas from ATCO Gas do so at rates that are approved by the
AEUB. ATCO Gas receives no profit or benefit from increases in natural gas prices. The cost of
the natural gas it purchases for sale to its customers is passed on directly to its customers
following scrutiny in a public process under the authority of the AEUB. In October 2001, the
AEUB approved the implementation on April 1, 2002, of a monthly method of adjusting
customer rates to recover the cost of natural gas purchased for customers of ATCO Gas. The
new methodology replaces the previous method under which rates were adjusted twice a year.
The new methodology is intended to provide greater price transparency for customers.

In August 2002, the Government of Alberta announced changes to utility legislation designed to
improve the environment for retail competition in the Province. Amendments to the Electric
Utilities Act and Gas Utilities Act received Royal Assent in March 2003 and were proclaimed in
force in June 2003. These changes were designed to bring customer choice for both gas and
electricity into closer alignment, as well as to move towards consistent regulatory treatment of
investor-owned and municipally-owned utilities.

In July 2003, ATCO Gas filed its compliance application in accordance with the new legislation.

In December 2003, the AEUB issued a decision approving the implementation of the "One Bill
Model" no later than April 1, 2004. The One Bill Model will ensure that customers who choose
to purchase their natural gas requirements from a retailer will receive only one bill for natural gas
service. Previously, customers would receive a bill from the retailer for the purchase of the
commodity and a separate bill from ATCO Gas for the delivery service.

Electric Utilities Act

The EUA provides the framework for a new structure in Alberta’s electric utility industry and
introduces competition into the electric utility business. As of January 1, 2001, new generation
was completely deregulated and retail competition was introduced. In August 2002, the
Government of Alberta announced further changes to utility legislation in order to improve the
environment for retail competition in the Province. Amendments to the Electric Utilities Act and
Gas Utilities Act received Royal Assent in March 2003 and were proclaimed in force in June
2003. These changes were designed to bring customer choice for both gas and electricity into
closer alignment, as well as to move towards consistent regulatory treatment of investor-owned
and municipally-owned utilities.

It is anticipated that ATCO Electric’s transmission and distribution activities will continue to be
regulated by the AEUB and Alberta Power (2000)’s generation activities will continue to be
regulated via legislatively mandated PPA’s approved by the AEUB.

New Generation
Under the EUA, generation assets constructed after December 31, 1995 are not considered part

of utility operations and rates are not regulated by the AEUB. All owners of new and existing
generating units must sell their surplus electric energy through the AESO.
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Existing Generation

The EUA provided for the equalization of costs of “existing generation” that was in service at
December 31, 1995. On January 1, 2001, existing generation became subject to legislatively
mandated PPA’s approved by the AEUB. The PPA’s are designed to allow the owners of
generating plants constructed before January 1, 1996 to recover their forecast fixed and variable
costs and to earn a return at the rate specified in the PPA’s. The plants will become deregulated
upon the expiry of the PPA’s. Each PPA is to remain in effect until the earlier of the last day of
the life of the related generating plant and December 31, 2020.

Transmission

Under the EUA, separate wholesale tariffs for transmission must be approved by the AEUB.
The transmission tariffs allow any owner of a generating unit to have access to the transmission
system in Alberta and thus facilitate the sale of its power. The same transmission tariff is
charged to each distribution utility or customer directly connected to the transmission system
regardless of location.

The equalization of transmission costs is achieved by having each owner of transmission
facilities charge its costs to the AESO. The AESO then aggregates these costs and charges a
common transmission rate to all who use the transmission system.

Certain transmission expansion projects were to be procured by the AESO through a competitive
bid process. The project costs were to be charged to the AESO through contracts between the
winning bidder and the AESO. Following consultation with interested parties, the Alberta
Department of Energy suspended this competitive bid process for awarding transmission
expansion and subsequently eliminated the process in its recent transmission policy paper. The
projects previously awarded under this process have been assigned to regulated entities at the
direction of the Government of Alberta.

Distribution

Under the EUA, separate retail rates for distribution must be approved by the AEUB. Costs of
distribution are not equalized. The distribution utility provides the transportation and
distribution services for all customers under AEUB approved tariffs which provide for the
recovery of the cost of service, including a fair return on rate base.

Retail

On January 1, 2001, all customers had a choice as to the supplier of their electric energy.
Industrial and large commercial customers were required to select a retailer effective January 1,
2001. Other customers may continue to purchase electricity from their current distribution utility
under a regulated rate option. This option was originally to be available for five years (2001 —
2005) for residential and farm customers and for three years (2001 — 2003) for small commercial
and small industrial customers. In November 2003, the government of Alberta revised its
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regulations to require distribution utilities to provide the fixed regulated rate option to July 1,
2006 for all eligible regulated rate option customers. After July 1, 2006, the distribution utilities
are required to provide the regulated rate option to customers based on actual spot prices.

ATCO Electric is obligated to supply energy under the regulated rate option to the residential,
farm and small commercial customers in its designated service area who do not choose an
unregulated retailer. ATCO Electric purchases electricity from the AESO at spot prices to
supply the regulated rate option customers, the costs for which are collected from customers at
rates approved by the AEUB. In November 2003, the government of Alberta revised its
regulations, effective January 1, 2004, and as a result, ATCO Electric will now be at risk for
electric energy supply and will no longer be able to flow through the AESO price to customers.
A further revision to the regulations in November permitted the AEUB to extend the period for
implementation to July 1, 2004 upon application. In December 2003, the AEUB issued a
decision approving ATCO Electric’s application to extend the implementation date to July 1,
2004. Under the revised regulations, ATCO Electric is obligated to provide a fixed price
regulated rate option to customers until July 1, 2006, and a regulated rate option based on actual
spot prices thereafter.

Environmental Protection

The Corporation’s operating subsidiaries and the industries in which they operate are subject to
extensive federal, provincial and local environmental protection laws concerning emissions to
the air, discharges to surface and subsurface waters, land use activities and the handling,
manufacturing, processing, use, emission and disposal of materials and waste products. In
Alberta, protection of the environment is generally governed by the Alberta Environmental
Protection and Enhancement Act. The operating subsidiaries have obtained or are obtaining all
permits and licenses required by law to carry on their operations.

The Corporation’s operating subsidiaries are committed to preserving and protecting the
environment and minimizing the discharge of harmful materials into the environment in
accordance with environmental protection laws and regulations. Nevertheless, some risk of
unintentional violation of environmental protection laws and the resulting liability to the
Corporation’s operating subsidiaries is inherent in particular operations of these subsidiaries, as
it is with other companies engaged in similar businesses. There can be no assurance that
material costs and liabilities will not be incurred. To mitigate these costs, the Corporation carries
insurance for the operating subsidiaries against third party claims for bodily injury and property
damage arising from a sudden and accidental event or occurrence resulting from an unexpected
release of pollutants or contaminants.

The Corporation’s operating subsidiaries do not expect that environmental protection laws and
regulations will affect them differently from other companies in the industries in which they
operate. Specifically identifiable expenditures for pollution abatement and control were
approximately $18.1 million in 2003 and are estimated to be $14.8 million in 2004. Costs of
compliance with existing laws and regulations are not expected to have a material impact on the
earnings of the Corporation or the competitive position of the operating subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Set out below is information with respect to the directors and officers of the Corporation.

Period Served

Name and as a Director of
Municipality of the

Residence Position Principal Occupation Corporation

B.M. Andrews Vice President Vice President, Finance, ATCO I-

Calgary, Alberta Tek Inc.

CR. Armour Managing Director, Managing Director, ATCO

Fullarton, South ATCO Group, Group, Australia/Asia/Pacific,

Australia Australia/Asia/Pacific ATCO Ltd.

W.L. Britton, Q.C. Director and Vice Partner, Bennett Jones LLP 1975 to date

@) G)
Calgary, Alberta

J.A. Campbell
&)
Calgary, Alberta

D.R. Cawsey (5)
Calgary, Alberta

B.P. Collomb
Paris, France

D.T. Davis
Calgary, Alberta

B.P. Drummond
3@
Montreal, Quebec

B .K. French
Q@G
Calgary, Alberta

H.E. Joudrie
Toronto, Ontario

S.W. Kiefer
Calgary, Alberta

Chairman of the Board

Senior Vice President,
Finance and Chief
Financial Officer

Vice President, Human
Resources and Corporate

Secretary

Director

Vice President, Internal
Audit

Director

Director

Director

Vice President,
Information Technology
and Chief Information
Officer

(barristers and solicitors)

Senior Vice President, Finance
and Chief Financial Officer,
ATCO Ltd. and Canadian Utilities

Limited

Vice President, Human Resources
and Corporate Secretary, ATCO

Ltd. and Canadian Utilities
Limited

Chairman, Lafarge S.A.

(building materials company)

Vice President, Internal Audit,
ATCO Ltd. and Canadian Utilities

Limited

Corporate Director

President, Karusel Management
Ltd. (property management and

management consultants)

Corporate Director

Vice President, Information

Technology and Chief
Information Officer and

Managing Director, Technologies
Business Group, ATCO Ltd. and

Canadian Utilities Limited

29

1999 to date

1968 to date

1982 to date

1999 to date
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Period Served

Name and as a Director of
Municipality of the

Residence Position Principal Occupation Corporation
Rt. Hon. D.F. Director Business Consultant and 1999 to date
Mazankowski, Corporate Director
PC,0.C,AQE,
D.Eng., LLD.
Vegreville, Alberta
C.S. McConnell Treasurer Treasurer, ATCO Ltd. and
Calgary, Alberta Canadian Utilities Limited
H.M. Neldner (3) (4) Director Corporate Director 1997 to date
Westerose, Alberta
N.C. Southern Director, President and President and Chief Executive 1989 to date
Calgary, Alberta Chief Executive Officer Officer, ATCO Ltd. and Canadian

Utilities Limited

R. D. Southern, Director and Chairman Chairman of the Board, ATCO 1963 to date

CBE,OC,LLD.
Calgary, Alberta

P. Spruin
Calgary, Alberta

L.C. van Wachem,
KBE.,

The Hague,

The Netherlands

L.J. Vegh,
Calgary, Alberta

K.M. Watson
Calgary, Alberta

S.R. Werth (5)
Calgary, Alberta

of the Board

Assistant Corporate
Secretary and Manager,
Corporate Secretarial

Director

Vice President,

Insurance

Vice President, Finance
and Controller

Senior Vice President
and Chief
Administration Officer

Ltd. and Canadian Utilities
Limited

Assistant Corporate Secretary and
Manager, Corporate Secretarial,
ATCO Ltd. and Canadian Utilities
Limited

Chairman of the Board, Zurich
Financial Services (insurance
based financial services company)

Vice President, Insurance, ATCO
Ltd. and Canadian Utilities
Limited

Vice President, Finance and
Controller, ATCO Ltd. and
Canadian Utilities Limited

Senior Vice President and Chief
Administration Officer, ATCO
Ltd. and Canadian Utilities
Limited
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Period Served

Name and as a Director of
Municipality of the
Residence Position Principal Occupation Corporation
C.W. Wilson (3) (4) Director Corporate Director 2002 to date

Evergreen, Colorado

Notes:

(1) Each director holds office until the close of the annual meeting of shareholders of the Corporation.
(2) Member of the Corporate Governance — Nomination, Succession and Compensation Committee.
(3) Member of the Audit Committee.

(4) Member of the Risk Review Committee.

(5) Member of the Crisis Management Committee.

All of the directors and officers have been engaged for the last five years in the indicated
principal occupations, or in other capacities with the companies or firms referred to, or with
affiliates or predecessors thereof, with the exception of Mr. H.E. Joudrie, who was Chairman of
the Board, Gulf Canada Resources Limited; Ms. P. Spruin, who was a corporate consultant and
prior thereto was Corporate Secretary, IPEC Ltd.; Mr. L.C. van Wachem who was Chairman of
the Supervisory Board, Royal Dutch Petroleum Company and Mr. C.W. Wilson, who was
Director, President and Chief Executive Officer of Shell Canada Ltd. Mr. Joudrie was Chairman
of the Board of Algoma Steel Inc. (“Algoma”) during 2001 when Algoma obtained protection
under the Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act, emerging from protection on January 29,
2002. Mr. Joudrie ceased being a director of Algoma in January 2002.

SHAREHOLDINGS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR OFFICERS

At December 31, 2003, the directors and officers of the Corporation, as a group, beneficially
owned, directly or indirectly (via corporate holdings or otherwise), or exercised control or
direction over approximately 82.3% of the issued and outstanding Class II Voting Shares of the
Corporation. In addition, all the directors and sentor officers of the Corporation, as a group,
beneficially owned, directly or indirectly (via corporate holdings or otherwise), or exercised
control or direction over approximately 73.8% of the issued and outstanding Class B common
shares of Canadian Utilities Limited.

MARKETS FOR THE SECURITIES OF THE CORPORATION

The Corporation’s Class I Non-Voting Shares, Class II Voting Shares and 5.75% Cumulative
Redeemable Preferred Shares, Series 3 are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange.
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EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

At December 31, 2003, the Corporation and its joint ventures had the following number of
employees:

Number

TTHLIEIES . oeeevvieiveeereesre e cesesesssesseeste st s eassesareensesaseseesassasne s esnssstes s aasaesbeeeseasssanneassbasassatsesstenssesassnnbneesasernsesseas 2,863
Logistics and ENErZY SEIVICES ....ccoiirvrrmioimmireimiinircciiissicsisicorsstesess st stss e sissssabsbssssasstssbass s b esssrasns s 978
POWEL GEIMEIALION .vvveivreiiivireriiiiirie et st ecitbeertsstee s te s cereaste e e reesareaeste s sbeeshaneeseabesabbeastrasansassssnnssanteossspanres 463
INAUSITIALS 1ovveiei ettt e s ba e ra e e b e e b e e st e erb b o ta e e beesabas s baaesertsenrrneeeabeerenaeaatereearaeenene 776
[ 011113 T OO R TSSOSO TSP UUP TS UR PP 712

Ry 11038 Ko} 7:1 OO TR U OO UUUR SR TUOPURROOt 5,792
Joint Ventures ~ Logistics and ENergy SeIVICES ..ot 970
JOINt VENtures — POWET GEINETALION w....coovvierivreriirriiisiissniertveeereeevreresssssisscssessssserssssestossansnesssssesessessorsssesns 263
Joint Ventures « INAUSITIALS ..coveeeviieiiecrciirciecee st ettt e s s b e s s e ne seeseebbee s bt besseaesessbesseraeansbaeaestssessnennses 100
o 7: 1 OO T O SO SRR U URUURUSORNE 7,125

Approximately 3,800 employees are members of seven employee associations and 18 unions and
are covered by 32 collective agreements. Seven of these agreements have expired and are under
re-negotiation and the remaining 25 agreements expire over the period September 30, 2004 to
December 31, 2008.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information, including executive compensation and principal holders of the
Corporation’s securities, is contained in the Corporation’s Management Proxy Circular dated
March 12, 2003. Additional financial information is provided in the Corporation’s comparative
financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2003.

The Corporation will provide to any person, upon request to the Vice President, Human
Resources and Corporate Secretary of the Corporation at 1400 ATCO Centre, 909-11" Avenue
S.W., Calgary, Alberta T2R 1N6 (telephone (403)292-7500 or fax (403) 292-7623):

(a) when the securities of .the Corporation are in the course of a distribution under a
preliminary short form prospectus or a short form prospectus,

(1) one copy of this Annual Information Form together with one copy of any
document, or the pertinent pages of any document, incorporated by reference in
this Annual Information Form,

(i) one copy of the comparative financial statements of the Corporation for the
financial year ended December 31, 2003 together with the accompanying report of
the auditor and one copy of the most recent interim financial statements of the
Corporation that have been filed, if any, for any period after the end of its financial
year ended December 31, 2003,
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(iii) one copy of the Corporation’s Management Proxy Circular dated March 12, 2003,
and

(iv) one copy of any other documents that are incorporated by reference into the
preliminary short form prospectus or the short form prospectus and are not
required to be provided under (i) to (iii) above; or

(b) at any other time, one copy of any of the documents referred to in (i) to (iii) above,
provided the Corporation may require the payment of a reasonable charge if the request is
made by a person who is not a security holder of the Corporation.

Information relating to Canadian Utilities Limited or CU Inc. may be obtained upon request from
the Vice President, Human Resources and Corporate Secretary of the respective corporation at
1400 ATCO Centre, 909 ~ 11™ Avenue S.W., Calgary, Alberta T2R 1N6 (telephone (403) 292-
7500 or fax (403) 292-7623). Corporate information is also available on the Corporation’s
website: www.atco.com. Additional information relating to the Corporation may be found on
SEDAR at www.sedar.com.
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